TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINAL REGULATIONS

CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA

| ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED | TITLE 12. HEALTH |
|--|--|
| Cumulative Table3875 | STATE BOARD OF HEALTH |
| NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION | Rules and Regulations Governing Outpatient Health Data Reporting (adding 12 VAC 5-218-10 through 12 VAC 5-218- 60)3911 |
| Action | Procedures for the Submission of Health Maintenance |
| FITLE 1. ADMINISTRATION | Organization Quality of Care Performance Information (adding 12 VAC 5-407-10 through 12 VAC 5-407-120) |
| Department of Human Resource Management3893 | Board of Health Regulations Governing Vital Records |
| TITLE 2. AGRICULTURE | (amending 12 VAC 5-550-30, 12 VAC 5-550-70, 12 VAC 5-550-90 through 12 VAC 5-550-120, 12 VAC 5-550-130, |
| State Board of Agriculture and Consumer Services3893 | 12 VAC 5-550-140, 12 VAC 5-550-150, 12 VAC 5-550-190, 12 VAC 5-550-200, 12 VAC 5-550-210, 12 VAC 5-550-230 |
| FITLE 3. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES | through 12 VAC 5-550-260, 12 VAC 5-550-280 through 12 VAC 5-550-330, 12 VAC 5-550-350 through 12 VAC 5- |
| Alcoholic Beverage Control Board3893 | 550-410, 12 VAC 5-550-430 through 12 VAC 5-550-470, |
| FITLE 11. GAMING | 12 VAC 5-550-510, and 12 VAC 5-550-520; adding 12 VAC 5-550-5 and 12 VAC 5-550-125; repealing 12 VAC 5-550-10 |
| Virginia Racing Commission3893 | and 12 VAC 5-550-40) |
| ΓΙΤLE 12. HEALTH | EMERGENCY REGULATIONS |
| State Board of Health3894 | TITLE 44 CAMING |
| Department of Medical Assistance Services3895 | TITLE 11. GAMING |
| FITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL | VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION |
| LICENSING Department of Health Professions3895 | Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (adding 11 VAC 10-20-410 through 11 VAC 10-20-417) |
| TITLE 22. SOCIAL SERVICES | TITLE 12. HEALTH |
| State Board of Social Services3896 | |
| | DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES |
| PROPOSED REGULATIONS | Methods and Standards for Establishing Payment Rates; Inpatient Hospital Care (amending 12 VAC 30-70-291, |
| FITLE 11. GAMING | 12 VAC 30-70-301, 12 VAC 30-70-331)3919 |
| VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION | COVERNOR |
| | GOVERNOR |
| Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-190)3897 | EXECUTIVE ORDERS Frozery Concernation by State Agencies (E4 2002) 2022 |
| Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel | Energy Conservation by State Agencies (54-2003) 3923 |
| Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-200)3905 | Declaration of a State of Emergency Due to an Economic Crisis in Henry County and the City of Martinsville (55-2003) |
| Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-220)3907 | |
| | GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA |
| | DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY |
| | |

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

Table of Contents

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

| Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program (Intended Use Plan for FY 2004)3925 |
|--|
| VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION |
| Notice to State Agencies |
| Forms for Filing Material for Publication in <i>The Virginia</i> Register of Regulations |
| <u>ERRATA</u> |
| VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS, LEAD, AND HOME INSPECTORS |
| Virginia Lead-Based Paint Activities Regulations (18 VAC 15-30) |
| VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD |
| Solid Waste Management Regulations (9 VAC 20-80) 3926 |
| STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD |
| Water Quality Standards (9 VAC 25-260)3926 |
| CALENDAR OF EVENTS |
| EXECUTIVE |
| Open Meetings and Public Hearings3927 |
| INDEPENDENT |
| Open Meetings and Public Hearings |
| LEGISLATIVE |
| Open Meetings and Public Hearings |
| CHRONOLOGICAL LIST |
| Open Meetings |
| Public Hearings3956 |

CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

The table printed below lists regulation sections, by Virginia Administrative Code (VAC) title, that have been amended, added or repealed in the *Virginia Register* since the regulations were originally published or last supplemented in VAC (the Spring 2003 VAC Supplement includes final regulations published through *Virginia Register* Volume 19, Issue 11, dated February 10, 2003). Emergency regulations, if any, are listed, followed by the designation "emer," and errata pertaining to final regulations are listed. Proposed regulations are not listed here. The table lists the sections in numerical order and shows action taken, the volume, issue and page number where the section appeared, and the effective date of the section.

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|------------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| Title 1. Administration | | | <u> </u> |
| 1 VAC 55-20-320 emer | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3829 | 10/1/03-9/30/04 |
| Title 3. Alcoholic Beverages | | | |
| 3 VAC 5-40-20 emer | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3586 | 7/10/03-7/9/04 |
| 3 VAC 5-40-50 emer | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3587 | 7/10/03-7/9/04 |
| 3 VAC 5-70-220 emer | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3587 | 7/10/03-7/9/04 |
| Title 4. Conservation and Natural Resources | | | |
| 4 VAC 5-10-10 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3507 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-10-20 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3507 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-10-30 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3508 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-10-40 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3510 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-50 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2370 | 5/21/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-60 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2373 | 5/21/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-70 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2375 | 5/21/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-90 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1881 | 3/27/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-100 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1883 | 3/27/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-110 through 4 VAC 5-36-140 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2376-2379 | 5/21/03 |
| 4 VAC 5-36-170 through 4 VAC 5-36-210 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2379-2392 | 5/21/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-30-40 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3780 | 7/30/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-30-50 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2818 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-40-230 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2818 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-40-282 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2818 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-40-283 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2818 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-40-284 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-25 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-30 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-70 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2819 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-71 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-80 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-81 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-91 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-110 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-50-120 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-60-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2820 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2821 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2821 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-21 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2821 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-70 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2821 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-80 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-100 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 1 7/10 10 00 100 | , arichaea | 10.10 77.11. 2022 | 171700 |

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|--|----------|------------------|-----------------|
| 4 VAC 15-90-110 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-120 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-121 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-141 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-160 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-170 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-190 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2822 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-195 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-200 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-210 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-220 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-230 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-231 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-240 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-90-241 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-140-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-140-40 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2823 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-160-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-160-20 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-160-31 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-200-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-210-30 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-210-40 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-210-51 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-230-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-230-30 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-230-60 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-230-70 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2824 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240 | Erratum | 19:23 VA.R. 3412 | |
| 4 VAC 15-240-31 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-40 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-50 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-80 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-81 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-240-91 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2825 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-260-120 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2826 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-290-115 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2826 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 15-430-40 | Erratum | 19:14 VA.R. 2176 | <u></u> |
| 4 VAC 15-430-210 | Erratum | 19:14 VA.R. 2177 | |
| 4 VAC 20-252-130 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1905 | 1/31/03-2/28/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-252-130 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2086 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-252-150 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1906 | 1/31/03-2/28/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-252-150 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2087 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-380-10 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2087 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-380-30 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2087 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-380-50 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2087 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-380-60 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2088 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-490-40 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3320 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-490-60 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3320 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-563-10 through 4 VAC 20-563-50 emer | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2417 | 3/26/03-4/24/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-620-50 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2088 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-620-70 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2089 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-720-20 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1906 | 2/1/03-3/3/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-720-40 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1907 | 2/1/03-3/3/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-720-50 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1907 | 2/1/03-3/3/03 |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| 4 VAC 20-720-70 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1908 | 2/1/03-3/3/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-720-80 | Erratum | 19:12 VA.R. 1915 | |
| 4 VAC 20-720-80 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1909 | 2/1/03-3/3/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-752-20 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3385 | 6/26/03-7/24/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-752-20 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3780 | 7/23/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-910-45 emer | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1911 | 1/31/03-2/28/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-910-45 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2089 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-910-45 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3320 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-950-30 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2090 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-950-45 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2090 | 3/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-950-47 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3321 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1050-10 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2392 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1050-20 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2392 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1050-30 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2392 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1060-10 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3385 | 6/25/03-7/24/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1060-10 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2393 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1060-20 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3385 | 6/25/03-7/24/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1060-20 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2393 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1060-30 | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2393 | 3/26/03 |
| 4 VAC 20-1070-10 through 4 VAC 20-1070-50 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3781 | 8/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 25-30 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3510 | 9/11/03 |
| 4 VAC 25-31-10 through 4 VAC 25-31-570 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3510-3518 | 9/11/03 |
| 4 VAC 25-40 (Forms) | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2589 | |
| 4 VAC 25-150-120 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2663 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 25-160-30 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2664 | 7/1/03 |
| 4 VAC 50-10-10 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3518 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 50-10-20 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3519 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 50-10-30 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3519 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 50-10-40 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3521 | 9/10/03 |
| 4 VAC 50-10-40 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3521 | 9/10/03 |
| Title 6. Criminal Justice and Corrections | | | |
| 6 VAC 20-210-10 through 6 VAC 20-210-110 emer | Added | 19:10 VA.R. 1511-1512 | 1/7/03-1/6/04 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3322 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-20 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-30 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-35 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-37 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-40 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-50 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3324 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-60 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3325 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-63 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3325 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-65 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3325 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-67 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3325 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-69 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3325 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-70 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3326 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-75 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3326 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-80 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3326 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-90 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3326 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-92 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3328 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-93 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3328 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-94 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3328 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-100 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3328 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-110 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3330 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-120 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3330 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-130 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3330 | 9/1/03 |
| 6 VAC 35-20-140 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3330 | 9/1/03 |
| | | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| 6 VAC 35-20-150 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3330 | 9/1/03 |
| Title 8. Education | | | |
| 8 VAC 20-440-10 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-90 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-110 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-120 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-140 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-150 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440-160 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1886 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440 Appendix A | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1887 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 20-440 Appendix B | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1890 | 3/28/03 |
| 8 VAC 40-30-10 through 8 VAC 40-30-470 emer | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3589 | 7/16/03-7/15/04 |
| 8 VAC 40-31-10 through 8 VAC 40-31-280 emer | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3589-3600 | 7/16/03-7/15/04 |
| Title 9. Environment | | | |
| 9 VAC 5-20-204 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2486 | 6/4/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-20-310 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2486 | 6/4/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40 | Erratum | 19:25 VA.R. 3844 | |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6000 through 9 VAC 5-40-6150 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2487-2494 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6250 through 9 VAC 5-40-6510 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3521-3535 | 9/10/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6550 through 9 VAC 5-40-6810 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3536-3556 | 9/10/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6180 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2494 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6190 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2499 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-6220 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2500 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-7950 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2501 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-7960 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2502 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-8090 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2505 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-8100 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2505 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-8110 through 9 VAC 5-40-8160 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2507-2519 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 5-40-8180 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2519 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-17 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-18 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1891 | 3/26/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-40 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-70 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-124 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-261 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-262 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-264 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2665 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-265 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2668 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-270 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-305 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-315 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-328 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-420 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-440 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-450 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-490 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1260 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1280 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1285 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2670 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1370 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1380 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1390 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-60-1420 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-10 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-60 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-80 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| | | , | 5,2 ,, 50 |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|------------------|-----------------------|----------------|
| 9 VAC 20-80-90 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-100 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-105 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-110 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-113 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-115 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-120 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-140 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-150 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-160 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-170 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-180 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-190 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-205 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-210 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-240 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-250 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-260 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-270 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-280 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-300 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-310 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-330 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-340 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-360 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-370 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-460 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-485 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-500 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-510 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-520 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-530 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-550 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-570 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-580 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-600 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-620 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-640 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-650 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-670 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-730 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-740 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-760 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-770 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-780 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-80-790 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3782 | 9/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-90-10 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-90-20 | Repealed | 19:18 VA.R. 2672 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-90-30 through 9 VAC 20-90-100 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2672-2675 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-90-110 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2675 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-90-120 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2675 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-10 through 9 VAC 20-110-40 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2826-2827 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2827 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-100 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2828 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-110 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2828 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-115 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2828 | 7/2/03 |
| • | - Is a series as | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|----------------------|
| 9 VAC 20-110-121 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2828 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-110-122 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2828 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-130 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 20-170-10 through 9 VAC 20-170-60 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2829-2833 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-170-70 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2678 | 1 |
| 9 VAC 20-170-70 | Erratum | 19:23 VA.R. 3412 | |
| 9 VAC 20-170-80 through 9 VAC 20-170-190 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2833-2839 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 20-170-195 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2679 | 1 |
| 9 VAC 20-170-270 through 9 VAC 20-170-420 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2842-2862 | 7/2/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-20-10 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2680 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-20-110 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2681 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-20-120 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2681 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-20-130 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2681 | 7/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-70 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2090 | 4/23/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-71-10 through 9 VAC 25-71-70 | Added | 19:14 VA.R. 2090 | 4/23/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-120 (Forms) | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2739 | |
| 9 VAC 25-140-155 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3348 | 8/27/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-193-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3332 | 10/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-193-30 through 9 VAC 25-193-70 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3332-3348 | 10/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-193-80 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3348 | 10/1/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-210 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 25-210 (Forms) | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2418 | |
| 9 VAC 25-260-5 through 9 VAC 25-260-30 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 2 |
| 9 VAC 25-260-50 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 2 |
| 9 VAC 25-260-140 | Amended | 18:24 VA.R. 3289 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-140 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-150 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-155 | Amended | 18:24 VA.R. 3289 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-170 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-260-190 through 9 VAC 25-260-240 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-300 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-310 | Amended | 18:20 VA.R. 2659 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-310 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-320 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-340 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-380 through 9 VAC 25-260-450 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-390 | Amended | 18:20 VA.R. 2661 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-415 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-260-470 through 9 VAC 25-260-540 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-280-10 through 9 VAC 25-280-90 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3785 | 8/27/03 ³ |
| 9 VAC 25-420 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-430 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-440 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-450 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-452 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-460 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-470 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-480 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-490 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-500 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-510 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-520 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| | | | = ., 00 |

Section suspended in 19:18 VA.R. 2680.

² 30 days after notice of approval published in the Virginia Register of Regulations.

³ Notice of effective date published in 19:23 VA. R. 3348.

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|--|----------|-----------------------|---------------------|
| 9 VAC 25-530 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-540 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-550 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-560 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-570 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-572 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2091 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-660 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 25-660 (Forms) | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2418 | |
| 9 VAC 25-670 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 25-680 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 25-680 (Forms) | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2418 | |
| 9 VAC 25-690 (Forms) | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1912 | |
| 9 VAC 25-690 (Forms) | Added | 19:16 VA.R. 2418 | |
| 9 VAC 25-720 | Erratum | 19:20 VA.R. 2999 | |
| 9 VAC 25-720-10 through 9 VAC 25-720-140 | Added | 19:14 VA.R. 2091-2138 | 4/24/03 |
| 9 VAC 25-720-50 | Erratum | 19:18 VA.R. 2746-2747 | |
| 9 VAC 25-720-80 | Erratum | 19:18 VA.R. 2747 | |
| 9 VAC 25-720-120 | Erratum | 19:18 VA.R. 2747 | |
| 9 VAC 25-720-130 | Erratum | 19:18 VA.R. 2747 | |
| 9 VAC 25-730 | Repealed | 19:14 VA.R. 2090 | 4/23/03 |
| Title 11. Gaming | repealed | 10.11 77.11. 2000 | 1/20/00 |
| 11 VAC 5-10-10 through 11 VAC 5-10-70 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2264 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-10-80 | Added | 19:15 VA.R. 2264 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-10 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-60 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-70 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-80 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-90 | Repealed | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-100 | Repealed | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-110 | Repealed | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-120 through 11 VAC 5-20-180 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-20-420 | Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-30 | Repealed | 19:15 VA.R. 2265 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-31-10 through 11 VAC 5-31-200 | Added | 19:15 VA.R. 2266 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-40 | Repealed | 19:15 VA.R. 2266 | 5/7/03 |
| 11 VAC 5-41-10 through 11 VAC 5-41-340 | Added | 19:15 VA.R. 2266-2269 | 5/7/03 |
| Title 12. Health | | | |
| 12 VAC 5-31-610 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 493 | 4 |
| 12 VAC 5-31-620 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 494 | 4 |
| 12 VAC 5-31-730 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 516 | 4 |
| 12 VAC 5-31-940 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 503 | 4 |
| 12 VAC 5-31-1030 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 504 | 5/6/03 ⁵ |
| 12 VAC 5-31-1140 | Added | 19:3 VA.R. 505 | 5/6/03 ⁵ |
| 12 VAC 5-90-80 emer | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3220 | 6/24/03-6/23/04 |
| 12 VAC 5-90-80 emer | Amended | 19:13 VA.R. 1971 | 2/11/03-2/10/04 |
| 12 VAC 5-90-80 emer | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2737 | 4/24/03-4/23/04 |
| 12 VAC 5-120-50 | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3215 | 8/13/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-200-10 | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3215 | 8/13/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-585-10 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2138 | 4/23/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-585-40 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2140 | 4/23/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-585-50 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2141 | 4/23/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-585-270 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2141 | 4/23/03 |
| | | | |

Section withdrawn in 19:16 VA.R. 2393.

Section readopted in 19:16 VA.R. 2393.

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| 12 VAC 5-585-660 through 12 VAC 5-585-750 | Added | 19:14 VA.R. 2141-2145 | 4/23/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-10 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2520 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-140 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-150 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-370 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2526 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-370 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-380 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-400 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-410 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-420 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2549 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-420 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2982 | 7/16/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-440 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2565 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-440 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-530 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2568 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-530 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2982 | 7/16/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-530 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-540 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-550 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2982 | 7/16/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590-990, Appendix F and Appendix G | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2983-2984 | 7/16/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix M | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2575 | 6/4/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix B | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix O | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix P | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix F | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 5-590 Appendix H | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/10/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-20-80 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2682 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-20-150 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2682 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-20-160 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2683 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-40-220 emer | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3222 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-40-235 emer | Added | 19:21 VA.R. 3076 | 8/1/03-7/31/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-40-345 emer | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3224 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-10 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3078 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-20 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3078 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-50 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3079 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-60 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3079 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-120 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3080 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-140 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2684 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-140 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3080 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-150 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2685 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-160 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2686 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-229.1 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3387 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-460 | Repealed | 19:18 VA.R. 2686 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-50-530 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3081 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-60-40 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3391 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-60-70 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2687 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-60-320 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3392 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-201 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3058 | 8/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-221 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2699 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-271 emer | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3225 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-281 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2699 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-351 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2699 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-351 emer | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3082 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-70-391 emer | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3226 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 12 VAC 30-80-20 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2699 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-80-40 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2701 | 7/1/03 |
| 12 VAC 30-80-75 emer | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3391 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 30 00 10 omoi | 7.0000 | | 77 1700 0700701 |

| AOTION | OITE | |
|--------------------|--|--|
| ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
| | | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| | | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| | | 7/1/03 |
| | | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| | | 7/1/03 |
| | | 7/1/03 |
| | | 6/19/03 |
| | | 7/1/03 |
| Amended | | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2273 | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Amended | | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Added | 19:15 VA.R. 2276 | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2281 | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| | | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Amended | 19:15 VA.R. 2284 | 3/17/03-3/16/04 |
| Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3349 | 8/27/03 |
| Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3350 | 8/27/03 |
| Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3351 | 8/27/03 |
| Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3352-3358 | 8/27/03 |
| Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2692 | 7/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2693 | 7/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2694-2699 | 7/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3786 | 10/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3789 | 10/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3789 | 10/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2699 | 7/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3077 | 8/1/03-7/31/04 |
| Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3789-3791 | 10/1/03 |
| Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3557 | 9/11/03 |
| Added | 19:21 VA.R. 3058-3071 | 8/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2864-2865 | 7/2/03 |
| Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2864 | 7/2/03 |
| | 19:19 VA.R. 2864 | 7/2/03 |
| Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2865 | 7/2/03 |
| | 19:19 VA.R. 2865 | 8/1/03 |
| Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2865-2866 | 8/1/03 |
| Erratum | 19:25 VA. R. 3844 | |
| | | 9/18/03 |
| | | 9/18/03 |
| Amended | | 9/18/03 |
| | | 9/18/03 |
| | | 9/18/03 |
| | | 9/18/03 |
| | 3. <u>_</u> | 3, . 3, 30 |
| Amended | 10·25 \/Δ R 3701 | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| | | 10/1/03 |
| Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| A | 40.0E \/A D 0700 | 40/4/00 |
| Amended Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 10/1/03 |
| | Amended Added Added Added Added Added Added Added Amended Added Repealed Added Repealed Added Repealed Added Amended | Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3393 Added 19:21 VA.R. 3085 Amended 19:18 VA.R. 2702 Added 19:22 VA.R. 3226 Added 19:18 VA.R. 2689 Added 19:18 VA.R. 2689 Added 19:18 VA.R. 2690 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 2270 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 2273 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 2274 Added 19:15 VA.R. 2274 Added 19:15 VA.R. 2276 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 2281 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 2282 Amended 19:15 VA.R. 3350 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3350 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3350 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3351 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3352-3358 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3352-3358 Amended 19:23 VA.R. 3352-3358 Amended 19:25 VA.R. 3786 |

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|--|--------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------|
| 13 VAC 5-31-110 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3797 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-31-180 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3797 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-31-190 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3797 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-11 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3798 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-21 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3798 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-31 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3799 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-41 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3799 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-51 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3800 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-61 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3801 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-71 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3801 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-81 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3802 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-85 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3810 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-91 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3812 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-101 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3813 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-111 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3814 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-121 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3814 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-129 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3815 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-130 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3815 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-131 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3815 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-132 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3816 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-133 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3816 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-135 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3816 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-136 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3817 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-140 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3817 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-150 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3818 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-155 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3822 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-160 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3822 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-170 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3822 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-180 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3823 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-181 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3823 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-182 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3824 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-190 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3824 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-51-200 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3824 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-61-11 through 13 VAC 5-61-460 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3824 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-62-10 through 13 VAC 5-62-480 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3824 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-80-10 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-80-20 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-80-30 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-80-40 through 13 VAC 5-80-140 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-80-150 | Repealed | 19:25 VA.R. 3796 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-10 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-40 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-40 13 VAC 5-91-50 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-60 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-00 13 VAC 5-91-100 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-100 13 VAC 5-91-110 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-110 13 VAC 5-91-120 | | 19:25 VA.R. 3625 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-120 13 VAC 5-91-140 | Amended Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-140 13 VAC 5-91-160 | Amended Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3825 | 10/1/03 |
| | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-180 13 VAC 5-91-200 | | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-210 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-230 | Repealed | | |
| 13 VAC 5-91-245 | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-250 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 5-91-260 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|--------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------|
| 13 VAC 5-91-270 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 10/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-10-10 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-10-20 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3826 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-10 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-30 through 13 VAC 10-40-70 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-90 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-100 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-110 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1892 | 1/24/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-120 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-130 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-140 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-160 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-170 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-190 through 13 VAC 10-40-230 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 8/1/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-220 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1892 | 1/24/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-40-230 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1892 | 1/24/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-180-10 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2394 | 4/2/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-180-50 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2394 | 4/2/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-180-60 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2394 | 4/2/03 |
| 13 VAC 10-180-60 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2404 | 1/1/04 |
| Title 14. Insurance | | 10.001/4.5.0100 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71 (Forms) | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3409 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71-70 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3230 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71-80 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3231 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71-90 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3231 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71-91 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3232 | |
| 14 VAC 5-71-92 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3233 19:12 VA.R. 1893 | 4/4/02 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-20 14 VAC 5-200-30 | Amended Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1893 19:12 VA.R. 1893 | 4/1/03 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-30 14 VAC 5-200-40 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1893 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-40 14 VAC 5-200-60 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1893 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-00 14 VAC 5-200-75 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1893 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-77 | Added | 19:12 VA.R. 1894 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-150 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1894 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-153 | Added | 19:12 VA.R. 1894 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-200-200 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1894 | 4/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-260 (Forms) | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2169 | |
| 14 VAC 5-270-40 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3071 | 7/1/03 |
| 14 VAC 5-270-80 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3071 | 7/1/03 |
| Title 15. Judicial | | | |
| 15 VAC 5-80-50 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2579 | 4/11/03 |
| Title 16. Labor and Employment | 7 (111011000 | 10.17 77.111. 2010 | 1/11/00 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-10 16 VAC 15-10-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-40 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-50 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-80 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-10-100 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 15-40-50 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3072 | 8/1/03 |
| 16 VAC 25-50-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 25-50-150 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 25-50-340 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2867 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 25-50-440 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2868 | 7/2/03 |
| 16 VAC 25-50-445 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2868 | 7/2/03 |
| | | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|--|-------------------|--------------------------------------|--------------------|
| 16 VAC 25-85-1904.10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3359 | 1/1/04 |
| 16 VAC 25-85-1904.12 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3359 | 1/1/04 |
| 16 VAC 25-85-1904.29 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3359 | 1/1/04 |
| 16 VAC 25-90-1910.178 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3359 | 9/1/03 |
| 16 VAC 30-50-30 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2703 | 7/1/03 |
| Title 18. Professional and Occupational Licensing | | | |
| 18 VAC 5-21-20 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1895 | 3/26/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-10 through 18 VAC 15-30-50 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-41 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-60 through 18 VAC 15-30-90 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-100 through 18 VAC 15-30-180 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-190 through 18 VAC 15-30-240 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-205 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-245 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-250 through 18 VAC 15-30-300 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-310 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-320 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-330 through 18 VAC 15-30-520 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-530 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-540 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-541 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-542 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-550 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-560 through 18 VAC 15-30-600 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-610 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-620 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-630 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-640 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-650 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-651 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-660 through 18 VAC 15-30-750 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-770 through 18 VAC 15-30-820 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-830 18 VAC 15-30-840 | Repealed Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 10/1/03 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 15-30-840 18 VAC 15-40-10 through 18 VAC 15-40-190 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2706-2712 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 25-10-10 through 18 VAC 25-10-50 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2700-2712 | 7/3/03 |
| 18 VAC 25-10-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2868 | 7/3/03 |
| 18 VAC 41-20-10 through 18 VAC 41-20-280 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2712-2714 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 41-40-10 through 18 VAC 41-40-260 emer | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3396-3403 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-10 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2984 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-90 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2714 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-106 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2714 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-200 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2985 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-210 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2985 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 60-20-220 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2985 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-70 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-130 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-140 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-150 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-151 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-152 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-153 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-154 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 65-20-500 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2869 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 76-20-10 through 18 VAC 76-20-60 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3565 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 76-30-10 through 18 VAC 76-30-120 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2869-2870 | 7/2/03 |
| | | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|------------------|-----------------------|-----------------|
| 18 VAC 76-40-10 emer | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3831 | 8/6/03-8/5/04 |
| 18 VAC 76-40-20 emer | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3831 | 8/6/03-8/5/04 |
| 18 VAC 76-40-30 emer | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3832 | 8/6/03-8/5/04 |
| 18 VAC 76-40-30 emer (Forms) | Added | 19:25 VA.R. 3833 | |
| 18 VAC 80-20-10 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3567 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-30 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3568 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-40 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3569 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-50 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3569 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-60 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3569 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-70 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3569 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-70 | Amended | 19:25 VA.R. 3827 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-80 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3569 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-120 through 18 VAC 80-20-160 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3569-3570 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-170 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3570 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-180 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3570 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 80-20-200 through 18 VAC 80-20-270 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3570 | 10/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-22 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3404 | 7/15/03-7/14/04 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-122 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3073 | 7/30/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-210 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3074 | 7/30/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-225 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2715 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-280 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2870 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-280 | Amended | 19:21 VA.R. 3074 | 7/30/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-285 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2871 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-290 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2871 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-300 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2871 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-300 18 VAC 85-20-310 through 18 VAC 85-20-390 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2719-2720 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-20-310 tillough 16 VAC 85-20-390 | | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| | Amended Added | | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-35 | | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | |
| 18 VAC 85-40-40 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-45 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-50 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-55 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2717 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-60 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-61 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-65 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-66 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-40-80 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-10 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-40 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-59 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-101 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-110 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-50-115 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-80-65 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2717 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-25 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-30 through 18 VAC 85-101-60 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-61 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-80 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| _18 VAC 85-101-90 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-100 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 10 \/\C 05 101 100 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-130 | | 40 40 V/A D 0070 | 7/0/00 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-140 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2873 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-101-140 | | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|--|----------|------------------------|-----------------|
| 18 VAC 85-101-145 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2717 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-110-145 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2718 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 85-120-85 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2718 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-30 emer | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3406 | 7/15/03-7/14/04 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-271 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2722 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-360 | Amended | 19:13 VA.R. 1967 | 4/9/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-361 | Added | 19:13 VA.R. 1967 | 4/9/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-362 | Added | 19:13 VA.R. 1967 | 4/9/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-363 | Added | 19:13 VA.R. 1968 | 4/9/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-20-364 | Added | 19:13 VA.R. 1968 | 4/9/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-30-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2874 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-30-70 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2874 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 90-30-90 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2874 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-10 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2874 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-175 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2875 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-173 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2875 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-220 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2876 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-220 18 VAC 95-20-230 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2876 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-230 18 VAC 95-20-290 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2876 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-290 18 VAC 95-20-300 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2876 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-300 18 VAC 95-20-310 | | 19:19 VA.R. 2876 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-310 18 VAC 95-20-330 | Amended | | |
| | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2877 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-340 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2877 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-380 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2877 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 95-20-390 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2877 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 100-20-53 emer | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3601 | 7/17/03-7/16/04 |
| 18 VAC 105-20-75 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2877 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-75 | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2878 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-170 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2878 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-240 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-255 | Added | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-275 | Added | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-320 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-330 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2878 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-400 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-411 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2878 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-430 | Repealed | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-530 | Amended | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 110-20-730 | Added | 19:20 VA.R. 2986 | 7/16/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-10 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-30 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-40 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-45 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-50 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-60 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-61 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-62 | Added | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-70 | Repealed | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-90 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-110 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 115-30-140 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 6/18/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3361 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-20 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3361 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-30 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3362 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-40 through 18 VAC 120-40-140 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3362-3363 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-170 through 18 VAC 120-40-260 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3363-3365 | 8/27/03 |
| 10 V/10 120-70-170 tillough 10 V/10 120-40-200 | Amenueu | 10.20 VA.IV. 0000-0000 | 0/21/03 |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 18 VAC 120-40-290 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3365 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-350 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3365 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-380 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3365 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-400 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3366 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 120-40-430 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3366 | 8/27/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-10 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2724 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-30 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2728 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-40 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2729 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-50 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2729 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-60 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2730 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-70 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2730 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-110 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2730 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-170 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2731 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-180 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2731 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-200 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2733 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-210 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2733 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-220 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2733 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 130-20-230 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2734 | 7/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-10 through 18 VAC 135-20-80 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1899-1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-30 | Erratum | 19:14 VA.R. 2177 | |
| 18 VAC 135-20-60 | Erratum | 19:14 VA.R. 2177 | |
| 18 VAC 135-20-100 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-105 | Added | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-110 through 18 VAC 135-20-150 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-155 | Added | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-160 through 18 VAC 135-20-180 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-185 | Added | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-190 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1901 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-200 | Repealed | 19:12 VA.R. 1903 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-220 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1903 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-230 | Repealed | 19:12 VA.R. 1903 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-240 through 18 VAC 135-20-300 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1903-1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-260 | Erratum | 19:14 VA.R. 2177 | |
| 18 VAC 135-20-320 | Repealed | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-330 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-340 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-360 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-370 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-20-410 | Amended | 19:12 VA.R. 1904 | 4/1/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-10 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-20 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-30 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-40 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-50 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-60 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-70 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-80 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-90 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-110 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-120 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-130 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-140 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-150 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2880 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-160 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2881 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-170 through 18 VAC 135-40-410 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2881 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-420 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2881 | 7/2/03 |
| | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|----------|-----------------------|----------------|
| 18 VAC 135-40-430 | Amended | 19:19 VA.R. 2881 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-40-440 through 18 VAC 135-40-530 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2882 | 7/2/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-10 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3571 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-30 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3571 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-40 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3571 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-50 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3571 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-70 through 18 VAC 135-50-110 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3571-3572 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-140 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3573 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-150 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3574 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-190 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3574 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-200 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3574 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-210 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-212 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-215 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-217 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-220 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-230 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-240 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-250 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-270 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-290 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-300 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-330 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3577 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-350 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-390 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-400 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-420 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-440 through 18 VAC 135-50-470 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-510 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-530 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3578 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-50-560 through 18 VAC 135-50-590 | Repealed | 19:24 VA.R. 3579 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 135-60-10 through 18 VAC 135-60-60 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3579 | 9/10/03 |
| 18 VAC 140-20-30 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2145 | 4/23/03 |
| 18 VAC 150-20-135 | Added | 19:22 VA.R. 3217 | 8/13/03 |
| Title 19. Public Safety | Added | 13.22 VA.IX. 3217 | 0/13/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-5 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3367 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-10 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3368 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-15 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3368 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-20 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3368 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-30 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3369 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-40 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3370 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-50 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3370 | 7/3/03 |
| 19 VAC 30-170-60 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3370 | 7/3/03 |
| Title 20. Public Utilities and Telecommunications | ropoulou | 10.20 77.111. 0070 | 170700 |
| 20 VAC 5-200 | Erratum | 19:20 VA.R. 2999 | |
| 20 VAC 5-312-20 | Amended | 19:17 VA.R. 2579 | 4/10/03 |
| 20 VAC 5-312-120 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3579 | 1/1/04 |
| 20 VAC 5-400-180 | Repealed | 19:17 VA.R. 2583 | 4/10/03 |
| 20 VAC 5-417 | Erratum | 19:20 VA.R. 2999 | |
| 20 VAC 5-417-10 through 20 VAC 5-417-80 | Added | 19:17 VA.R. 2583-2587 | 4/10/03 |
| 20 VAC 5-429-10 through 20 VAC 5-429-60 | Added | 19:17 VA.R. 2587-2588 | 4/10/03 |
| Title 21. Securities and Retail Franchising | | | |
| 21 VAC 5-10-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-70 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-85 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| | | | |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|---|---------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------|
| 21 VAC 5-20-155 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-133 21 VAC 5-20-220 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-225 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-240 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3373 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-250 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3375 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-260 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3375 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-200 21 VAC 5-20-270 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3375 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-210 21 VAC 5-20-280 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3375 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-20-200 21 VAC 5-30-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3379 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-30-10 21 VAC 5-30-40 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3380 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-30-40 21 VAC 5-30-70 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3380 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-30-70 21 VAC 5-30-80 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3380 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-30-60 21 VAC 5-30-90 | Repealed | 19:23 VA.R. 3380 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-30-90 21 VAC 5-40-30 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3380 | 7/1/03 |
| | | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-40-100 21 VAC 5-40-120 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | |
| 21 VAC 5-40-120 21 VAC 5-40-140 | Repealed Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-40-140 21 VAC 5-40-150 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-40-160 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 |
| | | | |
| 21 VAC 5-45-10 | Added | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-45-20 | Added | | |
| 21 VAC 5-80-40 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3381 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-80-190 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3382 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-80-200 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3382 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-80-210 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3384 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-100-10 | Amended | 19:23 VA.R. 3384 | 7/1/03 |
| 21 VAC 5-120-50 | Erratum | 19:22 VA.R. 3233 | |
| Title 22. Social Services | | | |
| 22 VAC 30-20-10 through 22 VAC 30-20-40 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2147-2154 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-60 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2154 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-80 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2154 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-90 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2155 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-90 | Amended | 19:18 VA.R. 2736 | 6/18/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-95 | Added | 19:14 VA.R. 2155 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-100 through 22 VAC 30-20-130 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2155-2164 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-150 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2164 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-160 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2164 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-170 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2165 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-181 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2166 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 30-20-200 | Amended | 19:14 VA.R. 2167 | 4/24/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-11-10 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3581 | 9/10/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-11-30 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3581 | 9/10/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-11-40 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3581 | 9/10/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-11-50 | Amended | 19:24 VA.R. 3581 | 9/10/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-90-10 | Amended | 19:22 VA.R. 3218 | 9/19/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-220-10 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2882 | 7/2/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-220-20 | Repealed | 19:19 VA.R. 2882 | 7/2/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-293-10 emer | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2883 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 22 VAC 40-293-20 emer | Added | 19:19 VA.R. 2883 | 7/1/03-6/30/04 |
| 22 VAC 40-375-10 through 22 VAC 40-375-60 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3582-3584 | 9/10/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-685-10 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3584 | 9/1/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-685-20 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3584 | 9/1/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-685-30 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3584 | 9/1/03 |
| 22 VAC 40-910-10 through 22 VAC 40-910-110 | Added | 19:24 VA.R. 3584-3585 | 9/1/03 |
| Title 24. Transportation and Motor Vehicles | | | |
| 24 VAC 30-280-20 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2414 | 3/24/03 |
| 2. 7.10 00 200 20 | / who had | .5.15 776.16. 2717 | 5/27/05 |

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
|------------------|----------|------------------|----------------|
| 24 VAC 30-280-40 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2415 | 3/24/03 |
| 24 VAC 30-280-50 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2415 | 3/24/03 |
| 24 VAC 30-280-60 | Amended | 19:16 VA.R. 2416 | 3/24/03 |
| 24 VAC 30-480 | Repealed | 19:22 VA.R. 3219 | 8/13/03 |

NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register

TITLE 1. ADMINISTRATION

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

† Withdrawal of Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Human Resource Management has WITHDRAWN the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action for 1 VAC 55-20, Commonwealth of Virginia Health Benefits Program, which was published in 18:22 VA.R. 2882 July 15, 2002.

Contact: Charles Reed, Associate Director, Department of Human Resource Management, 101 N. 14th Street, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3124.

VA.R. Doc. No. R02-219; Filed August 8, 2003, 11:50 a.m.

TITLE 2. AGRICULTURE

STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Agriculture and Consumer Services intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled **2 VAC 5-206**, **Regulation for Scrapie Eradication**. The purpose of the proposed regulation is to eradicate scrapie from Virginia sheep and goats. The agency invites comment on whether there should be an advisor appointed.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: §§ 3.1-724, 3.1-726, and 3.1-730 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 30, 2003.

Contact: David Cardin, DVM, Program Manager, Office of Veterinary Services, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank St., Suite 608, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4560, FAX (804) 371-2380 or e-mail dcardin@vdacs.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-237; Filed June 26, 2003, 1:30 p.m.

- ◆

TITLE 3. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board intends to consider amending regulations entitled 3 VAC 5-40, Requirements for Product Approval and 3 VAC 5-70, Other Provisions. The purpose of the proposed action is to carry out the mandate of Chapters 1029 and 1030 of the 2003 Acts of Assembly to establish regulations to implement the creation of wine and beer shippers' licenses. The proposed action will create the process for applying for such licenses, and establish the recordkeeping and reporting requirements for such licensees.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: §§ 4.1-103 and 4.1-112.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 10, 2003.

Contact: W. Curtis Coleburn, III, Chief Operating Officer, Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, 2901 Hermitage Rd., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 213-4409, FAX (804) 213-4411 or e-mail wccolen@abc.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-271; Filed July 10, 2003, 10:39 a.m.

TITLE 11. GAMING

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to consider amending regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-20, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering. The purpose of the proposed action is to amend the regulations to replace the emergency regulations pertaining to advanced-deposit account wagering. The proposed action will increase purses and days of the live racing at Colonial Downs, and address the interests of the Virginia Breeders Fund, Virginia horsemen, and unlimited licensee in otherwise unregulated pari-mutuel wagering.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 10, 2003.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-320; Filed August 13, 2003, 10:56 a.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to consider amending regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-50, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering: Racing Officials. The purpose of the proposed action is to amend the regulations for racing officials to bring them into conformance with neighboring jurisdictions. The commission will amend the duties and responsibilities of certain racing officials, replace the term "Standardbred racing" with the preferred term "harness racing," and repeal the sections pertaining to clocker, gap attendant, stall superintendent and track superintendent, which have previously been moved to 11 VAC 10-60.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 1, 2003.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-304; Filed July 31, 2003, 2:03 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to consider amending regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-60, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering: Participants. The purpose of the proposed action is to amend the current regulations pertaining to participants in pari-mutuel horse racing thereby bringing them into conformance with neighboring jurisdictions. The regulations will be amended to account for emergency permits and change fees for applications for permits. Various categories of participants employed by the licensee's satellite wagering facilities may be merged.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 1, 2003.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New

Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-305; Filed July 31, 2003, 2:04 p.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to consider amending regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-70, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering: Stewards. The purpose of the proposed action is to amend the current regulations pertaining to the appointment of stewards to bring them into conformance with neighboring jurisdictions.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 1, 2003.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-306; Filed July 31, 2003, 2:04 p.m.

TITLE 12. HEALTH

STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health intends to consider repealing regulations entitled 12 VAC 5-60, Virginia Emergency Medical Services Plan. The purpose of the proposed action is to repeal the statewide EMS plan as a regulation, followed by the development of a replacement plan to serve as a guidance document, allowing for more timely revisions and updates as medical advancements and new system needs are identified. The statewide EMS plan must be dynamic and able to be modified in a timely manner to address changes in funding, staffing, national events and emergencies and system developments.

The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-111.3 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 24, 2003.

Contact: Scott Winston, Assistant Director, Office of Emergency Medical Services, Department of Health, 1538 E. Parham Rd., Richmond, VA 23228, telephone (804) 371-3500, FAX (804) 371-3543, toll-free 1-800-523-6019, or e-mail swinston@vdh.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-310; Filed August 4, 2003, 10:31 a.m.

Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health intends to consider amending regulations entitled 12 VAC 5-585, Biosolids Use Regulations. The purpose of the proposed action is to amend 12 VAC 5-585-500 to provide requirements that would permit biosolids field storage.

The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-164 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 12, 2003.

Contact: C.M. Sawyer, Director, Division of Wastewater Engineering, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 109, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-1755, FAX (804) 786-5567 or e-mail csawyer@vdh.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-243; Filed July 11, 2003, 9:29 a.m.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Medical Assistance Services intends to consider amending regulations entitled 12 VAC 30-70, Methods and Standards for Establishing Payment Rates - Inpatient Hospital Services. The purpose of the proposed action is to reimburse Type One hospitals (the state teaching hospitals) with supplemental payments for services that these providers render in the DMAS managed care program (MEDALLION II).

The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-324 and 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until October 8, 2003, to Steven E. Ford, Manager, Division of Reimbursement, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219.

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7959, FAX (804) 786-1680, or e-mail vsimmons@dmas.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-321; Filed August 13, 2003, 10:37 a.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Medical Assistance Services intends to consider amending regulations entitled 12 VAC 30-90, Methods and Standards for Establishing Payment Rates; Long-Term Care. The purpose of the proposed action is to require a minimum holding period by the individual or small chain owner and seller of a nursing facility in order for the sale to result in the reimbursement of capital

costs, after the sale, under the full Fair Rental Value methodology.

The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-324 and 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 10, 2003, to N. Stanley Fields, Director, Division of Cost Settlement, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219.

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7959, FAX (804) 787-1680 or e-mail vsimmons@dmas.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-293; Filed July 18, 2003, 7:43 a.m.

TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Health Professions intends to consider adopting regulations entitled 18 VAC 76-40, Regulations Governing Emergency Contact Information. The purpose of the proposed action is to replace emergency rules for the collection of phone and fax numbers and email addresses to be used in the event of a public health emergency.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication in the Virginia Register.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-2506.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 5 p.m. on September 24, 2003.

Contact: Elaine J. Yeatts, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Health Professions, 6603 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9918, FAX (804) 662-9914 or e-mail elaine.yeatts@dhp.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-314; Filed August 6, 2003, 10:25 a.m.

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

TITLE 22. SOCIAL SERVICES

STATE BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social Services intends to consider repealing regulations entitled 22 VAC 40-660, Child Day Care Services Policy. The purpose of the proposed action is to repeal the current regulation pertaining to child care policy under the Child Care and Development Fund so that new regulations can be promulgated. New federal regulations and changes in policies in Virginia necessitate that new regulations replace the existing 22 VAC 40-660.

The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.2-217, 63.2-319, 63.2-611, and 63.2-616 of the Code of Virginia, Child Care and Development Block Grant of 1990 as amended by the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-193) and the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (Public Law 105-33).

Public comments may be submitted until September 10, 2003.

Contact: Dottie Wells, Child Care Program Manager, Division of Child Care and Development, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1210, FAX (804) 692-2425 or e-mail dgw2@email1.dss.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-291; Filed July 17, 2003, 10:06 a.m.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social Services intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled **22 VAC 40-661**, **Child Care Services**. The purpose of the proposed action is to promulgate new regulations for the Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) program in Virginia. The Department of Social Services is the lead agency for the CCDF. The purpose of the Child Care and Development Fund is to increase the availability, affordability and quality of child care services.

The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed action after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.2-217, 63.2-319, 63.2-611, and 63.2-616 of the Code of Virginia, Child Care and Development Block Grant of 1990 as amended by the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-193) and the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (Public Law 105-33).

Public comments may be submitted until September 10, 2003.

Contact: Dottie Wells, Child Care Program Manager, Division of Child Care and Development, Department of Social

Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1210, FAX (804) 692-2425 or e-mail dgw2@email1.dss.state.va.us.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-292; Filed July 17, 2003, 10:06 a.m.

PROPOSED REGULATIONS

For information concerning Proposed Regulations, see Information Page.

Symbol Key

Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. *Italic type* indicates proposed new text. Language which has been stricken indicates proposed text for deletion.

TITLE 11. GAMING

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 11 VAC 10-20. Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-190).

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m.

Public comments may be submitted until November 7, 2003.

(See Calendar of Events section for additional information)

Agency Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418, or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

<u>Basis:</u> The Virginia Racing Commission derives its statutory authority to promulgate regulations from the provisions of § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia. The Code states, in part in subdivision 3, "The Commission shall promulgate regulations and conditions under which horse racing with pari-mutuel wagering shall be conducted in the Commonwealth, and all such other regulations it deems necessary and appropriate to effect the purposes of this chapter."

<u>Purpose:</u> In accepting the recommendations of its Rules Committee, the Virginia Racing Commission has amended this section of the regulations to incorporate the recent changes to the Code of Virginia, include the latest specifications relating to national standards for racetrack facilities, equipment and safety, and refine the wording of specific regulations within the section where appropriate. The Rules Committee is a group of interested people comprising the spectrum of horse racing in the Commonwealth. Through this amendment process, Virginia's regulations pertaining to horse racing will be in accord with those of neighboring jurisdictions and they are essential to protect the health, safety and the welfare of participants and racehorses in the Commonwealth.

<u>Substance:</u> In the general subsection of the regulations, there are two new substantive provisions. First, the regulations take into account the new provisions in the awarding of live racing days in Virginia whereby the commission can alter the number on the basis of what is best for the entire industry. This provision became effective on July 1, 2003, when the legislation became effective. Furthermore, there is a requirement of a toll-free telephone number for "Gamblers Anonymous." This provision is already printed in the daily programs at Colonial Downs.

In the facilities, equipment and safety subsections of the regulations, the Rules Committee and the Commission relied heavily upon the recommendations of the Jockeys' Guild in the specifications upon racetracks. These specifications have been presented to the Association of Racing Commissioners International and will be included in Model Rules for the sport. Furthermore, Colonial Downs already meets these specifications and this furthermore establishes a safe foundation for any future unlimited racetracks constructed within Virginia.

And throughout the section, where past experience has been beneficial, amendments have been added to incorporate the changes within the regulations.

<u>Issues:</u> The primary advantages and disadvantages to the horse racing community are essential. The clear advantage has been that horsemen, and the racetrack patrons, have grown accustomed to the racing at Colonial Downs, probably the safest racetrack in the nation. The facilities, equipment and safety requirements make it one of the safest racing facilities in the nation with very few serious injuries to the participants and horses. By making these amendments, Virginia will be assured of similar safe racetracks, if there should be an additional one constructed.

The primary advantages and disadvantages to the Virginia Racing Commission are equally essential. The racetrack at New Kent is noted throughout the nation for its safe turf and dirt racecourses. In 2002, almost all of the races were run over the turf course without any serious problems. This is a good reputation that the commission, along with Colonial Downs and the horsemen, want to maintain.

Because Colonial Downs already meets the requirements for facilities, equipment and safety, there will be no fiscal impact on the licensee. Also, the horsemen appreciate the quality of the facilities, equipment and safety requirements where they race their horses. The patrons also appreciate that their wagers are upon horses racing over safe courses.

Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis: The Department of Planning and Budget (DPB) has analyzed the economic impact of this proposed regulation in accordance with § 2.2-4007 H of the Administrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 21 (02). Section 2.2-4007 H requires that such economic impact analyses include, but need not be limited to, the projected number of businesses or other entities to whom the regulation would apply, the identity of any localities and types of businesses or other entities particularly affected, the projected number of persons and employment positions to be affected, the projected costs to affected businesses or entities to implement or comply with the regulation, and the impact on the use and value of private property. The analysis presented below represents DPB's best estimate of these economic impacts.

Summary of the proposed regulation. Pursuant to the Code of Virginia, the proposed changes will allow the Virginia Racing Commission (the commission) to alter the number of live racing days in the Commonwealth and require licensees to post a sign where pari-mutuel wagering is conducted with a toll free number for "Gamblers Anonymous" or for other similar organizations providing assistance to compulsive gamblers. The proposed changes will also establish new racetrack, equipment, and safety specifications.

Estimated economic impact. These rules regulate unlimited horse racing in the Commonwealth. Currently, Colonial Downs located in New Kent is the sole entity with a license for the ownership and operation of a racetrack to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges in the Commonwealth. It has four satellite simulcast wagering facilities in Brunswick, Chesapeake, Hampton, and Richmond. Approximately 250 employees work permanently at the racetrack and the satellite facilities and about 250 persons work temporarily during the live race meetings. In fiscal year 2002, total pari-mutuel handle was \$124 million, total attendance at all facilities was 523,216, and the number of racing days (including both live racing days and days of operation at satellite facilities) was 1,441. Commonwealth received approximately \$2.2 million in license tax revenues. Although these regulations apply potentially to all future racetracks and licensees in Virginia, the commission, at this time, does not expect any new applications in the foreseeable future.

One of the rationales for regulating horse racing activities is to ensure minimum health and safety levels during racing activities. Another, probably more important, rationale is to ensure fairness in pari-mutuel wagering. In the absence of regulatory requirements, it may not be in the best interest of an owner or operator licensee to provide these features. Thus, these regulations protect the interests of parties involved in horse racing. However, other than the conduct of wagering, horse racing is very similar to variety of many other sports competition activities. That is, horse racing is a private business with the ultimate goal to make profits. Thus, from an economic point of view, the regulatory requirements must focus solely on ensuring minimum levels of health and safety and fairness in wagering. The economic value of horse racing to Virginia will likely be maximized when all commercial aspects of horse racing business are left to the discretion of the licensee so that it can maximize profits.

During this regulatory review process, DPB notes that some of the current requirements as well as some of the proposed requirements are well beyond the necessary government involvement in ensuring health and safety and fairness in wagering. These requirements seem to interfere with the commercial aspects of constructing or operating a racetrack and will hinder the ability of a licensee to make profitmaximizing decisions in a competitive market.

One very clear example of interfering with commercial aspect of racing activities is to require a minimum number of live racing days that the licensee must conduct in the

Commonwealth. This requirement is established in the Code of Virginia. Prior to 2000, a license holder was required to schedule at least 150 live racing days in the Commonwealth each year. There does not appear to be an economic rationale for this requirement. The number of racing days should be a decision made by the licensee based on the demand in the Commonwealth. The market in Virginia can support only a certain number of live races for a profitable operation. In response to market forces, a licensee will choose an operation level that maximizes its expected profits (or minimizes losses). It is also known that the profit maximizing level of horse racing activity maximizes the total welfare to customers and the licensee, hence to the Commonwealth.

One of the proposed changes will incorporate statutory changes that occurred in 2000 and 2003 that removed the minimum racing days requirement. In 2000, the General Assembly amended § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia providing authority to the commission to alter the number of racing days until 2005 and later in 2003 removed the sunset requirement. After the statutory change in 2000, the actual number of live racing days decreased from 150 to about 55 -60 days at Colonial Downs. The significant decrease in the number of actual live racing days after 2000 indicates that 150 live races was probably much more than the profit maximizing level of live racing activity. In fact, according to the commission, Colonial Downs was break-even last year after many years of losses. This experience strongly suggests that the flexibility to decide on the number of live racing days probably provided significant economic benefits to the licensee. As mentioned before, an economic benefit to the licensee also contributes to the total welfare of the Commonwealth. Thus, removing any regulatory restrictions on the commercial decisions that should be made freely by the licensee probably created significant net benefits to the licensee and thus the Commonwealth.

A number of other proposed changes will update the racetrack, equipment, and safety standards. The substantive changes include requiring submission of a certified report on the grade and measurement of the racing surface; establishing a number of turf course, main track, and distance poll construction specifications; requiring barns to have hot and cold water, be ventilated, and properly drained; requiring a sauna or steam room in the jockey's room; having an adequate number of assistant starters and back up equipment for flat races; requiring two calibrated electronic photo finish devices; providing stewards the ability to direct the video camera operator to videotape any action during racing; requiring an electronic timing device capable of recording accurately to the hundredths of a second; providing adequate lighting for participants, racehorses, and the patrons; establishing equine and human ambulance specifications; prohibiting horse riding without a protective helmet and the chinstrap buckled; and prohibiting racing or exercising without a protective safety vest.

Among these, the commission indicates that the racetrack specifications are the most costly and estimates the additional costs to be anywhere from \$10 to \$20 million which is probably in the neighborhood of 10% of the total cost to build a new racetrack such as the Colonial Downs. On one hand, these changes would increase cost of building new facilities

Virginia Register of Regulations

¹ Source: Virginia Racing Commission, Annual Report, Fiscal Year 2002

and discourage a potential licensee to construct a racetrack in Virginia. On the other hand, many of the changes could also improve safety and attract more horse owners and patrons to the races in the Commonwealth both of which are desirable for a potential licensee. According to the commission, the Colonial Downs racetrack already meet these proposed specifications and no racetrack is expected to be built in the Commonwealth in the foreseeable future. Thus, the proposed standards are not anticipated to create any significant economic effects at this time.

However, some of these requirements appear to interfere with the commercial aspects of owning or operating a racetrack and therefore are more likely to produce an economic loss than a gain. As discussed before, the focus of the regulatory requirements should be limited to providing health and safety and fair wagering. For example, it is difficult to understand how requiring a sauna or steam room in the jockey's room improves health, safety, or ensures fair wagering. A decision to built a sauna or a steam room appears to be strictly a commercial decision and should be left to the discretion of the licensee. If the licensee anticipates that it would contribute to its profits, then it may decide to build one, as is the case with Colonial Downs. However, another potential licensee may wish to operate a racetrack without one. Since some of these requirements seem to interfere with decision making ability of the licensee to maximize profits without contributing to health, safety, and fair wagering, they are not justified from an economic point of view and are bound to introduce excess compliance costs on the licensee, reducing total welfare in Thus, DPB suggests reviewing these proposed Virginia. racetrack, equipment, and safety standards to determine whether they protect health, safety, and ensure fairness in wagering and upon this review eliminate the ones that do not pass this test.

Finally, another statutory change to § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia in 1998 requires a licensee to post a toll free number where pari-mutuel wagering is conducted for "Gambler Anonymous" or for a similar organization assisting compulsive gamblers. Pursuant to this change, the required number has been posted where wagering takes place and included in the race program since 1998. The main benefit of this change is providing access information to compulsive gamblers if they seek help. The cost of producing and posting the signs is estimated to be very small. This requirement is already being enforced in practice as well and therefore no significant economic effect is expected when this amendment is incorporated into the regulations.

Businesses and entities affected. The proposed regulations primarily apply to owner or operator licensees who are authorized to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges. Currently, Colonial Downs is the only entity with an owner and operator license in the Commonwealth. In addition, employees, particularly jockeys and exercise riders, horse owners, and people attending races or placing wagers may be indirectly affected. There are approximately 500 employees working permanently or temporarily at the racetrack or satellite facilities. Of these, it is estimated that approximately 40 are jockeys and about 80 are exercise riders at a race meeting. The number of horse owners involved in racing activities is about 1,947 annually.

The total attendance at the racetrack and the satellite facilities was 523,216 in fiscal year 2002.

Localities particularly affected. The proposed regulations apply throughout the Commonwealth. However, the Colonial Downs racetrack and satellite facilities are located in New Kent, Brunswick, Chesapeake, Hampton, and Richmond.

Projected impact on employment. The proposed changes are not anticipated to have an effect on employment at this time either because they are already implemented or because no racetrack is expected to be built in the near future.

Effects on the use and value of private property. Similarly, no significant effect on the use and value of private property is expected upon promulgation of the proposed amendments.

Agency's Response to the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis: The Virginia Racing Commission is in general agreement with the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis.

Summary:

The proposed amendments allow the Virginia Racing Commission to alter the number of live racing days in the Commonwealth and require licensees to post a sign where pari-mutuel wagering is conducted with a toll free number for "Gamblers Anonymous" or for other similar organizations providing assistance to compulsive gamblers. The proposed amendments also establish new racetrack, equipment, and safety specifications.

11 VAC 10-20-190. Criteria for unlimited horse racing facilities.

A. Generally. Every license to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges, of 15 days or more in any calendar year is granted by the commission upon the condition that the licensee will conduct horse racing at its facility or meeting for the promotion, sustenance, and growth of a native industry in a manner consistent with the health, safety, and welfare of the people. The adequacy and sufficiency with which the licensee meets the criteria for the procedures, facilities, and equipment for conducting a horse race meeting of such duration shall rest with the commission.

- 1. Each licensee shall accept, observe, and enforce all federal and state laws, regulations of the commission, and local ordinances.
- 2. Each licensee shall at all time maintain its grounds and facilities so as to be neat and clean, painted and in good repair, with special consideration for the comfort and safety of the public, employees, other persons whose business requires their attendance, and for the health and safety of the horses there stabled.
- 3. Each licensee shall honor commission exclusions from the enclosure and eject immediately any person found within the enclosure who has been excluded by the commission and report the ejection to the commission. Whenever any licensee ejects a person from the enclosure, it shall furnish a written notice to the person ejected and shall report the ejection to the commission.

- 4. No later than 30 15 days before the first day of any race meeting, each licensee shall submit to the commission the most recent inspection reports issued by governmental authorities regarding the condition of facilities, sanitation, and fire prevention, detection, and suppression.
- 5. Each licensee shall provide the commission daily attendance reports showing a turnstile count of all persons admitted to the enclosure and the reports shall indicate the daily number of paid admissions, taxed complimentary admissions, and tax exempt admissions.
- 6. Each licensee shall furnish to the commission within three months of the closing of its fiscal year, three copies of its balance sheet and of its operating statement for the previous fiscal year with comparison to the prior fiscal year, the same duly sworn to by the treasurer of the association, and certified by an independent certified public accountant. The financial report shall be in the form as may be prescribed from time to time by the commission.
- 7. Each licensee shall maintain a separate bank account to be known as the "horsemen's account," with the amount of purse money statutorily mandated to be deposited in the account within 48 hours of the running of the race. Withdrawals from this account shall at all times be subject to audit by the commission, and the horsemen's bookkeeper in charge of the account shall be bonded:
 - a. All portions of purse money shall be made available when the stewards have authorized payment to the earners; and
 - b. No portion of purse money other than jockey fees shall be deducted by the licensee for itself or for another, unless so requested in writing by the person to whom such purse moneys are payable, or his duly authorized representative. Irrespective of whether requested, at the close of each race meeting the horsemen's bookkeeper shall mail to each owner a duplicate of each record of a owner's account showing every deposit, withdrawal, or transfer of funds affecting such owner's racing at the close of each race meeting account.
- 8. Each licensee shall remit to the commission within five days of the day on which the revenue for pari-mutuel taxes, admission taxes, and breeders' funds were collected. The remittance shall be accomplished by a direct deposit in a financial institution designated by the commission. On those days when the fifth day is a holiday or a weekend day, the payment must be made by the succeeding business day. At the close of each month in which racing is conducted, the licensee must report to the commission all deposits of taxes and breeders' funds for that month.
- 9. On each day that deposits are made by the licensee, a report must be filed with the commission containing the following recapitulation: total retainage, pari-mutuel tax; state and local admissions taxes; purse moneys; total breakage; and breeders' fund taxes.
- 10. Each licensee shall provide areas within the enclosure where publications, other informational materials, and tip sheets, may be sold to the public. All persons holding a tip sheet concession at the facility must be licensed by possess

- a permit from the commission as vendors. a. Each handicapper Such vendor shall post in a conspicuous place the previous day's tip sheet and the outcome of the races. Each handicapper Such vendor shall deliver one copy of the tip sheet to a commission representative at least one hour before post time.
- 11. Each licensee shall supervise the practice and procedures of all vendors of food, horse feed, medication, and tack, who are licensed and have access to the stabling area. No licensee by virtue of this regulation shall attempt to control or monopolize proper selling to owners, trainers, or stable employees; nor shall a licensee grant a sole concession to any vendor of feed, racing supplies, or racing services.
- 12. Each licensee shall provide to the commission copies of all subordinate contracts, in the amount of \$15,000 annual gross and above, entered into by the owner, owner-operator, or operator, and such contracts shall be subject to approval of the commission.
- 13. Each licensee shall submit to the commission each calendar year a request for live racing days for the next calendar year as provided in 11 VAC 10-20-200. The holder of an unlimited license shall schedule not less than 150 days live racing days in the Commonwealth each calendar year; however, the commission may alter the number of live racing days based on what it deems to be in the best interest of the Virginia horse industry.
- 14. Each licensee shall post in a conspicuous place in every place where pari-mutuel wagering is conducted a sign that bears a toll-free telephone number for "Gamblers Anonymous" or other organization that provides assistance to compulsive gamblers.
- B. Facilities—for conducting horse racing. Each unlimited licensee shall provide all of the facilities for the conduct of horse racing so as to maintain horse racing of the highest quality and free of any corrupt, incompetent, or dishonest practices and to maintain in horse racing complete honesty and integrity.
 - 1. Each licensee shall provide for flat racing a main racing surface of at least one mile in circumference; for flat or jump racing on the turf a racing surface of at least seven-eighths of a mile in circumference; for harness racing a main racing surface of at least five-eighths of a mile in circumference; and for other types of racing a racing surface of generally accepted standards.
 - a. Prior to the first race meeting at a facility owned or operated by the holder of an unlimited license, the licensee shall provide to the commission a certified report of a qualified surveyor, certifying the grade and measurement of the distances to be run.
 - b. Distances to be run shall be measured from the starting line at a distance three feet out from the inside rail.
 - c. The surveyor's report must be approved by the commission's executive secretary prior to the first race day of the meeting.

- 2. Turf course requirements include the following:
 - a. The licensee shall maintain an adequate stockpile of growing medium, and shall provide an irrigation system or other means of adequately watering the entire turf course evenly.
 - b. All turf course paths from inside rails to turf courses shall resemble the rest of the terrain, with no rails leading from the main course to the turf courses.
 - c. A portable rail shall be secure to absorb the impact of a horse.
- 3. Main track requirements include the following:
 - 2. a. Each licensee shall provide a safety rail on the inside of each racing surface and such other fencing that is appropriate to safely enclose the racing surface for horses and riders.
 - b. The rail height shall be from 38 inches to 42 inches from the top of the cushion to the top of the rail. All top rails shall be bolted to poles and shall be smooth with no jagged edges. Rail posts shall be of a gooseneck type design and shall have no less than a 24-inch overhang with a continuous smooth elevated cover over posts.
 - c. All rails shall be constructed of materials designed to withstand the impact of a horse running at racing speed.
 - d. All rail posts shall be set in concrete at least six inches below the surface and 24 inches deep. A portable turf rail shall be secure to absorb the impact of a horse. No rail or post shall be used that will not take the impact of a horse or will break away, such as fiberglass, PVC, wood or hedges.
 - e. The design and construction of rails shall be approved by the commission prior to the first race meeting at the racetrack.
- 3. 4. Each licensee shall provide distance poles marking off the racing surface and the poles shall be painted in the following colors: quarter poles, red and white; eighth poles, green and white; and sixteenth poles, black and white. All distance poles, including photofinish mirror imaging equipment and any other equipment, shall be set back a minimum of 10 feet from the back of the inside rail.
- 4. 5. Each licensee shall provide racing surfaces whose construction, elevation, and surfaces have received scientific approval as safe and humane, adequate and proper equipment to maintain the racing surface, and sufficient trained personnel to properly operate the equipment. Daily records of maintenance shall be open for inspection.
- 6. Each licensee shall provide stabling in a sufficient amount to conduct a successful horse race meeting. The horses shall be quartered in individual stalls with separate feeding and watering facilities. Each barn, including the receiving barn, shall have a hot and cold water supply available, be well-ventilated, have proper drainage to prevent standing water and be constructed to be comfortable in all seasons during which racing is conducted.

- 6. 7. Each licensee shall provide a stabling area that is maintained in approved sanitary condition with satisfactory drainage, manure, and other refuse kept in separate boxes or containers distant from living quarters, and the boxes or containers promptly and properly removed.
- 7-8. Each licensee shall provide a systematic and effective insect control program and programs to eliminate hazards to public health and comfort in the stabling area and throughout the enclosure.
- **8.** 9. Each licensee shall provide satisfactory living quarters for persons employed in the stabling area as well as satisfactory commissary, recreation, and lavatory facilities, and maintain the facilities in a clean and sanitary manner. No employee shall be permitted to sleep in any stall or barn loft
- 9. 10. Each licensee shall provide on every racing day satisfactory sanitary toilets and wash rooms, and furnish free drinking water for patrons and persons having business within the enclosure.
- 10. Each licensee shall provide satisfactory first aid facilities with not less than two beds and attendance of a competent physician and registered nurse during racing hours who will be available to treat both patrons and permittees.
- 11. Each licensee shall provide a paddock where the horses are assembled prior to the post parade. Each licensee shall provide a public viewing area where patrons may watch the activities in the paddock. Each licensee shall also provide a sufficient number of roofed stalls so that horses may be housed during inclement weather.
- 12. Each licensee shall provide satisfactory facilities for jockeys or drivers who are participating in the day's program. The facilities shall include accommodations for rest and recreation, showers, toilets, wash basins, *reducing facilities* (sauna or steam room), arrangements for safe keeping of apparel and personal effects, and snack bar during horse race meetings.
- 13. Each licensee shall maintain an information desk where the public may make complaints regarding the facilities, operations of the licensee, or rulings of the commission. The licensee shall respond promptly to complaints, and inform the commission regarding any alleged violation of its regulations.
- 14. Each licensee shall maintain a detention test barn for use by commission employees in securing from horses which that have run a race, samples of urine, saliva, blood, or other bodily substances for chemical analysis. The detention test barn shall include a wash rack, commission veterinarian office, a walking ring, and a sufficient number of stalls each equipped with a window sufficiently large to allow the taking of samples to be witnessed from outside the stall. The detention test barn shall be located convenient to the racing surface and shall be enclosed by a fence so that unauthorized persons shall be excluded. Space shall be provided for signing in and signing out of permittees whose attendance is required in the detention test barn.
- 15. Each licensee shall maintain a receiving barn conveniently located for use by horses arriving for races

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

that are not quartered in the stabling area. The licensee shall have a sufficient number of stalls to accommodate the anticipated number of horses, hot and cold running water, and stall bedding. The licensee shall maintain the receiving barn in a clean and sanitary manner.

- 16. Each licensee shall provide and maintain lights so as to ensure adequate illumination in the stabling area and parking area. Adequacy of track lighting for night racing shall be determined by the commission.
- 17. Each licensee shall provide and maintain stands commanding an uninterrupted view of the entire racing surface for the stewards with the location to be approved by the commission. The licensee shall provide patrol judge stands so that the floor shall be at least six feet higher than the track rail. For harness racing, each licensee shall provide space for a patrol judge in the mobile starting gate which that will accompany the horses during the race.
- 18. Each licensee shall furnish office space, approved by the commission, for the commission's use within the enclosure and an appropriate number of parking spaces so that its members and staff may carry out their duties.
- 19. Each licensee shall submit to the commission, at least 30 days prior to the opening day of a meeting, a complete list of its racing officials, as set forth elsewhere in these regulations, and department heads. No person shall hold any appointment for a horse race meeting unless approved by the commission after determination that the appointee is qualified for his duties, not prohibited by any law of the Commonwealth of Virginia or regulation of the commission, and eligible to be licensed hold a permit issued by the commission.
- 20. Each licensee shall provide a condition book, or for harness racing, a condition sheet, listing the proposed races for the upcoming racing days and prepared by the racing secretary, to the commission at least one week prior to opening day. Additional condition books or condition sheets shall be provided to the commission as soon as published.
- 21. No licensee shall allow any person to *ride in a race or* exercise any horse within the enclosure unless that person is wearing a protective helmet of a type approved by the stewards and with the chin strap is buckled. For flat racing, the term "exercising" is defined to include breezing, galloping, or ponying horses.
- 22. Each licensee shall employ at least two three outriders for flat racing, at least four outriders for jump races, and steeplechase racing and at least one outrider for harness racing, to escort starters to the post and to assist in the returning of all horses to the unsaddling area for flat races. No outrider shall lead any horse that has not demonstrated unruliness, but shall assist in the control of any horse which that might cause injury to a jockey or driver or others. During racing hours, outriders will wear traditional attire. For flat race meetings, outriders shall be required to be present on the racing strip, mounted, and ready to assist in the control of any unruly horse or to recapture any loose horse, at all times when the track is open for exercising.

- 23. Each licensee shall employ for flat meets a sufficient number of valets to attend each jockey on a day's program. Valets will be under the immediate supervision and control of the clerk of scales. No valet shall be assigned to the same jockey for more than two consecutive racing days. Valets shall be responsible for the care and cleaning up of his assigned rider's apparel and equipment; shall ensure his rider has the proper equipment and attend the saddling of his rider's mount; and shall attend the weighing out of his rider. No valet or other jockey room attendant may place a wager for himself or another, directly or indirectly, on races run while he is serving as a valet. Each licensee shall provide uniform attire for valets who shall wear the uniform attire at all times while performing their duties within public view.
- 24. No licensee shall allow any person to ride in a race or to exercise any horse within the enclosure unless that person is wearing a protective safety vest. The vest shall be designed to provide shock-absorbing protection to the upper body of at least a rating of five as defined by the British Equestrian Trade Association (BETA).
- C. Equipment—for conducting horse racing. Each unlimited licensee shall provide all of the equipment for the conduct of horse racing so as to maintain horse racing of the highest quality and free of any corrupt, incompetent, dishonest, or unprincipled practices, and to maintain in horse racing complete honesty and integrity.
 - 1. Each licensee shall maintain at least two operable starting gates for flat meetings and two operable mobile starting gates for harness racing. The licensee shall have in attendance one or more persons qualified to keep the starting gates in good working order and provide for periodic inspection. For flat meetings, the licensee shall also make at least one starting gate along with adequate personnel available for schooling for two hours each day during training hours, exclusive of nonrace days. For flat race meetings, the licensee shall have an adequate number of assistant starters to ensure the integrity of the start and to provide safe conditions for horse and rider. If a flat race is started at a place other than in a chute, the licensee shall maintain in good operating condition backup equipment for moving the starting gate. The backup equipment must be immediately available to replace the primary moving equipment in the event of failure. For harness racing meetings, a mobile starting gate shall be made available for qualifying races and schooling.
 - 2. Each licensee shall maintain photo-finish equipment to assist the stewards and placing judges, where employed for flat race meetings, in determining the order of finish of each race. The licensee shall provide at the finish line two photo-finish cameras for photographing the finish of races; one camera to be held in reserve two electronic photofinish devices with mirror images to photograph the finish of each race. The location and operation of the photofinish devices must be approved by the commission before its first use in a race. The licensee shall ensure that the photofinish devices are calibrated before the first day of each race meeting and at other times as required by the commission. The standards and operations of the photo-finish camera as well

as the methodology of the personnel shall be subject to the approval of the stewards:

- a. The photo-finish photographer shall promptly furnish the stewards and placing judges prints as they are requested, and the photographer will promptly inform the stewards and placing judges of any malfunction of his equipment;
- b. A print of a photo finish where the placing of horse is a half of length or less shall be displayed either by posting copies of the print or video means to the public promptly after the race has been declared "official"; and
- c. Each licensee shall be responsible for maintaining a file of photo finishes of all races for one year after the closing of the horse race meeting.
- 3. Each licensee shall provide color video tape recordings of the running of each race clearly showing the position and actions of the horse and jockeys or drivers at close range. Each licensee shall provide at least three cameras to record panoramic and head-on views of the race. One camera shall be located on the finish line:
 - a. Promptly after a race has been declared "official," video tape recordings shall be replayed for the benefit of the public. In those races where there was a disqualification, video tapes of the head-on views may also be shown with an explanation by the public address announcer; and.
 - b. The licensee shall safeguard the tapes of all videotapes for one year after the close of the horse race meeting and promptly deliver to the commission copies of videotapes of those races where there has been an objection, inquiry, protest, or disqualification.
 - c. The stewards may, in their discretion, direct a video camera operator to videotape the activities of any horses or persons handling horses prior to, during or following a race.
- 4. Each licensee shall provide an electronic timing system. The system shall have the capability of timing the leading horse in at least hundredths of a second. Each licensee shall also provide a qualified person to manually time each race, including splits of each quarter of a mile, in the event of a malfunction of the electronic system.
- 5. Each licensee shall provide an internal communication system which links the stewards' stand, racing secretary's office, pari-mutuel department, jockeys' or drivers' room, paddock, detention test barn, commission veterinarian's office, starting gate, film patrol office, ambulances, public address announcer, patrol judges, and any other personnel designated by the commission.
- 6. Each licensee shall provide a public address system whereby calls of the races and other pertinent information may be communicated to the public. This system shall be utilized by a qualified person, and the system shall have the capability of transmitting throughout the stabling area.
- 7. Each licensee shall restrict the use of all external communication devices for a period of time beginning 30

minutes before post time of the first race and ending when the last race is declared "official":

- a. The licensee shall render inoperable each telephone or other instrument of communication located in the enclosure, other than those designated for the exclusive use of the commission;
- b. The licensee may not permit an individual within the enclosure to receive a telephone call, telegram, or message from outside the enclosure without the approval of the stewards:
- c. Each licensee shall confiscate until the end of the restricted time period a portable telephone, transmitter, or other instrument of external communication, including a car phone, located within the enclosure; and
- d. The licensee may have telephone or telegraph systems within the enclosure for the benefit of the media, but no information regarding the results shall be transmitted out of the enclosure until the results are official except for races that are broadcast or televised live.
- 8. 7. Each licensee shall provide a totalizator and employ qualified personnel to operate the system, provide maintenance of the hardware, software, and ancillary wagering devices, and be able to perform emergency repairs in case of emergencies. The licensee shall also provide a mutuel board in the infield where approximate odds, amounts wagered in the win, place, and show pools on each betting interest, and other pertinent information may be prominently displayed to the public:
 - a. The totalizator shall maintain at least two independent sets of pool totals and compare them at least once every 60 seconds. The totalizator shall record in a system log file any difference in the final pool totals;
 - b. The totalizator shall have the capability of calculating the mutuel pools, approximate odds, probable payoffs and display them to the public at intervals of not more than 60 seconds;
 - c. The totalizator shall have the capability of being locked and wagering terminated automatically at the command of a steward. Any failure of the system to lock at the start of the race shall be reported immediately by the mutuel manager to the stewards;
 - d. The totalizator shall have the capability of displaying the probable payoffs payouts on various combinations in the daily double, perfecta exacta, and quinella wagering, and displaying the payoffs to the public;
 - e. The totalizator shall have the capability of recording the wagering by individual wagers, including the amount wagered, the betting interest, and the mutuel window where the wager was placed. The records of the wagering shall be promptly made available to the commission upon request. The licensee shall preserve the records of the wagering for 30 days one year after closing of the horse race meeting. The records shall not be destroyed without permission of the commission:

- f. The personnel operating the totalizator shall report immediately to the stewards any malfunction in the system, or what they perceive to be any unusual patterns in the wagering;
- g. The totalizator personnel shall make available to the commission any special reports or requests that may assist the commission in carrying out its statutory duties and responsibilities for the conduct of horse racing; and
- h. The commission may require an independent certified audit of the totalizator's software attesting to the accuracy of its calculations and the integrity of its accounting processes.
- 9. 8. Each licensee shall provide at least one human ambulance and at least one horse equine ambulance within the enclosure at all times during those hours when the racing and training surface is open for racing and training exercising. The ambulances shall be manned and equipped to render immediate assistance, and shall be stationed at a location approved by the stewards.
 - a. The equine ambulance must be a covered vehicle that is low to the ground and large enough to accommodate a horse in distress. The equine ambulance must be able to navigate on the racetrack during all weather conditions and transport a horse outside the enclosure.
 - b. The equine ambulance must be equipped with large portable screens to shield a horse from public view, ramps to facilitate loading a horse, adequate means of loading a horse that is down, a rear door and a door on each side, a padded interior, a movable partition to initially provide more room to load a horse and to later restrict a horse's movement, a shielded area for the person who is attending to the horse, and an adequate area for the storage of water and veterinary medicines and equipment.
 - c. A licensee shall not conduct a race unless an equine ambulance or a commission veterinarian-approved substitute is readily available.
 - d. The equine ambulance, its supplies and attendants, and the operating procedures for the vehicle must be approved by the commission veterinarian.
 - e. The licensee shall maintain a properly equipped human ambulance, staffed with certified paramedics at any time the racetrack is open for racing or exercising horses. If the ambulance is being used to transport an individual, horses may not be raced or exercised until the ambulance is replaced.
 - f. Unless otherwise approved by the stewards, a human ambulance shall follow the field at a safe distance during the running of races, or in the event of inclement weather, two ambulances shall be parked to render immediate service. The human ambulance must be parked at an entrance to the racing surface unless the ambulance is being used to transport a person or when it is following the field during the running of a race.
 - g. During a racing day, the licensee shall maintain a first aid room equipped with at least two beds and other

- appropriate equipment, and the services of at least one physician during flat race meetings.
- 9. Each licensee shall maintain lighting for the racetrack and the patron facilities that is adequate to ensure the safety and security of the patrons, participants and horses. Lighting to ensure the proper operation of the videotape and photofinish devices must be approved by the commission.
 - a. The licensee shall maintain adequate additional lighting in the stable area as required by the commission.
 - b. If racing is conducted at night, the licensee shall maintain a backup lighting system that is sufficient to ensure the safety of patrons, participants and horses.
- D. Provisions for safety, security and fire prevention Safety. Each unlimited licensee shall employ sufficient trained personnel to provide for the safety and security of the public and others who have business within the enclosure. Each licensee shall also take all measures to prevent the outbreak of fires within the enclosure and develop plans for the quick extinguishing of any fires that should occur.
 - 1. Each licensee shall provide sufficient trained security personnel under the supervision of a qualified director of security. If the licensee contracts with a private security service, the security service must be bonded and meet all applicable licensing requirements. If the licensee establishes its own security force, then director of security shall forward to the commission detailed plans for the screening, hiring, and training of its own personnel.
 - 2. The director of security of each licensee shall cooperate fully with the commission and its staff, federal and state law enforcement agencies, local police and fire departments, and industry security services to enforce all laws and regulations to ensure that horse racing in the Commonwealth of Virginia is of the highest integrity.
 - 3. Each licensee shall develop a detailed security plan describing the equipment, i.e., fences, locks, alarms, and monitoring devices; the procedures to admit persons to restricted areas, i.e., stabling area, paddock, jockeys' or drivers' room, vault, mutuel lines, totalizator room, and post-race detention test barn; and the trained personnel in sufficient numbers to provide for the safety and security of all persons during racing and nonracing hours.
 - 4. Each licensee may provide a perimeter fence around the entire enclosure, but shall fence off the stabling area. The entrance to the stabling area shall be guarded on a 24-hour basis by uniformed security personnel so that unauthorized persons shall be denied access to the restricted stabling area. The licensee shall also provide for routine patrolling by uniformed security personnel on a 24-hour basis within the stabling area.
 - 5. During racing hours, the licensee shall provide uniformed security personnel to guard the entrances to the paddock, jockeys' or drivers' room, stewards' stand, and other restricted areas as may be deemed appropriate by the commission so that unauthorized persons shall be denied access to them.

- 6. The licensee's director of security shall submit to the commission and Virginia State Police a written report describing every arrest or completed incident of security investigation or rule violation including the person charged, the charges against the person, the present whereabouts of the person, and disposition of the charges, if any.
- 7. The licensee's director of security shall submit to the commission a detailed plan describing the procedures to be followed in case of fire or any other emergency within the enclosure. The plan shall contain the resources immediately available within the surrounding communities to cope with fire or other emergencies, route of evacuation for the public, controlling traffic, and those resources available from the surrounding communities for police, fire, ambulance, and rescue services.
- 8. Each licensee shall observe and enforce all state and local building codes and regulations pertaining to fire prevention, and shall prohibit the following:
 - a. Smoking in horse stalls, feed rooms, or under the shedrow;
 - b. Open fires and oil or gasoline burning lanterns or lamps in the stable area;
 - The unsafe use of electrical appliances or other devices which would pose a hazard to structures, horses, permittees, or the public; and
 - d. Keeping flammable materials including cleaning fluids or solvents in the stabling area.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-78A; Filed August 8, 2003, 10:58 a.m.

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 11 VAC 10-20. Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-200).

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m.

Public comments may be submitted until November 7, 2003.

(See Calendar of Events section for additional information)

Agency Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418, or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

<u>Basis:</u> The Virginia Racing Commission derives its statutory authority to promulgate regulations from the provisions of § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia. The Code states, in part in subdivision 3, "The Commission shall promulgate regulations and conditions under which horse racing with pari-mutuel wagering shall be conducted in the Commonwealth, and all such other regulations it deems necessary and appropriate to effect the purposes of this chapter."

<u>Purpose:</u> In accepting the recommendations of its Rules Committee, the Virginia Racing Commission has amended two subsections of the regulations pertaining to request for

racing days. First, it has become evident to the horse racing community that making a request for racing days cannot be effectively accomplished by September 1. The Rules Committee and the Commission agreed that this date should be established by the Commission in late summer or early autumn. Second, there has been some misunderstanding over the provisions of making amendments to requests. The Rules Committee and the commission agreed that this matter must be clarified. Through these amendments, the regulations will protect the health, safety and welfare of the participants in horse racing.

<u>Substance:</u> The establishment of a date by the commission would facilitate the request for racing days. Originally, the commission established September 1 as the date for making requests for racing days; however, often the licensee and horsemen wanted to have the results of the most recent meet before making a schedule for the coming year. This amendment would allow the commission as well as the licensee and horsemen to have the benefit of this matter.

In addition, there has been some misunderstanding concerning the amendment of requests for racing days. The revision of the wording of this subsection should clarify the matter before the licensee and horsemen.

Issues: The primary advantages and disadvantages to the horse racing community are important. By establishing a later date, rather than the specific September 1 date, the licensee and horsemen will be in a better position to make more accurate economic plans for the following year of racing. However, it is a disadvantage to have the date set back further from September to October, November or December because this limits the amount of publicity that can be generated.

The primary advantages and disadvantages to the Virginia Racing Commission are essential. By using a later date, this will allow for the potential of maximizing the revenue available to the Commonwealth and localities. Again, the later date could set back the planning by horsemen to send horses to the race meeting.

<u>Fiscal Impact:</u> There will be no projected cost to the Virginia Racing Commission because of new substantive provisions and there will be no projected costs to the localities. Further, there will be no projected costs to the licensee or the horsemen.

Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis: The Department of Planning and Budget (DPB) has analyzed the economic impact of this proposed regulation in accordance with § 2.2-4007 H of the Administrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 21 (02). Section 2.2-4007 H requires that such economic impact analyses include, but need not be limited to, the projected number of businesses or other entities to whom the regulation would apply, the identity of any localities and types of businesses or other entities particularly affected, the projected number of persons and employment positions to be affected, the projected costs to affected businesses or entities to implement or comply with the regulation, and the impact on the use and value of private property. The analysis presented below represents DPB's best estimate of these economic impacts.

Summary of the proposed regulation. The proposed change will provide discretion to the Virginia Racing Commission (the Commission) to establish a deadline for a licensee to place a request for racing days.

Estimated economic impact. Current regulations require the licensee to submit the request for racing days for the following calendar year to the commission no later than September 1. The proposed amendment will allow the commission to set a final submission date at any time at its discretion. Currently, Colonial Downs located in New Kent is the sole entity with a license for the ownership and operation of a racetrack to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges in the Commonwealth. Thus, this change would specifically affect Colonial Downs.

The two main rationales for regulating horse racing activities are ensuring minimum health and safety levels during racing activities and ensuring fairness in pari-mutuel wagering. In the absence of regulatory requirements, it may not be in the best interest of an owner or operator licensee to provide these features. Thus, these regulations protect the interests of parties involved in horse racing. However, other than the conduct of wagering, horse racing is very similar to variety of many other sports competition activities. That is horse racing is a private business with the ultimate goal to make profits. Thus, from an economic point of view, the regulatory requirements must focus solely on ensuring minimum levels of health and safety and fairness in wagering. The economic value of horse racing to Virginia will likely be maximized when all commercial aspects of horse racing business are left to the discretion of the licensee so that it can maximize profits.

Under the current regulations, a licensee must submit the request for racing days for the following calendar year to the commission no later than September 1. This requirement seems to interfere with the commercial aspects of horse racing activities. In fact, according to the commission, making a request for racing days cannot be effectively accomplished by the September 1 deadline. The reason for this inconvenience is that both the licensee and horse owners prefer to have the results of the most recent meet prior to developing a schedule for the upcoming year. Thus, this current requirement is probably costly for the licensee and the horse owners as they are forced to make business decisions with less information. In addition, it is not clear how this September 1 deadline contributes to ensuring health and safety and fairness in wagering.

The proposed change will remove the requirement to submit the request for racing days by September 1 so that the commission may establish a date anytime during the year. Although not specified in the regulations, the commission currently plans to establish the November 1 as the deadline to submit the requests. While moving the deadline closer to the start of the new racing year will leave the schedule unknown for additional two months, leave less time to generate publicity for the races, and potentially have a negative impact on the licensee and the horsemen in terms of smaller purses, this change will allow the commission the flexibility to respond to requests it receives from the licensee. With this change, the licensee and the horsemen will have a chance to observe the results in the most recent additional two months and make a

better-informed decision about the next year's schedule. Since, the rational licensee and horse owners will use this information to their advantage, this change is expected to provide net benefits to them. Thus, if the commission is responsive to the requests it receives from the licensees in establishing the deadline for submission of racing days, this change will most likely benefit the licensees and probably the horse owners.

Businesses and entities affected. The proposed regulations primarily apply to owner's or operator's licensees who are authorized to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges. Currently, Colonial Downs is the only entity with an owner's and operator's license in the In addition, approximately 1,947 horse Commonwealth. owners would also be affected per year. Moreover, employees, particularly jockeys and exercise riders, and people attending races or placing wagers may be indirectly affected. There are approximately 500 employees working permanently or temporarily at the racetrack or satellite facilities. Of these, it is estimated that approximately 40 are jockeys and about 80 are exercise riders at a race meeting. The total attendance at the racetrack and the satellite facilities was 523,216 in fiscal year 2002.

Localities particularly affected. The proposed regulations apply throughout the Commonwealth.

Projected impact on employment. The proposed changes are not anticipated to have a significant effect on employment.

Effects on the use and value of private property. If this change improves the profits of the licensee and horse owners from better-informed scheduling, there is likely to be a positive impact on the value of businesses involved with operating a racetrack and owning a race horse.

Agency's Response to the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis: The Virginia Racing Commission is in general agreement with the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis.

Summary:

The proposed amendments (i) respecify the date at which the licensee is to make a request for racing days and (ii) clarify the manner for making an amendment to a properly submitted request.

11 VAC 10-20-200. Request for racing days.

A. Generally. A holder of an owner-operator's or operator's license has the privilege of conducting horse race meetings at facilities, licensed by the commission, with pari-mutuel wagering for a period of 20 years, subject to annual review by the commission. A holder of an owner-operator's or operator's license shall submit an annual request to the commission for racing days.

B. Where to file request. The licensee shall submit the a request for racing days for the following calendar year in writing to the main general business office of the commission no later than September 1, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays, for the following calendar year at a time designated by the commission. The commission may, in its discretion,

extend the deadline as new horse racing facilities are licensed and completed.

 A request to be sent by certified mail shall be addressed to:

Executive Secretary
Virginia Racing Commission
Post Office Box 1123 208
Richmond, VA 23218 New Kent, VA 23124

2. A request to be hand-delivered shall be delivered to:

Executive Secretary Virginia Racing Commission 1500 East Main Street Suite 301 Richmond, VA 23219

- 3. A request delivered by hand or by certified mail will be timely only if received at the main office of the commission by 5 p.m. on or before the date prescribed.
- 4. Delivery to other than the commission's main office or to commission personnel by hand or by mail is not acceptable.
- 5. The licensee assumes full responsibility for the method chosen to deliver the request.
- C. Content of request. The licensee's request in writing shall include a statement of how the request will provide for the promotion, sustenance, and growth of a native industry, in a manner consistent with the health, safety and welfare of the people, except that the commission, in its discretion, may waive the foregoing. The request shall include the following:
 - 1. A request, signed by an officer of the licensee, for assignment of racing days;
 - 2. A statement of the precise nature and extent of the assignment requested including the total number of racing days requested, the dates within which the racing days are to be conducted and the dark days, the breed or breeds to be utilized, the type or types of racing to be offered, the horse racing facility where the racing days are to be conducted, the hours of racing, and the projected purse structure.
 - 3. A detailed statement of how the request meets the criteria established in 11 VAC 10-20-220 C; and
 - 4. Any other documentation the licensee deems material to ensure a complete understanding of the request.
- D. Revision Amendment of request. A licensee may at any time request a revision of amend a properly submitted request for racing days for commission approval.
- E. Rescission of racing days. The commission may in its discretion rescind one or more racing days assigned to a licensee, if the commission finds that the licensee has not or will not meet the terms of its license. Any days rescinded may be reassigned to another licensee.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-78C; Filed August 8, 2003, 11:00 a.m.

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 11 VAC 10-20. Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (amending 11 VAC 10-20-220).

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m.

Public comments may be submitted until November 7, 2003.

(See Calendar of Events section for additional information)

Agency Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418, or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

<u>Basis:</u> The Virginia Racing Commission derives its statutory authority to promulgate regulations from the provisions of § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia. The Code states, in part in subdivision 3, "The Commission shall promulgate regulations and conditions under which horse racing with pari-mutuel wagering shall be conducted in the Commonwealth, and all such other regulations it deems necessary and appropriate to effect the purposes of this chapter."

<u>Purpose:</u> In accepting the recommendations of its Rules Committee, the Virginia Racing Commission has amended three substantive provisions of the regulations pertaining to the assignment of racing days. First, the commission will be allowed to consider the assignment or amendment of racing days without the 15-day delay in the matter. Second, the commission can consider a change in the racing days, upon application by the licensee, at any time during the calendar year. Third, the licensee can submit a letter of credit instead of a bond with surety to cover any indebtedness. Through these amendments, the regulations will protect the health, safety and welfare of the participants in horse racing.

<u>Substance</u>: The experience of the commission has been that the assignment or the revision of racing days should be considered at the earliest possible moment. Hence, the commission, the licensee and horsemen agreed that the imposition of a 15-day delay should be avoided unless the commission determines that a public hearing is necessary. Also, the commission may change the assignment of racing, upon application by the licensee, at any time during the calendar year. Finally, the commission can accept a letter of credit or a bond with surety to cover indebtedness upon the licensee.

<u>Issues:</u> The primary advantages and disadvantages to the horse racing community are important. The amendments allow for a more expeditious consideration of the assignment and revision of racing days. The amendments make the revision of racing days, upon the application of the licensee, at any time of the year rather than the early part of the calendar year. The amendments allow the use of a letter of credit or a bond with surety for indebtedness upon the licensee.

<u>Fiscal Impact:</u> There will be no projected cost to the Virginia Racing Commission because of new substantive provisions and there will be no projected costs to the localities. Further,

there will be no projected costs to the licensee or the horsemen.

Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis: The Department of Planning and Budget (DPB) has analyzed the economic impact of this proposed regulation in accordance with § 2.2-4007 H of the Administrative Process Act and Executive Order Number 21 (02). Section 2.2-4007 H requires that such economic impact analyses include, but need not be limited to, the projected number of businesses or other entities to whom the regulation would apply, the identity of any localities and types of businesses or other entities particularly affected, the projected number of persons and employment positions to be affected, the projected costs to affected businesses or entities to implement or comply with the regulation, and the impact on the use and value of private property. The analysis presented below represents DPB's best estimate of these economic impacts.

Summary of the proposed regulation. Pursuant to amendments to § 59.1-380 of the Code of Virginia in 2000, the proposed changes will allow the Virginia Racing Commission (the commission) to accept a letter of credit in addition to a surety bond from an owner's licensee to cover any indebtedness incurred and will reduce the amount of surety required from at least \$1 million to any amount the commission determines sufficient to cover such indebtedness. Additionally, two other changes will allow the commission to consider a request to change the assignment of racing days at its next meeting without having to wait for 15 days and once the request is approved allow the commission to change the schedule without having to wait until the beginning of the calendar year.

Estimated economic impact. Prior to 2000, the Code of Virginia required \$1 million or higher amount in a surety bond to cover any indebtedness of a licensee to purses, awards to horsemen, and monies due to the Commonwealth. proposed changes will allow the use of a letter of credit in addition to a surety bond and allow the commission to determine the amount of security needed to cover such indebtedness. The commission believes that letter of credit is less expensive and easier to convert to cash if needed. Thus, the potential administrative costs to the commission are probably lower should it need to recover any monies from the licensee. Currently, the licensee provides letters of credit instead of a surety bond. Since it is optional to use letters of credit, it could be reliably inferred that the licensee would use it only if it is economically more beneficial than the surety bond.

Also, allowing the commission to determine the amount of surety rather than requiring a standard at least \$1 million security for potential indebtedness would provide economic benefits to the licensee. From an economic point of view, the amount of surety should be just enough to cover potential risks arising from indebtedness, or the security should be commensurate with the amount of risk taken. Since the statutory change went into effect, the commission requires \$200,000 security to cover purses and \$200,000 to cover taxes due to the Commonwealth, or a total of \$400,000 as opposed to previously required at least \$1 million. It is also known that the cost of a letter of credit is about 2% of its face

value and the licensee prefers letters of credit now. These indicate that providing authority to establish a surety amount below \$1 million reduces the costs to the licensee from \$20,000 to \$8,000, or provides \$12,000 net benefits to the licensee every year. Although this change has the potential to introduce some administrative costs to the commission while determining the appropriate amount of security, they are probably minor as it is probably easy to estimate the potential sizes of purses and taxes based on the readily available statistical records for similar races. However, the potential economic effects expected from these statutory changes already occurred when they went in to effect. Thus, these changes are not expected to produce any significant economic effects upon promulgation of these regulations as they are already realized in practice.

In addition to the statutory changes, the proposed regulations will provide more flexibility to the commission to revise the assignment of racing days when it receives such requests. Currently, the commission, upon receiving a request for racing days from a licensee, considers them at least 15 days later, and has to wait until the beginning of next calendar year to change the assignment. The proposed changes will remove these two limitations so that requests can be considered at the next regular meeting without having to wait 15 days and if the request is approved, the assignment for racing days can be changed immediately. These two changes provide more flexibility to both the licensee and the commission and will probably allow both to react to unforeseeable events more expeditiously. Since it is at the discretion of the licensee to submit a request, an expeditious process would probably increase potential benefits of such a request. And, if the administrative costs of an expedited process do not outweigh the benefits to the licensee, these changes would provide net economic benefits.

Businesses and entities affected. The proposed regulations primarily apply to owner's licensees who are authorized to conduct a horse race meeting with pari-mutuel wagering privileges. Currently, Colonial Downs is the only entity with an owner's and operator's license in the Commonwealth. In addition, 1,947 horse owners would also be affected annually. Moreover, employees, particularly jockeys and exercise riders, and people attending races or placing wagers may be indirectly affected. There are approximately 500 employees working permanently or temporarily at the racetrack or satellite facilities. Of these, it is estimated that approximately 40 are jockeys and about 80 are exercise riders at a race meeting. The total attendance at the racetrack and the satellite facilities was 523,216 in fiscal year 2002.

Localities particularly affected. The proposed regulations apply throughout the Commonwealth. However, cities of New Kent, Brunswick, Chesapeake, Hampton, Richmond, and Henrico County receive taxes from pari-mutuel wagering proceeds, which are covered by the surety requirements being amended with this action. It is in this sense that these localities are particularly affected.

Projected impact on employment. The proposed change's effect on employment is not known because the effect on the horse racing activity is uncertain.

Effects on the use and value of private property. If this change improves the profits of the licensee from more flexibility to change the assignment of racing days, there is likely to be a positive impact on the value of businesses involved with operating a racetrack.

<u>Agency's Response to the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis:</u> The Virginia Racing Commission is in general agreement with the Department of Planning and Budget's Economic Impact Analysis.

Summary:

The proposed amendments (i) allow the commission to consider an assignment or revision of racing days at its next regular meeting without waiting 15 days after receipt of such request, (ii) change the racing days upon application by the licensee instead of at the beginning of any calendar year, and (iii) allow for a letter of credit instead of a bond with surety.

11 VAC 10-20-220. Assignment of racing days.

- A. Generally. The commission shall promptly consider a request for racing days and assign racing days to a licensee.
- B. Consideration of requests. Upon receipt of a request for assignment or revision of racing days, the commission shall consider the request at its next regular meeting, which is scheduled 15 days after receipt of a request, and may, in its discretion, assign the racing days as requested, modify the request, deny the request, or hold a public hearing pursuant to the following procedures.
 - 1. If the commission deems a hearing is appropriate, the commission shall send written notice to the licensee and give due notice of the public hearing. The notice must include a brief description of the request, a statement that persons wishing to participate may do so in writing, the time and place of any public hearing on the request, and the earliest and latest date which that the commission may act.
 - 2. The licensee will be afforded the opportunity to make an oral presentation, and the licensee or its representative shall be available to answer inquiries by the commissioners.
 - 3. Any affected parties, including horsemen, breeders, employees of the licensee, representatives of other state and local agencies will be afforded the opportunity to make oral presentations. The public may be afforded the opportunity to make oral presentations and shall be given the opportunity to submit written comments.
 - 4. If, after a request is received, the commission determines that additional information from the licensee is necessary to fully understand the request, the commission shall direct the licensee to submit additional information.
 - 5. If the commission further determines it is necessary for a full understanding of a request, the commission shall request the licensee or a person submitting comments to appear before the commission. The commission shall request the appearance in writing at least five days in advance.
 - 6. If a licensee fails to comply with the foregoing, the commission may deny the request for racing days.

- 7. A record of the proceedings shall be kept, either by electronic means or by court reporter, and the record shall be maintained until any time limits for any subsequent court appeals have expired.
- 8. Three or more members of the commission are sufficient to hear the presentations. If the chairman of the commission is not present, the commissioners shall choose one from among them to preside over the hearing.
- C. Criteria for assignment of racing days. The commission, in making its determination, must consider the success and integrity of horse racing; the public health and safety, and welfare; public interest, necessity and convenience; as well as the following factors:
 - 1. The integrity of the licensee;
 - 2. The financial resources of the licensee;
 - 3. The ability of the licensee to conduct horse racing, including the licensee's facilities, systems, managers, and personnel;
 - 4. Past compliance of the licensee with statutes, regulations, and orders regarding horse racing with pari-mutuel wagering privileges;
 - 5. The licensee's market, including area, population, and demographics;
 - 6. The performance of the horse race meeting with previously assigned dates;
 - 7. The impact of the assignment of racing days on the economic viability of the horse racing facility including attendance and pari-mutuel handle;
 - 8. The quantity and quality of economic development and employment generated;
 - 9. Commonwealth tax revenues from racing and related economic activity;
 - 10. The entertainment and recreation opportunities for residents of the Commonwealth;
 - 11. The breeds of horse racing;
 - 12. The quality of racing;
 - 13. The availability and quality of horses;
 - 14. The development of horse racing;
 - 15. The quality of the horse racing facility;
 - 16. Security;
 - 17. Purses;
 - 18. Benefits to Virginia breeders and horse owners;
 - 19. Stability in racing dates:
 - 20. Competition among horse racing facilities, other racing days and with other providers of entertainment and recreation as well as its effects;
 - 21. The social effects;
 - 22. The environmental effects;

Proposed Regulations

- 23. Community and government support;
- 24. Sentiment of horsemen; and
- 25. Any other factors related to the assignment of racing days which that the commission deems crucial to its decision-making as long as the same factors are considered with regard to all requests.
- D. Assigning racing days. In assigning racing days to a licensee, the commission shall designate in writing the total number of racing days assigned, the dates within which the racing days are to be conducted and dark days, the breed or breeds to be utilized, the type or types of racing to be offered, the horse racing facility where the racing days will be conducted, and the hours of racing.
 - 1. The commission shall approve, deny or give its qualified approval to a request for racing days within 45 days after a public hearing, if a public hearing was held on the request.
 - 2. Upon application by the licensee, the commission may, in its discretion, change at the beginning of any calendar year the assignment of racing days previously made.
 - 3. The commission shall require a bond with surety or within the a letter of credit in an amount of \$1 million or a higher amount as the commission may require it determines to be sufficient to cover any indebtedness, including but not limited to purses, awards to horsemen and moneys due the Commonwealth of Virginia, incurred by the licensee.
- E. Denial of request final. The denial of a request by the commission shall be final unless appealed by the licensee under the provisions of these regulations.

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-78B; Filed August 8, 2003, 11:02 a.m.

FINAL REGULATIONS

For information concerning Final Regulations, see Information Page.

Symbol Key

Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. *Italic type* indicates new text. Language which has been stricken indicates text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a change from the proposed text of the regulation.

TITLE 12. HEALTH

STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 12 VAC 5-218. Rules and Regulations Governing Outpatient Health Data Reporting (adding 12 VAC 5-218-10 through [12 VAC 5-218-70 12 VAC 5-218-60]).

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-276.6 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: October 8, 2003.

Agency Contact: Calvin Reynolds, Director, Health Statistics, Department of Health, 1601 Willow Lawn Drive, Suite 237, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 662-6276, FAX (804) 662-7261 or e-mail creynolds@vdh.state.va.us.

Summary:

This regulation implements the Code of Virginia requirement for the reporting of certain outpatient surgical procedures when performed at ambulatory surgical centers, hospital outpatient departments and physicians' offices.

The regulation defines the information to be submitted, timing of submission and electronic format to be employed as well as exceptions to electronic reporting.

The proposed section pertaining to the establishment of an annual fee is removed from the final regulation.

Summary of Public Comments and Agency's Response: No public comments were received by the promulgating agency.

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The proposed regulation was adopted as published in 19:10 VA.R. 1449-1455 January 27, 2003, with the changes identified below. Pursuant to § 2.2-4031 of the Code of Virginia, the adopted regulation is not published at length; however, the sections that have changed since publication of the proposed are set out.

CHAPTER 218.

RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING OUTPATIENT HEALTH DATA REPORTING.

12 VAC 5-218-10 through 12 VAC 5-218-60. [No change from proposed.]

[12 VAC 5-218-70. Establishment of annual fee.

There shall be no fees levied for outpatient surgical data submitted for the first four calendar quarters of data submission.

VA.R. Doc. No. R02-51; Filed August 15, 2003, 12:18 p.m.

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 12 VAC 5-407. Procedures for the Submission of Health Maintenance Organization Quality of Care Performance Information (adding 12 VAC 5-407-10 through 12 VAC 5-407-120).

* * * * * * *

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-276.5 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: October 8, 2003.

Agency Contact: Margot Fritts, Department of Health, 1500 East Main Street, Suite 227, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-5412, FAX (804) 371-0116.

Summary:

The regulation implements legislation passed during the 2000 General Assembly that requires all health maintenance organizations (HMO) licensed in Virginia to submit quality of care data to the State Health Commissioner. This data will be published and made available to consumers who make health benefit enrollment decisions. HMOs will be charged a fee, not to exceed \$3,000 per year, to cover the cost of compiling, storing, and making the data available to consumers.

Amendments to the proposed regulation (i) change the date of the biennial evaluation required concerning the impact and effectiveness of collecting and making available the Health Employer Data and Information Set (HEDIS) and (ii) change the deadline for notifying HMOs of the process for data submission.

<u>Summary of Public Comments and Agency's Response:</u> A summary of comments made by the public and the agency's response may be obtained from the promulgating agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of Regulations.

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The proposed regulation was adopted as published in 18:20 VA.R. 2552-2555 June 17, 2002, with the changes identified below. Pursuant to § 2.2-4031 of the Code of Virginia, the adopted regulation is not published at length; however, the sections that have changed since publication of the proposed are set out.

12 VAC 5-407-10 through 12 VAC 5-407-60 [No change from proposed.]

12 VAC 5-407-70. Process for data submission.

A. Before [March 1 January 1] of each year, the commissioner shall submit to each HMO in writing the process required for data submission, obtaining a waiver from reporting and the amount of the fee to be paid. HMOs providing HEDIS or any other quality of care or performance information set directly to the commissioner shall submit the data by September 15 of each year.

Volume 19, Issue 26

Final Regulations

B. The nonprofit organization shall publish annually the quality information data before December 31.

12 VAC 5-407-80 through 12 VAC 5-407-100. [No change from proposed.]

12 VAC 5-407-110. Biennial evaluation.

A. The board shall evaluate biennially the impact and effectiveness of collecting and making available HEDIS or any other quality of care or performance information set and the appropriateness of the fee structure. This evaluation shall be completed by [October 1 January 15].

B. As part of the biennial evaluation, the board may consult with the HMOs and the nonprofit organization to determine whether changes should be made to the HEDIS or any other quality of care or performance information set requirements.

12 VAC 5-407-120. [No change from proposed.]

VA.R. Doc. No. R01-70; Filed August 15, 2003, 12:17 p.m.

* * * * * * *

Title of Regulation: 12 VAC 5-550. Board of Health Regulations Governing Vital Records (amending 12 VAC 5-550-30, 12 VAC 5-550-70, 12 VAC 5-550-90 through 12 VAC 5-550-120, 12 VAC 5-550-130, 12 VAC 5-550-140, 12 VAC 5-550-150, 12 VAC 5-550-190, 12 VAC 5-550-200, 12 VAC 5-550-210, 12 VAC 5-550-230 through 12 VAC 5-550-260, 12 VAC 5-550-280 through 12 VAC 5-550-330, 12 VAC 5-550-350 through 12 VAC 5-550-410, 12 VAC 5-550-430 through 12 VAC 5-550-470, 12 VAC 5-550-510, and 12 VAC 5-550-520; adding 12 VAC 5-550-5 [and 12 VAC 5-550-125]; repealing 12 VAC 5-550-10 and 12 VAC 5-550-40).

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-250 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: October 8, 2003.

Agency Contact: Deborah Little-Bowser, State Registrar of Vital Records, Department of Health, 1601 Willow Lawn Drive, Suite 275, Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 662-6200, FAX (804) 786-0648 or e-mail dlittle@vdh.state.va.us.

Summary:

The amendments (i) provide for the electronic reporting of births; (ii) allow delayed reporting of births when warranted; (iii) specify information needed to evidence home births; (iv) establish protections against the unauthorized, unwarranted, and indiscriminate disclosure of vital records; (v) increase the fee for issuance of a vital record and charge an administrative fee when documents are amended or when a delayed birth certificate is requested one year or more after the event; and (vi) allow for administratively amending a mother's name and a given name of a child on a birth certificate with supporting evidence.

A change was made to the proposed regulation allowing parents who have had a fetal death of 20 weeks or more gestation to receive upon request a certificate of birth resulting in a stillbirth.

<u>Summary of Public Comments and Agency's Response:</u> A summary of comments made by the public and the agency's response may be obtained from the promulgating agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of Regulations.

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The proposed regulation was adopted as published in 19:6 VA.R. 891-904 December 2, 2002, with the changes identified below. Pursuant to § 2.2-4031 of the Code of Virginia, the adopted regulation is not published at length; however, the sections that have changed since publication of the proposed are set out.

12 VAC 5-550-5 through 12 VAC 5-550-120. [No change from proposed.]

[12 VAC 5-550-125. Certificate of birth resulting in a stillbirth.

In accordance with § 32.1-258.1 of the Code of Virginia, a certificate of birth resulting in a stillbirth shall be issued upon request from the parent for a fetal death of 20 weeks or more gestation and payment of the appropriate fee for a vital record. This certificate shall contain the following information; name (optional), mother's maiden name, father's name (if indicated), date of event, and hospital of occurrence. When no report of spontaneous fetal death is available to establish the event, documentation from the following sources is acceptable: physician or licensed nurse midwife who provided care to the mother, documentation from the medical record maintained at the hospital of occurrence, copy of the report of spontaneous fetal death or documentation from funeral service director (if such services were provided).

12 VAC 5-550-130 through 12 VAC 5-550-520. [No change from proposed.]

FORMS [No change from proposed.]

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-207; Filed August 15, 2003, 12:15 p.m.

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS

TITLE 11. GAMING

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 11 VAC 10-20. Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering (adding 11 VAC 10-20-410 through 11 VAC 10-20-417).

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Dates: August 13, 2003, through August 12, 2004.

Agency Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418, or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

Preamble:

These emergency regulations are necessary because without them there is an imminent threat to the public safety. Section 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia requires the Virginia Racing Commission to promulgate regulations to regulate advanced-deposit account wagering that is occurring unregulated in the Commonwealth. These regulations are in the process of being promulgated under the Administrative Process Act; however, in the interim, emergency regulations must be adopted to administer advanced-deposit account wagering within Commonwealth. Without these emergency regulations, Virginians will be participating in pari-mutuel wagering with entities that are not licensed by the Virginia Racing Commission in violation of § 59.1-369.5. circumstances leave the citizens of the Commonwealth at risk of participating in unregulated pari-mutuel wagering. Additionally, the absence of such regulation deprives the Commonwealth, the horsemen who race at Colonial Downs' New Kent track, the Virginia horse breeders, and the unlimited licensees of revenues they are otherwise entitled to receive under the regulations and § 59.1-369.5. Thus, the public welfare will be directly and imminently threatened without the promulgation of these emergency regulations.

<u>Purpose:</u> The Virginia Racing Commission seeks to bring advanced-deposit account wagering under the regulation of the Commonwealth. During the hearings before both houses of the General Laws Committees in the 2003 Session of the General Assembly, the Commission, Colonial Downs and the horsemen cited the need to speedily bring this form of parimutuel wagering under regulation. These emergency regulations will serve the purposes of bringing advanced-deposit account wagering under proper licensure and ensure that the licensees conduct account wagering under Commission-approved terms of agreement. Additionally, they will increase purses and days of the live racing at Colonial Downs, and address the interests of the Virginia Breeders Fund, Virginia horsemen, and unlimited licensees in otherwise unregulated pari-mutuel wagering.

<u>Substance:</u> Without these regulations, advanced-deposit account wagering is likely to continue to be conducted by unlicensed operators of such wagering operations. This unlicensed activity, and the Commission's lack of authority to

control it, poses a threat to the integrity of horse racing in the Commonwealth and, hence, to the welfare and safety of wagering Virginians. Furthermore, the absence of emergency regulations will allow unlicensed operators to avoid paying licensing fees to the Commonwealth and fees payable to the horsemen racing at Colonial Downs for purses, the Virginia Breeders Fund, and to Colonial Downs. These fees that should be paid will advance the integrity, quality, and quantity of live racing in the Commonwealth.

PART V. ADVANCE DEPOSIT ACCOUNT WAGERING.

11 VAC 10-20-410. Definitions.

The following definitions and interpretations shall apply to these rules unless otherwise indicated or the text otherwise requires:

"Account" means an account for account wagering with a specific identifiable record of deposits, wagers, and withdrawals established by an account holder and managed by the account-wagering licensee.

"Account Holder" means an individual who successfully completed an application and for whom the account-wagering licensee has opened an account.

"Advance Deposit Account Wagering" (hereafter account wagering) means a form of pari-mutuel wagering in which an individual may deposit money in an account with an account wagering licensee and then use the current balance to place pari-mutuel wagers in person or electronically.

"Account Wagering Center" means an actual location, equipment, and staff of an account wagering licensee and/or agents of the account wagering licensee involved in the management, servicing and operation of account wagering.

"Account Wagering Licensee" means an entity licensed by the commission to accept deposits and wagers, issue a receipt or other confirmation to the account holder evidencing such deposits and wagers, and transfer credits and debits to and from accounts.

"Applicant" means an individual who has submitted an application to establish an account with either (1) an account wagering licensee or (2) a company applying for an account wagering license from the commission.

"Commission" means the Virginia Racing Commission.

"Confidential Information" means

- a. The amount of money credited to, debited from, withdrawn from, or present in any particular account holder's account.
- b. The amount of money wagered by a particular account holder on any race or series of races,
- c. The account number and secure personal identification code of a particular account holder,
- d. The identities of particular entries on which the account holder is wagering or has wagered,

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

e. Unless otherwise authorized by the account holder, the name, address, and other information in the possession of the account wagering center and race meet licensee that would identify the account holder to anyone other than the commission or the account wagering licensee.

"Credits" means all inflow of money to an account.

"Debits" means all outflow of money from an account.

"Deposit" means a payment of money by cash, check, money order, credit card, debit card, or electronic funds transfer made by an account holder to the account holder's account.

"Individual" means any natural person at least 18 years of age, but does not include any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, estate or other legal entity.

"Other Electronic Media" means any electronic communication device or combination of devices including but not limited to personal computers, the internet, private networks, interactive televisions and wireless communication technologies or other technologies approved by the commission.

"Principal Residence Address" means the street address where the individual submitting an application for an account resides.

"Proper Identification" means a form of identification accepted in the normal course of business to establish that the person making a transaction is an account holder.

"Racetrack Licensee" means any person holding a current unlimited license to own or operate a horse racetrack or satellite facility where pari-mutuel wagering is permitted.

"Secure Personal Identification Code" means an alphanumeric character code chosen by an account holder as a means by which the account wagering licensee may verify a wager or account transaction as authorized by the account holder.

"Source Market Fee" means the fee payable by the account wagering licensee pursuant to the terms and provisions of the contractual agreement among the prospective account wagering licensee, the racetrack licensee and the recognized majority horsemen's organizations.

"Source Market Fee Area" means territory or similar area, encompasing at least the Commonwealth of Virginia.

"Terms of Agreement" means the agreement, approved by the commission, between an account wagering licensee and an account holder that includes but is not limited to the deposits, credits, debits, withdrawals and the opening and closing of accounts.

"Withdrawal" means a payment of money from an account by the account wagering licensee to the account holder when properly requested by the account holder.

"Withdrawal Slip" means a form provided by the account wagering licensee for use by an account holder in withdrawing funds from an account.

11 VAC 10-20-411. Authorization to conduct account wagering.

- A. No person shall conduct account wagering in the Commonwealth unless he has applied for and has been granted an account wagering license by the commission.
- B. An account wagering license shall be valid for the calendar year in which it is issued.
- C. An application shall include, on a form prescribed by the commission, the names, addresses and telephone numbers of all officers and directors. It shall solicit the same information for an account wagering license, to the extent relevant, as required for an unlimited license as specified in 11 VAC 10-20-30 (Applicant's Affidavit), 11 VAC 10-20-40 (Disclosure of ownership and control), 11 VAC 10-20-50 (Disclosure of character information) and 11 VAC 10-20-80.1 (a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(Disclosure of financial resources) of the commission's regulations.
- D. As part of the application, the license applicant also shall submit a detailed plan, including a detailed budget of the cost of implementation, of how its proposed account wagering system would operate including internal controls procedures. The commission may require changes in a proposed plan of operations as a condition of granting a request. No subsequent material changes in the system's operation may occur unless ordered by the commission or until approval is obtained from the commission after it receives a written request.
- E. As part of the application, the license applicant must provide a copy of the contractual agreement among the prospective account wagering licensee, the racetrack licensee, and representatives of the recognized majority horsemen's organizations. Included in such agreement shall be the agreed upon terms between the racetrack licensee and the recognized majority horsemen's organizations that details the distribution of retainage generated by account wagering within the source market fee area for each breed after the license fee to the commission has been paid.
- F. The commission may conduct investigations or inspections or request additional information from the applicant for a license and its officers, directors, managers and equity holders, as applicable, holding 5% or more of the applicant's equity interest as it deems appropriate in determining if the applicant has the financial resources to conduct account wagering, and whether to allow the applicant to conduct account wagering.
- G. Before being granted its original account wagering license, and every six months thereafter, the account wagering licensee shall furnish the commission with proof that the account holders will be guaranteed the full value of their accounts regardless of the acts of the account wagering licensee or any other entity. If the proof offered to the commission is not acceptable to the commission, the commission may require the account wagering licensee to purchase a bond or other form of insurance guaranteeing that the account holders receive the full value of their accounts.
- H. An application to renew an account wagering license for each succeeding calendar year is due in the offices of the

commission by 5 p.m. on December 1 on a form prescribed by the commission.

11 VAC 10-20-412. Operations by account wagering licensee.

- A. Before beginning operations in Virginia, the account wagering licensee must be qualified to do business in Virginia.
- B. Any action that suspends or otherwise prohibits an account wagering licensee of the commission from operating in another state shall be grounds for a suspension of its account wagering license in Virginia pursuant to Virginia Code § 59.1-385 C.
- C. All employees, either direct or indirect, working on behalf of the licensed account wagering center must have a Virginia commission permit or a permit or license from the state where the account wagering center is located.
- D. Within 45 days following the end of each quarter, the account wagering licensee shall provide to the racetrack licensee a summary report detailing wagering processed through the account wagering system by Virginia residents wagering on both in-state and out-of-state races and non-Virginia residents wagering on Virginia races. The reports shall be subject to review by the commission.
- E. Only individuals who have established accounts with an account wagering company licensed by the commission may wager through an account and that account must be with an account wagering company licensed in Virginia.
- F. Opening an account.
 - 1. An account wagering licensee shall require from an applicant the following information including, but not limited to:
 - a. Name,
 - b. Principal residence address,
 - c. Telephone number,
 - d. Social security number,
 - e. Age, and
 - f. Other information necessary for the account administration.
 - 2. The information obtained from the applicant shall be verified by the account wagering licensee using means acceptable to the commission.
- G. Administration of an account.
 - 1. Each account holder's wagering account shall be administered in accordance with the terms of agreement, which have been approved by the commission, including but not limited to:
 - a. Deposits;
 - b. Credits to accounts;
 - c. Debits to accounts:
 - d. Withdrawals;

- e. Minimum deposit; and
- f. Fees, if any, per wager.
- 2. A person may not directly or indirectly act as an intermediary, transmitter or agent in the placing of wagers for an account holder. A person may not place a wager on behalf of an account holder. Only an account holder may place an account wager. Direct or indirect involvement as an intermediary, transmitter or agent in the placing of wagers includes a system, known as a transfer account or master account, whereby funds are deposited to one account from another account. This section does not prohibit use of credit or debit cards specifically approved by the account wagering center or the use of checks, money orders or negotiable orders of withdrawal.
- 3. An account wagering licensee shall maintain for at least one year all records of the opening and closing of accounts, wagers, earnings and withdrawals;
- 4. An account wagering licensee may close accounts for violation of its terms of agreement or other appropriate reasons;
- 5. An account wagering licensee may close wagering on any particular race or racetrack;
- 6. An account wagering licensee shall provide the account holder with appropriate identification materials and the terms of agreement; and,
- 7. The principal residence address provided in writing by the account holder at the time of application is deemed to be the proper address for the purposes of mailing checks, statements of account, account withdrawals, notices, or other appropriate correspondence. The mailing of checks or other correspondence to the address given by the account holder shall be at the sole risk of the account holder.

11 VAC 10-20-413. Account wagering licensee requirements.

- A. An account wagering licensee shall conduct its operations with account holders in accordance with the terms of agreement, previously approved by the commission.
- B. No employee or agent of the account wagering licensee shall divulge any confidential information related to the placing of any wager or any confidential information related to the operation of the account wagering center, except:
 - 1. To the account holder as required by these rules;
 - 2. To the commission:
 - 3. To the racetrack licensee as required by the agreement between the account wagering licensee and the racetrack licensee; and,
 - 4. As otherwise required by state or federal law.
- C. All wagering conversations, transactions or other wagering communications through the account wagering system, verbal or electronic, shall be recorded by means of the appropriate electronic media, and the tapes or other records of such communications shall be kept by the account wagering center

for a period of one year. These tapes and other records shall be made available to commissioners, employees and/or designees of the commission on request.

- D. The voice recording of the transaction shall be deemed to be the actual wager, regardless of what was recorded by the pari-mutuel system.
- E. An account wagering licensee shall not accept wagers, if its transcribing system is not operable;
- F. An account wagering license shall be administered in accordance with its terms of licensure and the previously approved terms of agreement; and
- G. The commission may review and monitor the equipment, staff and records of an account wagering licensee and any of the transactions conducted by the account wagering licensee in regards to wagers made by account holders.

11 VAC 10-20-415. Fees.

- A. Application for Account Wagering License:
 - 1. A non-refundable application fee of \$5,000 must be submitted with the application.
 - 2. The applicant will be billed and shall be responsible for any costs involved in the background checks and review of the application in excess of \$5,000.

B. Annual Fees:

- 1. An annual fee of \$1,000 shall be payable to the commission on issuance of the original license and thereafter on or before January 1 of each year. The licensee will be billed and shall be responsible for any costs in excess of \$1,000 associated with the review of the annual renewal application.
- 2. .5% of gross total handle from the source market area, shall be payable to the commission on the 10th day of each month for the previous month.
- C. Distribution for Source Market Fees -- single racetrack licensee:
 - 1. The account wagering licensee shall distribute source market fees, and host fees if applicable, to the racetrack licensee on the 10th of each month for the previous month.
 - 2. The racetrack licensee shall distribute the horsemen's shares to the respective Partners Accounts within 48 hours after receipt from the account wagering licensee.
- D. Distribution of Source Market Fees -- more than one racetrack licensee:
 - 1. If more than one racetrack licensee operates in Virginia, then the source market fees shall be distributed as follows:
 - a. All source market fees derived from account wagers placed within a 50-mile radius (the "50-mile radius") of any track or satellite wagering facility operated by a racetrack licensee shall be distributed to each such licensee;
 - b. All source market fees derived from account wagers placed outside any 50-mile radius shall be shared among

the racetrack licensees in proportion to each licensee's respective capital expenditures on such licensee's track and satellite wagering facilities in Virginia.

c. If an overlap exists between two 50-mile radii, the racetrack licensee to first operate a track or satellite wagering facility in such area shall receive the source market fees from account wagers placed within the overlapping area.

11 VAC 10-20-416. Enforcement and penalties.

- A. The commission shall have all of the rights, powers and remedies provided for in the Act to ensure compliance with these regulations, including, but not limited to, injunctive relief and the imposition of fines and suspensions.
- B. Additionally, with respect to any entity that engages in account wagering in Virginia without a license issued by the commission, the commission may take such measures as it deems necessary, including referral to the appropriate regulatory and law-enforcement authorities for civil action or criminal prosecution.

11 VAC 10-20-417. State employee use of certain computers prohibited.

No pari-mutuel wager may be made on or with any computer owned or leased by the Commonwealth, or any of its subdivisions, or at any public elementary or secondary school, or any public college or university.

ACCOUNT-WAGERING LICENSE APPLICATION

Owner's affidavit.

The application must include an affidavit from the chief executive officer or a major financial participant that sets forth:

- 1. That application is made for a license to own and operate an account-wagering license.
- 2. That the affiant is the agent of the applicant, its owners, partners, members, directors, officers, and personnel and is duly authorized to make the representations in the application on their behalf. (Documentation of the authority must be attached)
- 3. That the applicant seeks a grant of a privilege from the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the burden of proving the applicant's qualifications rests at all times with the applicant.
- 4. That the applicant consents to inquiries by the Commonwealth of Virginia, its employees, the commission members, staff and agents, into the financial, character, and other qualifications of the applicant by contacting individuals and organizations.
- 5. That the applicant, its owners, partners, members, directors, officers, and personnel accept any risk of adverse public notice, embarrassment, criticism, or other circumstances, including financial loss, which may result from action with respect to the application and expressly waive any claim which otherwise could be made against the Commonwealth of Virginia, its employees, the commission, staff, or agents.

- 6. That the affiant has read the application and knows the contents; the contents are true to affiant's own knowledge, except matters therein stated as information and belief; as to those matters, affiant believes them to be true.
- 7. That the applicant recognizes all representations in the application are binding on it, and false or misleading information in the application, omission of required information, or substantial deviation from representations in the application may result in denial, revocation, suspension or conditioning of a license or imposition of a fine, or any or all of the foregoing.
- 8. That the applicant will comply with all applicable state and federal statutes and regulations, and all regulations of the commission.
- 9. The affiant's signature, name, organization, positions, address, and telephone number.
- 10. The date.

Disclosure of ownership and control.

An applicant must disclose:

- 1. The type of organizational structure of the applicant, whether individual, business corporation, nonprofit corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, association, or other.
- 2. If the applicant is an individual, the applicant's legal name, whether the applicant is a United States citizen, any aliases and business or trade names currently or previously used by the applicant, and copies of all state and federal tax returns for the past five years.
- 3. If the applicant is a corporation:
 - a. The applicant's full corporate name and any trade names currently or previously used by the applicant;
 - b. The jurisdiction and date of incorporation;
 - c. The date the applicant intends on doing business in Virginia and a copy of the applicant's certificate of authority to do business in Virginia;
 - d. Copies of the applicant's articles of incorporation, bylaws, and all state and federal corporate tax returns for the past five years;
 - e. The general nature of the applicant's account-wagering business:
 - f. Whether the applicant is publicly held as defined by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission:
 - g. The classes of stock of the applicant. As to each class, the number of shares authorized, number of shares subscribed to, number issued, number outstanding, par value per share, issue price, current market price, number of shareholders, terms, position, rights, and privileges must be disclosed:
 - h. Whether the applicant has any other obligations or securities authorized or outstanding which bear voting rights either absolutely or upon any contingency, the

- nature thereof, face or par value, number of units authorized, number outstanding, and conditions under which they may be voted;
- i. The names, in alphabetical order, and addresses of the directors and, in a separate list, officers of the applicant. The number of shares held of record directly or indirectly by each director and officer as of the application date of each class of stock, including stock options and subscriptions, and units held of record or beneficially of other obligations or securities which bear voting rights must be disclosed;
- j. The names, in alphabetical order, and addresses of each record holder as of the date of application or beneficial owner of shares, including stock options and subscriptions, of the applicant or units of other obligations or securities that bear voting rights. As to each holder of shares or units, the number and class or type of shares or units must be disclosed;
- k. Whether the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 and Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Securities and Exchange Commission rules and regulations have been met in connection with issuance of applicant's securities, and copies of the most recent registration statement and annual report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission;
- I. Whether the securities registration and filing requirements of the applicant's jurisdiction or incorporation have been met, and a copy of the most recent registration statement filed with the securities regulator in that jurisdiction; and
- m. Whether the securities registration and filing requirements of the Commonwealth of Virginia have been met. If they have not, the applicant must disclose the reasons why. The applicant must provide copies of all securities filings with Virginia's State Corporation Commission during the past five years.
- 4. If the applicant is an organization other than a corporation:
 - The applicant's full name and any aliases, business or trade names currently or previously used by the applicant;
 - b. The jurisdiction of organization of the applicant;
 - c. The date the applicant intends to begin doing business in Virginia;
 - d. Copies of any agreements creating or governing the applicant's organization and all of the applicant's state and federal tax returns for the past five years;
 - e. The general nature of the applicant's business;
 - f. The names, in alphabetical order, and addresses of any partners and officers of the applicant and other persons who have or share policy-making authority. As to each, the applicant shall disclose the nature and extent of any ownership interest, direct or indirect, including options, or other voting interest, whether absolute or contingent, in the applicant; and

- g. The names, in alphabetical order, and addresses of any individual or other entity holding a record or beneficial ownership interest, direct or indirect, including options, as of the date of the application, or other voting interest, whether absolute or contingent, in the applicant. As to each, the applicant must disclose the nature and extent of the interest.
- 5. If a nonindividual record or beneficial holder of an ownership or other voting interest of 5.0% or more in the applicant is identified pursuant to subdivision 3, i or j or subdivision 4, f and g, the applicant shall disclose the information required by those subdivisions as to record or beneficial holders of an ownership or other voting interest of 5.0% or more in that nonindividual holder. The disclosure required by those subdivisions shall be repeated, in turn, until all other voting interests of 5.0% or more in the applicant or any non-individual holder are identified. When an applicant is unable to provide the information required, it shall explain fully and document its inability to do so;
- 6. Whether the applicant is directly or indirectly controlled to any extent or in any manner by another individual or entity. If so, the applicant must disclose the identity of the controlling entity and a description of the nature and extent of control;
- 7. Any agreements or understandings which the applicant or any individual or entity identified pursuant to this part has entered into regarding ownership or operation of applicant's account-wagering activity and copies of any such agreement in writing;
- 8. Any agreements or understandings which the applicant has entered into for the payment of fees, rents, salaries, or other compensation concerning the proposed account wagering by the applicant, and copies of any such agreements in writing; and
- 9. Whether the applicant, any partner, director, officer, other policymaker, or holder of a direct or indirect record or beneficial ownership interest or other voting interest or control of 5.0% or more has held or holds a license or permit issued by a governmental authority to own or operate an account-wagering license or other gaming activity. If so, the applicant must disclose the identity of the license or permit holder, nature of the license or permit, issuing authority, and dates of issuance and termination.

Disclosure of management.

An applicant for an account-wagering license must disclose with regard to the development, ownership and operation of its account-wagering operation:

- 1. A description of the applicant's management plan, with budget and identification of management personnel by function, job descriptions and qualifications for each management position and a copy of the organization chart;
- 2. Management personnel to the extent known and with respect to each:
 - a. Legal name, alias(es), and previous name(s);

- b. Current residence and business addresses and telephone numbers;
- c. Qualifications and experience in the following areas:
 - (1) General business;
 - (2) Marketing, promotion and advertising;
 - (3) Finance and accounting;
 - (4) Horse racing;
 - (5) Pari-mutuel wagering; and
 - (6) Security.

Disclosure of character information.

An applicant for an account-wagering license shall disclose and furnish particulars as follows whether the applicant or any individual or other entity identified pursuant to subsection C of 11 VAC 10-20-411 has:

- 1. Been charged in any criminal proceeding other than a traffic violation. If so, the applicant must disclose nature of the charge, the date, charged, court and disposition;
- 2. Had a horse racing, gambling, business, professional, or occupational license or permit revoked or suspended or renewal denied or been a party in a proceeding to do so. If so, the applicant must disclose the date of commencement, circumstances and disposition;
- 3. Been accused in an administrative or judicial proceeding of violating a statute or regulation relating to horse racing or gaming;
- 4. Been charged in an administrative or judicial proceeding of violating a statute or regulation relating to unfair labor practices or discrimination;
- 5. Begun an administrative or judicial action against a governmental regulator of horse racing or gaming. If so, the applicant must disclose the date of commencement, forum, circumstances, and disposition:
- 6. Been the subject of voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy proceedings. If so, the applicant must disclose the date of commencement, forum, circumstances, date of decision and disposition;
- 7. Failed to satisfy any judgment, decree of an administrative or judicial tribunal. If so, the applicant must disclose the date and circumstances; and
- 8. Been delinquent in filing a tax return required or remitting a tax imposed by any government. If so, the applicant must disclose the date and circumstances.

Authorization for release.

In an application for an account-wagering license, the applicant shall include the following with respect to each individual identified as an applicant, partner, director, officer, other policymaker, or holder of a direct or indirect record or beneficial ownership interest or other voting interest or control of 5.0% or more in the applicant and management personnel:

- 1. Full name, business and residence addresses and telephone numbers, residence addresses for past five years, date of birth, place of birth, Social Security number, if the individual is willing to provide it, and two references; and
- 2. An authorization for release of personal information, on a form prepared by the commission, signed by the individual and providing that he:
 - a. Authorizes a review by, and full disclosure to, an agent of the Virginia State Police, of all records concerning the individual;
 - b. Recognizes the information reviewed or disclosed may be used by the Commonwealth of Virginia, its employees, the commission, members, staff and agents to determine the signer's qualifications; and
 - c. Releases authorized providers and users of the information from any liability under state or federal data privacy statutes.

Disclosure of financial resources.

A. Financial resources. An applicant for an account-wagering license shall disclose with regard to its financial resources its most recent independently audited financial statement showing:

- 1. The applicant's current assets, including investment in affiliated entities, loans and accounts receivable;
- 2. Fixed assets;
- 3. Current liabilities, including loans and accounts payable;
- 4. Long-term debt and equity; and
- 5. Statement of income and expenses, and statement of cash flow.
- B. Costs of operations. The applicant shall submit a budget including the cost of implementing an account-wagering license in the Commonwealth. The applicant shall submit a detailed plan for the Commonwealth. The plan shall include how the applicant would operate the license within the Commonwealth. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, accounting and other internal control procedures.
- C. Necessary resources. The applicant shall submit a plan of financial resources so that it can conduct account wagering within the Commonwealth.

Account wagering center.

An applicant for an account-wagering license shall submit to the commission the location or locations where management, servicing and operation of account wagering shall take place. The applicant shall explain the type of equipment used in transacting account wagering including the location of the "wagering hub," whether the "wagering hub" is located within a jurisdiction where "wagering hubs" have been legalized, and where the working personnel will be located.

Contractual obligations.

An applicant for an account-wagering license shall submit to the commission a copy of the contractual agreement with the unlimited licensee and the recognized horsemen's organizations representing the majority of the horsemen racing at the unlimited race meeting. Any contractual agreement between the account-wagering licensee, the unlimited licensee and the recognized horsemen's organizations shall be subject to the approval of the commission. (The applicant shall submit a copy of its contract with its application.)

Terms of agreement.

An applicant for an account-wagering license shall submit a copy of its terms of agreement between the licensee and account holders.

/s/ Mark R. Warner Governor

Date: August 12, 2003

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-319; Filed August 13, 2003, 10:56 a.m.

TITLE 12. HEALTH

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 12 VAC 30-70. Methods and Standards for Establishing Payment Rates; Inpatient Hospital Care (amending 12 VAC 30-70-291, 12 VAC 30-70-301, 12 VAC 30-70-331).

<u>Statutory Authority:</u> §§ 32.1-324 and 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Dates: August 13, 2003, through August 12, 2004.

Agency Contact: Steven E. Ford, Manager, Division of Reimbursement, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7355, FAX (804) 786-1680, or e-mail sford@dmas.state.va.us.

<u>Purpose:</u> The intent of this emergency regulation is to provide changes to the reimbursement methodologies for operating reimbursement, disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments, and indirect medical education (IME) payments to Type One hospitals. These suggested changes will not result in new revenues to the Type One hospitals but will maintain previous revenue levels that must now be discontinued due to impending federal regulatory changes. These methodology changes will permit the continuation of managed care payments commensurate with fee-for-service (FFS) payments.

<u>Substance:</u> The section of the State Plan for Medical Assistance that is affected by this action is Methods and

Standards for Establishing Payment Rates-Inpatient Hospital Services (Attachment 4.19-A (12 VAC 30-70-291, 12 VAC 30-70-301, and 12 VAC 30-70-331)).

In 1991, DMAS determined it would be appropriate to place the state teaching hospitals in their own peer group (named Type One hospitals) for purposes of Disproportionate Share adjustment payments, known as DSH payments. DSH payments are made to those hospitals that render proportionately higher amounts of care to indigent people than other hospitals. Over the years, Medicaid DSH payments to Type One hospitals have figured significantly in these hospitals' revenues. In addition, Type One hospitals' operating rates are subject to an adjustment factor of one, while Type Two hospitals' adjustment factors have historically been less than one. This has contributed to higher payment rates for Type One hospitals relative to Type Two hospitals.

To determine the capitated rates for its managed care organizations (MCOs), DMAS considers all providers' rates. However, since Type One hospitals are paid significantly higher rates (due to the adjustment factor), it is not prudent to include the Type One hospital rates in the calculations of the MEDALLION II rates. Instead, Type One hospital fee for service data is assigned a "community rate" for capitation rate setting purposes, and this rate is less than those facilities' actual fee-for-service cost experience.

The emergency regulation proposes to take two parallel actions: (i) to reduce FFS operating rates for Type One hospitals to a level commensurate with Type Two hospitals; and, (ii) to increase payments to the Type One hospitals through other means to compensate them for revenue losses due to the federal regulatory change. Further discussion of these parallel proposals follows.

Because the Medicaid program recognizes that higher costs are incurred at the Type One hospitals, the adjustment factor calculated for Type Two hospitals is not sufficient to address such additional costs. Therefore, DMAS is proposing a methodology change that will calculate an adjustment factor that causes the Type One hospital statewide operating rate per case to equal the statewide operating rate per case as calculated for the Type Two hospitals. This serves to bring fee-for-service reimbursement at Type One hospitals in line with reimbursement levels under MEDALLION II.

An unintended consequence of the reduction in operating payments to Type One hospitals is also a reduction in DSH payments. DSH payments are directly related to the fee-forservice operating payments, so any reduction in operating payments will serve to reduce DSH as well. Consequently, DMAS is proposing to incorporate a "DSH factor" into the calculation of Type One hospital DSH payments that will essentially hold those payments harmless, or equal, in relation to the effect of the reduction in operating payments. Essentially, the DSH factor will equal some number that will result in calculated DSH payments at a level that the current operating payment rate methodology (using an adjustment factor of one for Type One hospitals) currently produces.

In order to maintain total Medicaid payments to the Type One hospitals at current levels, however, this reduction in operating payments on the fee-for-service side must be offset with additional payments elsewhere. DMAS is proposing to offset the operating payment reductions through enhancement of the indirect medical education (IME) payment levels for the Type One hospitals. The basic goal is to provide IME payments equaling payments calculated under the current IME methodology, plus the amount of the reduction on the fee-forservice operating side due to the use of the new adjustment factor. Because operating payments also affect IME calculations, DMAS has determined that a multiplier applied to the current IME percentage is the most efficient way to accomplish this goal.

The net effect of these three changes will be the maintenance of payment levels that would be achieved had the current methodology, with the additional payments for MEDALLION II claims made outside of the system through the managed care organizations to the Type One hospitals, continued unchanged. Because this is simply a shifting of payments currently in the fee-for-service operating side to the IME program, with DSH held harmless, there is no additional financial impact on the Commonwealth nor is there added pressure to upper payment limits imposed on the program.

Preamble:

Due to a change in federal regulations (42 CFR 438.6) regarding actuarial soundness of capitation rates, DMAS will be prohibited from making supplemental payments to Type One hospitals (the state teaching hospitals) for services that these providers render in the DMAS managed care program (MEDALLION II). This prohibition, effective August 13, will create a significant disincentive for the Type One hospitals to continue participation in the Medallion II program. If the Type One hospitals choose to not participate in the Medicaid managed care program, the viability of the managed care program in the areas of the Commonwealth served by these hospitals will be threatened. As such, access to a proper level of care will be impeded, therefore threatening the public health.

12 VAC 30-70-291. Payment for indirect medical education costs.

A. Hospitals shall be eligible to receive payments for indirect medical education. These payments recognize the increased use of ancillary services associated with the educational process and the higher case-mix intensity of teaching hospitals. The payments for indirect medical education shall be made in estimated quarterly lump sum amounts and settled at the hospital's fiscal year end.

- B. Final payment for IME shall be determined as follows:
 - 1. Type One hospitals shall receive an IME payment equal to the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement times an IME percentage determined as follows:

IME Percentage for Type One Hospitals = [1.89 X ((1 + r) $^{0.405}$ - 1)] *X* (IME Factor)

An IME Factor shall be calculated for each Type One Hospital and shall equal a factor that, when used in the calculation of the IME Percentage, shall cause the resulting IME Payments to equal what the IME Payments would be with an IME Factor of one, plus an amount equal to the difference between operating payments using the

adjustment factor specified in subsection B-1 of 12 VAC 30-70-331 and operating payments using an adjustment factor of one in place of the adjustment factor specified in subsection B-1 of 12 VAC 30-70-331.

2. Type Two hospitals shall receive an IME payment equal to the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement times an IME percentage determined as follows:

IME Percentage for Type Two Hospitals = $[1.89 \text{ X} ((1 + r)^{0.405} - 1)] \text{ X } 0.4043$

In both equations, r is the ratio of full-time equivalent residents to staffed beds, excluding nursery beds. The IME payment shall be calculated each year using the most recent reliable data regarding the number of full-time equivalent residents and the number of staffed beds, excluding nursery beds.

C. An additional IME payment shall be made for inpatient hospital services provided to Medicaid patients but reimbursed by capitated managed care providers. This payment shall be equal to the hospital's hospital specific operating rate per case, as determined in 12 VAC 30-70-311, times the hospital's HMO paid discharges times the hospital's IME percentage, as determined in subsection B of this section.

12 VAC 30-70-301. Payment to disproportionate share hospitals.

- A. Payments to disproportionate share hospitals (DSH) shall be prospectively determined in advance of the state fiscal year to which they apply. The payments shall be made on a quarterly basis, shall be final, and shall not be subject to settlement except when necessary due to the limit in subsection D of this section.
- B. Hospitals qualifying under the 15% inpatient Medicaid utilization percentage shall receive a DSH payment based on the hospital's type and the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage.
 - 1. Type One hospitals shall receive a DSH payment equal to:
 - a. The sum of (i) the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage in excess of 10.5%, times 17, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement, times 1.4433 and (ii) the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage in excess of 21%, times 17, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement, times 1.4433.
 - b. Multiplied by the Type One Hospital DSH Factor.

The Type One Hospital DSH Factor shall equal a percentage that when applied to the DSH payment calculation yields a DSH payment equal to the total calculated using the methodology outlined in subsection 1 a of this section using an adjustment factor of one in the calculation of operating payments rather than the adjustment factor specified in subsection B-1 of 12 VAC 30-70-331.

2. Type Two hospitals shall receive a DSH payment equal to the sum of (i) the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage in excess of 10.5%, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement, times 1.2074 and (ii)

- the hospital's Medicaid utilization percentage in excess of 21%, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement, times 1.2074.
- C. Hospitals qualifying under the 25% low-income patient utilization rate shall receive a DSH payment based on the hospital's type and the hospital's low-income utilization rate.
 - 1. Type One hospitals shall receive a DSH payment equal to the product of the hospital's low-income utilization in excess of 25%, times 17, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement.
 - 2. Type Two hospitals shall receive a DSH payment equal to the product of the hospital's low-income utilization in excess of 25%, times the hospital's Medicaid operating reimbursement.
 - 3. Calculation of a hospital's low-income patient utilization percentage is defined in 42 USC § 1396r-4(b)(3).
- D. No DSH payments shall exceed any applicable limitations upon such payments established by federal law or regulations and OBRA 1993 §13621. A DSH payment during a fiscal year shall not exceed the sum of:
 - 1. Medicaid allowable costs incurred during the year less Medicaid payments, net of disproportionate share payment adjustments, for services provided during the year. Costs and payments for Medicaid recipients enrolled in capitated managed care programs shall be considered Medicaid costs and payments for the purposes of this section.
 - 2. Costs incurred in serving persons who have no insurance less payments received from those patients or from a third party on behalf of those patients. Payments made by any unit of the Commonwealth or local government to a hospital for services provided to indigent patients shall not be considered to be a source of third party payment.
- E. Each hospital's eligibility for DSH payment and the amount of the DSH payment shall be calculated at the time of each rebasing using the most recent reliable utilization data and projected operating reimbursement data available. The utilization data used to determine eligibility for DSH payment and the amount of the DSH payment shall include days for Medicaid recipients enrolled in capitated managed care programs. In years when DSH payments are not rebased in the way described above, the previous year's amounts shall be adjusted for inflation.
 - 1. Each hospital with a Medicaid-recognized Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU), a unit having had a unique NICU operating cost limit under subdivision 6 of 12 VAC 30-70-50, shall have its DSH payment calculated separately for the NICU and for the remainder of the hospital as if the two were separate and distinct providers. This calculation shall follow the methodology provided in this section.
 - 2. For freestanding psychiatric facilities licensed as hospitals, DSH payment shall be based on the most recently settled Medicare cost report available before the beginning of the state fiscal year for which a payment is being calculated.

12 VAC 30-70-331. Statewide operating rate per case.

- A. The statewide operating rate per case shall be equal to the base year standardized operating costs per case, as determined in 12 VAC 30-70-361, times the inflation values specified in 12 VAC 30-70-351 times the adjustment factor specified in subsection B of this section.
- B. The adjustment factor shall be determined separately for Type One and Type Two hospitals—and:
 - 1. For Type One Hospitals the adjustment factor shall be a calculated percentage that causes the Type One Hospital statewide operating rate per case to equal the Type Two Hospital statewide operating rate per case;
 - 2. For Type Two Hospitals the adjustment factor shall be the ratio of the following two numbers:
 - 4. a. The numerator of the factor is the aggregate total Medicaid operating payments to affected hospitals in hospital fiscal years ending in the base year.
 - 2. b. The denominator of the factor is the aggregate total Medicaid allowable operating cost as determined from settled cost reports from the same hospitals in the same year.

/s/ Mark R. Warner Governor

Date: August 12, 2003

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-318; Filed August 13, 2003, 10:39 a.m.

GOVERNOR

EXECUTIVE ORDER NUMBER 54 (2003)

ENERGY CONSERVATION BY STATE AGENCIES

Wise use of taxpayer dollars and efficiency and economy in government demands that state agencies are prudent in their use of energy. By virtue of the authority vested in me as Governor under Article V of the Constitution of Virginia and under the laws of the Commonwealth, including but not limited to Chapter 1 of Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia, I hereby direct the Governor's Secretaries and all executive branch agencies to reduce energy costs and consumption in state government operations. I hereby set a short-term goal of all agencies reducing energy consumption by at least seven percent by 2004, when compared to a 2002 baseline. I further set an intermediate goal of reducing energy usage by at least 10 percent by 2006 relative to a 2002 baseline, with a long-term goal of reducing energy consumption by the maximum event feasible.

Responsibilities of the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy

The Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy (DMME) shall be responsible for providing technical assistance to state agencies in achieving energy consumption savings. Specifically, DMME shall accomplish the following:

- Review, revise, and maintain the Virginia Energy Plan through collaboration with other state agencies,
- Draw on expertise of other agencies and Virginia businesses to ensure that state agencies conserve energy to the maximum extent feasible, and
- Maintain a system to monitor and report energy costs and consumption for state-owned facilities.

Responsibilities of All Executive Branch Agencies

Each executive agency and institution shall accomplish the following:

- Implement an energy management plan in an orderly and timely manner and undertake modifications to internal agency operations and programs consistent with the goal of reducing energy consumption to the maximum extent feasible.
- Monitor and report energy costs and consumption and progress on implementation of the energy management plan to DMME,
- Use the Energy Efficiency and Operational Performance Contracting Act as a procurement mechanism to accomplish these energy conservation projects.

This Executive Order rescinds Executive Order 56 (1999), Virginia Energy Plan, issued by the Honorable James S. Gilmore on September 3, 1999.

This Executive Order shall become effective upon its signing and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2006, unless amended or rescinded by further executive order.

Given under my hand and under the Seal of the Commonwealth of Virginia this 23rd day of July 2003.

/s/ Mark R. Warner Governor

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-322; Filed August 7, 2003, 3:34 p.m.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NUMBER 55 (2003)

DECLARATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY DUE TO AN ECONOMIC CRISIS IN HENRY COUNTY AND THE CITY OF MARTINSVILLE

On July 31, 2003, I verbally declared a state of emergency to exist due to the abrupt closure of a manufacturing plant in the Fieldale community of Henry County and the ensuing employment and economic crisis in Henry County and the City of Martinsville. The crisis was brought about by the announcement on July 30, 2003, by Pillowtex Corporation of its filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection and its immediate closure of all plants nationwide. The loss of jobs directly impacts almost 1,000 families in the immediate area. The plant's closure also depletes resources needed to operate the county's Public Service Authority and drastically reduces the county's tax base.

The threat to the health and general welfare of the citizens of Henry County and the City of Martinsville required that state action be taken to assist in alleviating these conditions. I find that the potential effects of this economic crisis are of sufficient severity and magnitude to warrant disaster assistance by the Commonwealth to supplement the efforts and available resources of the localities in preventing or alleviating the loss, hardship, or suffering threatened or caused thereby, as defined in § 44-146.16(5).

Therefore, by virtue of the authority vested in me by § 44-146.17 of the Code of Virginia, as Governor and as Director of Emergency Management, and by virtue of the authority vested in me by Article V, Section 7 of the Constitution of Virginia and subject always to my continuing and ultimate authority and responsibility to act in such matters, I hereby confirm, ratify, and memorialize in writing my verbal orders issued July 31, 2003, wherein I proclaimed that a state of emergency exists in Henry County and the city of Martinsville and directed that appropriate assistance be rendered by agencies of both state and local governments to prevent and alleviate any conditions resulting from increased unemployment, loss of tax revenues and reduction of financial support for the delivery of basic public services, and to implement relief and recovery activities so as to alleviate impacted areas from the effects of these conditions insofar as possible.

All state agencies are directed to provide assistance in dealing with this emergency to the extent required by the Coordinator of Emergency Management in consultation with the Secretary of Public Safety, the State Health Commissioner, and others as required. I specifically direct the Departments of Health, Environmental Quality, and Housing and Community Development to provide technical assistance as requested by

Governor

Henry County officials, officials of the City of Martinsville, and officials of the Fieldale Sanitary District.

In order to marshal all public resources and appropriate preparedness, response and recovery measures to meet this crisis and recovery from its effects, and in accordance with my authority contained in § 44-146.17 of the Emergency Services and Disaster Laws, I hereby order the following prevention and restoration measures:

- A. The full implementation by agencies of the state and local governments of Volume I, Virginia Emergency Operations Plan (COVEOP) Basic Plan, July 1997, as amended, along with other appropriate state agency plans.
- B. Authorization for the Secretary of Commerce and Trade to activate the State Recovery Task Force to maintain a state-level capability to assist affected local governments during this economic crisis.
- C. Authorization for the Department of Emergency Management to implement the Commonwealth Emergency Relief to Localities Program, authorized by § 44-146.28(a), to assist eligible localities located in an area declared to be in a state of emergency but not declared to be a major disaster area for which federal assistance might be forthcoming.
- D. The activation, implementation and coordination of appropriate statewide and national mutual aid agreements and compacts, including the Emergency Management Assistance Compact, and the authorization of the State Coordinator of Emergency Management to enter into any other supplemental agreements, pursuant to § 44-146.17 (5) of the Code of Virginia, to provide for the exchange of public utility, welfare, transportation and communications personnel, and equipment and supplies. The State Coordinator of Emergency Management is hereby designated as Virginia's authorized representative within the meaning of the Emergency Management Assistance Compact, § 44-146.28:1 of the Code of Virginia.
- E. The implementation by public agencies under my supervision and control of their emergency assignments as directed in the COVEOP without regard to normal procedures pertaining to performance of public work, entering into contracts, incurring of obligations, or other logistical and support measures of the Emergency Services and Disaster Laws, as provided in § 44-146.28 (b) of the Code of Virginia. Section 44-146.24 of the Code of Virginia also applies to the disaster activities of state agencies.

Upon my approval, the costs incurred by state agencies and other agents in performing mission assignments through the VEOC of the Commonwealth as defined herein and in § 44-146.28 of the Code of Virginia in performing these missions shall be paid out of the sum sufficient appropriation for Disaster Planning and Operations contained in Item 47 of Chapter 1042, 2003 Virginia Acts of Assembly.

This Executive Order shall be effective today, and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2004, unless sooner amended or rescinded by further executive order. Termination of the Executive Order is not intended to terminate any state federal-type benefits granted or to be

granted due to injury or death as a result of service under this Executive Order.

Given under my hand and under the Seal of the Commonwealth of Virginia, this 31st day of July 2003.

/s/ Mark R. Warner Governor

VA.R. Doc. No. R03-323; Filed August 7, 2003, 3:34 p.m.

GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for fecal coliform bacteria on a 35-mile segment of Catoctin Creek

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR) seek written and oral comments from interested persons on the development of an Implementation Plan (IP) for the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for fecal coliform bacteria on a 35-mile segment of Catoctin Creek, including 10.5 miles of the North Fork, all of the South Fork (17 miles), and 7.5 miles of the mainstem. A TMDL for the Catoctin Creek bacteria impairments was approved by EPA on May 31, 2002, and is available on DEQ's website at http://www.deq.state.va.us/tmdlrpts.html. The Catoctin Creek impairments are located in Loudoun County.

Section 62.1-44.19:7 C of the Code of Virginia requires the development of an IP for approved TMDLs. The IP should provide measurable goals and the date of expected achievement of water quality objectives. The IP should also include the corrective actions needed and their associated costs, benefits and environmental impacts.

The first public meeting on the development of the IP for the Catoctin Creek fecal coliform bacteria TMDL will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2003, at 7 p.m. in the Lucketts Community Center, located on Route 15 (access to parking off State Route 662) in Lucketts, VA.

The public comment period will end on October 30, 2003. A fact sheet on the development of an IP for the TMDL for fecal coliform bacteria on Catoctin Creek is available upon request. Questions or information requests should be addressed to Kate Bennett. Written comments and inquiries should include the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting the comments and should be sent to Ms. Kate Bennett, Department of Environmental Quality, 13901 Crown Court, Woodbridge, Virginia, 22193, telephone (703) 583-3896, FAX (703) 583-3841, or e-mail kebennett@deq.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program Intended Use Plan for FY 2004

Waterworks Owner and Other Interested Parties:

The Virginia Department of Health (VDH) received numerous loan requests and set-aside suggestions following our announcement in January 2003, of funds available from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program. Through the Safe Drinking Water Act, Congress authorizes capitalization grants to the states but authorization has not been finalized.

The VDH's Office of Drinking Water (ODW) has prepared a draft Intended Use Plan (IUP) using information submitted via the loan requests and set-aside suggestions. This IUP is for your review and comment. The document dated January 14, 2003, and entitled "Virginia Drinking Water State Revolving

Fund Program – Program Design Manual" is a part of the Intended Use Plan. This document was mailed in our January announcement and is available on our website at www.vdh.state.va.us/dw.

As previously announced in January, the VDH will hold a public meeting. The meeting will be on Wednesday, October 1, 2003, from 2 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. at the Virginia Housing Development Authority (VHDA) in Richmond, Virginia. In addition, comments from the public are to be postmarked by Friday, October 3, 2003.

If you plan to attend, please contact Theresa Hewlett at (804) 786-1087 by the close of business on September 25, 2003, so that we may properly plan the meeting.

Please direct your requests for information and forward written comments to Thomas B. Gray, P. E., Virginia Department of Health, Financial and Construction Assistance Programs, Office of Drinking Water, Main Street Station, Suite 109, 1500 East Main Street, Richmond Virginia 23219, telephone (804) 786-1087, FAX (804) 225-4539.

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

Notice to State Agencies

Mailing Address: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, FAX (804) 692-0625.

Forms for Filing Material for Publication in *The Virginia Register of Regulations*

All agencies are required to use the appropriate forms when furnishing material for publication in the Virginia Register of Regulations. The forms may be obtained from: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

Internet: Forms and other Virginia Register resources may be printed or downloaded from the Virginia Register web page: http://register.state.va.us

FORMS:

NOTICE of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION-RR01
NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD-RR02
PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet)-RR03
FINAL (Transmittal Sheet)-RR04
EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet)-RR05
NOTICE of MEETING-RR06
AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OBJECTIONS-RR08

PETITION FOR RULEMAKING-RR13

ERRATA

VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS, LEAD, AND HOME INSPECTORS

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 18 VAC 15-30. Virginia Lead-Based Paint Activities Regulations.

Publication: 19:24 VA.R. 3565 August 11, 2003.

Correction to Final Regulation:

In <u>Title of Regulation</u>, under sections being added, add 18 VAC 15-30-225" and under sections being repealed, following "18 VAC 15-30-190 through" insert "18 VAC 15-30-220, 18 VAC 15-30-230,"

In 18 VAC 15-30-511 C 1, strike "Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) § 403" and insert "15 USC § 2683"

In 18 VAC 15-30-540, subdivision 7, strike "licensed"

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 9 VAC 20-80. Solid Waste Management Regulations.

Publication: 19:25 VA.R. 3782-3784 August 25, 2003.

Correction to Final Regulation:

On page 3782, in <u>Title of Regulation</u>, make the following changes under amended sections:

delete "9 VAC 20-80-105"

after "9 VAC 20-80-370" insert "[9 VAC 20-80-400,]"

after "9 VAC 20-80-460" insert "[9 VAC 20-80-470,]"

On page 3782, in <u>Title of Regulation</u>, after the two added sections, insert "[*repealing Appendices 5.1, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6, 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, and 9.1*]"

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 9 VAC 25-260. Water Quality Standards.

Publication: 18:24 VA.R. 3289-3295 August 12, 2002.

Correction to Final Regulation:

The above action was published as final with an effective date 30 days after notice of EPA approval in the Virginia Register. EPA approval was published in 19:23 VA.R. 3348 July 28, 2003. The following correction in 18:24 clarifies where unchanged proposed language was previously published.

On page 3289, insert the following notice after the agency summary:

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The proposed regulation was adopted as published in 18:4 VA.R. 495-518 November 5, 2001, with the additional changes shown below. Therefore, pursuant to § 2.2-4031 A of the Code of Virginia, the text of the final regulation is not set out at length; however, the changes from the proposed regulation are printed below.

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the *Virginia Register*Location accessible to persons with disabilities

Teletype (TTY)/Voice Designation

NOTICE

Only those meetings which are filed with the Registrar of Regulations by the filing deadline noted at the beginning of this publication are listed. Since some meetings are called on short notice, please be aware that this listing of meetings may be incomplete. Also, all meetings are subject to cancellation and the *Virginia Register* deadline may preclude a notice of such cancellation. If you are unable to find a meeting notice for an organization in which you are interested, please check the Commonwealth Calendar at www.vipnet.org or contact the organization directly.

For additional information on open meetings and public hearings held by the standing committees of the legislature during the interim, please call Legislative Information at (804) 698-1500 or Senate Information and Constituent Services at (804) 698-7410 or (804) 698-7419/TTY\$, or visit the General Assembly web site's Legislative Information System (http://leg1.state.va.us/lis.htm) and select "Meetings."

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE

BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY

September 25, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Holiday Inn-Richmond, 6531 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss general business matters requiring board action. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting. All meetings are subject to cancellation. The time of the meeting is subject to change. Any person desiring to attend the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at (804) 367-8505 or TTY (804) 367-9753 at least 10 days prior to the meeting so suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Executive Director, Board of Accountancy, 3600 W. Broad St., Suite 696, Richmond Virginia 23230, telephone (804) 367-8505, FAX (804) 367-2174, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail boa@boa.state.va.us.

October 31, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Accountancy intends to repeal regulations entitled 18 VAC 5-30, Continuing Professional Education Sponsor Registration Rules and Regulations. The purpose of the proposed action is to repeal the existing regulations because the board deemed them no longer necessary to fulfill their statutory mandate, as well as being repetitious and unnecessarily burdensome on continuing professional education sponsors in the Commonwealth in light of programs on the national level.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-4403 and 54.1-4410 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Executive Director, Board of Accountancy, 3600 W. Broad St., Suite 696, Richmond Virginia 23230, telephone (804) 367-8505, FAX (804) 367-2174, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail boa@boa.state.va.us.

BOARD OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

September 26, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services,
Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, Suite 211, Richmond,
Virginia.

A meeting to discuss issues related to Virginia agriculture and consumer services. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Roy Seward at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Roy Seward, Board Secretary, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3538, FAX (804) 371-2945, e-mail jknight@vdacs.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

October 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Public Hearing
City Council Chambers, City Hall, 715 Princess Anne Street,
Fredericksburg, Virginia.

A public hearing on proposed amendments to 2 VAC 20-30, Regulations Governing the Pesticide Fees Charged by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services Under the Virginia Pesticide Control Act.

Contact: Marvin A. Lawson, Director, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St.; Room 401, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3534, FAX (804) 786-5112, toll-free (800) 552-9963, (800) 828-1120/TTY ☎, e-mail mlawson@vdacs.state.va.us.

Monday, September 8, 2003

Virginia Cattle Industry Board

† September 17, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Holiday Inn Golf and Conference Center, Woodrow Wilson Parkway, Staunton, Virginia.

During the regular business meeting, the board will approve minutes from the July 2003 meeting in addition to reviewing the financial statement for the period October 1, 2002, through September 1, 2003. Staff will give program updates for the state and national level. The board will review all projects submitted for fiscal year, October 1, 2003, to September 30, 2004. A proposed budget will be developed for the upcoming fiscal year. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact the person identified in this notice at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Reginald B. Reynolds, Executive Director, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, P.O. Box 9, Daleville, VA 24083, telephone (540) 992-1992, FAX (540) 992-4632.

Virginia Egg Board

† September 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting USDA Service Center 1934 Deyerle Avenue, Harrisonburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will review the educational/promotional programs, research projects and advertising campaigns as proposed by the Virginia Egg Council. Proposed budget for FY 03-04 will be approved if appropriate and the FY 02-03 financial statements will be reviewed. Proposed programs for FY 03-04 will be approved if appropriate.

Contact: Cecilia Glembocki, Secretary Virginia Egg Board, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 911 Saddleback Court McLean, VA 22102, telephone (703) 790-1984, FAX (703) 821-6748, toll-free (800) 779-7759, e-mail virginiaeggcouncil@erols.com.

Virginia Marine Products Board

† September 9, 2003 - 6 p.m. -- Open Meeting Jimmy's Restaurant, Kilmarnock, Virginia.

The board will hear and approve the minutes of the last board meeting and review the financial report. In addition, reports on trade shows, festivals, industry tours, and calendar sales and cooperative programs with the Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services staff and croaker exports will be discussed. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Shirley Estes at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Shirley Estes, Executive Director, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 554 Denbigh Boulevard,

Suite B, Newport News, VA, telephone (757) 874-3474, FAX (757) 886-0671.

Virginia Winegrowers Advisory Board - Marketing Committee

† September 8, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 9th Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

The Marketing Committee will meet to develop the marketing plan and budget for fiscal year 2004. In addition, the board will review its financial statement and review and approve minutes of the last board meeting, if appropriate. The committee will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact the person identified in this notice at least two days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Mary Davis-Barton, Program Manager, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank Street, 9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7685, FAX (804) 786-3122, e-mail mdavis-barton@vdacs.state.va.us.

STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled **9 VAC 5-20, General Provisions (Rev. G02).** The purpose of the proposed action is enlarge the scope of the Hampton Roads Emissions Control Area.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Kathleen R. Sands, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4413, FAX (804) 698-4510 or e-mail krsands@deq.state.va.us.

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled 9 VAC 5-20, General Provisions, and 9 VAC 5-40, Existing Stationary Sources (Rev. C03). The purpose of the proposed action is enlarge the scope of volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions control areas in order to include potential new ozone nonattainment areas. This action is being taken to program established bv implement a Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for areas potentially designated as nonattainment under the eighthour ozone standard. This program establishes such areas

to avoid the nonattainment designation through early reduction credits.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Karen G. Sabasteanski, Policy Analyst, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4426, FAX (804) 698-4510 or e-mail kgsabastea@deq.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled 9 VAC 5-20, General Provisions, and 9 VAC 5-40, Existing Stationary Sources (Rev. C02). The purpose of the proposed action is to achieve necessary VOC emissions reductions to stay within the budget limit in order to safeguard federal approval of transportation projects in Northern Virginia.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1308 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Kathleen R. Sands, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4413, FAX (804) 698-4510 or e-mail krsands@deq.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Air Pollution Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled **9 VAC 5-140**, **Regulation for Emission Trading.** The purpose of the proposed action is to correct an EPA-identified deficiency in the banking provisions of the No_x Budget Trading Program regulation with regard to the state date for flow control.

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-1308 and 10.1-1322.3 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Mary E. Major, Environmental Program Manager, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4423, FAX (804) 698-4510 or e-mail memajor@deq.state.va.us.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD

September 8, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting September 22, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 14, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 27, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 10, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 8, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, 2901 Hermitage

Road, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to receive and discuss reports and activities from staff members. Other matters are not yet determined.

Contact: W. Curtis Coleburn, III, Secretary to the Board, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, P.O. Box 27491, Richmond, VA 23261, telephone (804) 213-4409, FAX (804) 213-4442, e-mail wccolen@abc.state.va.us.

ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE AND RELATED DISORDERS COMMISSION

September 12, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 3, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting.

Contact: Janet L. Honeycutt, Director of Grant Operations, Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Commission, 1600 Forest Ave., Suite 102, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 662-9333, FAX (804) 662-9354, toll-free (800) 554-3402, (804) 662-9333/TTY ☎, e-mail jlhoneycutt@vdh.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, CERTIFIED INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

September 10, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulations,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for
the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct board business. The meeting is open to the public; however, a portion of the board's business may be discussed in closed session. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to this meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Executive Director, Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY \$\mathbb{\alpha}\$, e-mail APELSCIDLA@dpor.state.va.us.

† September 19, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Beach Municipal Center, 2401 Courthouse Drive, Building 1, Suite 200, Virginia Beach, Virginia.

† September 22, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Room 453, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Land Surveyor Section to conduct an informal fact-finding conference.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Executive Director, Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified

Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, 3600 W. Broad St. Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY **3**, e-mail APELSCIDLA@dpor.state.va.us.

† September 22, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Room 453, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Certified Interior Design Section to conduct an informal fact-finding conference.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Executive Director, Board for Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY 7, e-mail APELSCIDLA@dpor.state.va.us.

ART AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD

October 3, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 7, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
† December 5, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Science Museum of Virginia, 2500 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A monthly meeting to review projects submitted by state agencies. AARB submittal forms and submittal instructions can be downloaded by visiting the DGS forms center at www.dgs.state.va.us. Request Submittal Form # DGS-30-905 or Submittal Instructions form # DGS-30-906.

Contact: Richard L. Ford, AIA, Chairman, Art and Architectural Review Board, 1011 E. Main Street, Room 221, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 643-1977, FAX (804) 643-1981, (804) 786-6152/TTY ☎, e-mail rlfaia@aol.com.

VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS, LEAD, AND HOME INSPECTORS

September 11, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Room 453, Richmond,
Virginia

An informal fact-finding conference.

Contact: David Dick, Assistant Director, Virginia Board for Asbestos, Lead, and Home Inspectors, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail asbestos@dpor.state.va.us.

COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES FOR AT-RISK YOUTH AND FAMILIES

State Executive Council

September 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 29, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
† November 26, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Lower
Level Room 3, Richmond, Virginia

A monthly council meeting. For traveling directions, please call (804) 692-1100.

Contact: Alan G. Saunders, Director, Office of Comprehensive Services, 1604 Santa Rosa Rd., Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9815, FAX (804) 662-9831, e-mail ags992@central.dss.state.va.us.

BOARD OF AUDIOLOGY AND SPEECH-LANGUAGE PATHOLOGY

† November 6, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly business meeting to include regulatory and disciplinary matters as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology, Alcoa Building, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9111, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR BARBERS AND COSMETOLOGY

September 15, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting including consideration of regulatory issues as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be heard at the beginning of the meeting. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: William H. Ferguson, II, Executive Director, Board for Barbers and Cosmetology, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-6295, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail barbercosmo@dpor.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

September 15, 2003- 3 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

October 24, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Board for Barbers and Cosmetology intends to adopt regulations entitled **18 VAC 41-40**, **Wax Technician Regulations**. The purpose of the proposed action is to promulgate regulations governing the licensure and practice of wax technicians under the Board for Barbers and Cosmetology as directed by Chapter 797 of 2002 Acts of the Assembly.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-201 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: William H. Ferguson, II, Executive Director, Board for Barbers and Cosmetology, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-6295, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail barbercosmo@dpor.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT FOR THE BLIND AND VISION IMPAIRED

September 10, 2003 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Library and Resource Center, 395 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A joint board meeting of the Virginia Industries for the Blind in Richmond and Charlottesville.

Contact: Rick Bohrer, Industry Manager, Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired, 1535 High St., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 786-2056, FAX (804) 786-4582, toll-free (800) 622-2155, e-mail bohrerrc@dbvi.state.va.us.

October 14, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will review information regarding activities and operations of the department, review expenditures from board endowment fund, and discuss other issues raised for the board members.

Contact: Katherine C. Proffitt, Administrative Staff Assistant, Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3145, FAX (804) 371-3157, toll-free (800) 622-2155, (804) 371-3140/TTY , e-mail proffikc@dbvi.state.va.us.

Statewide Rehabilitation Council for the Blind

September 13, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Administrative Headquarters, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting to advise the department on matters related to vocational rehabilitation services for the blind and visually impaired citizens of the Commonwealth.

Contact: James G. Taylor, VR Program Director, Department for the Blind and Vision Impaired, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3111, FAX (804) 371-3390, toll-free (800) 622-2155, (804) 371-3140/TTY , e-mail taylorjg@dbvi.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS ASSISTANCE

Small Business Advisory Board

September 29, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Business Assistance, 707 East Main Street, Suite 300, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct general business of Small Business Advisory Board.

Contact: Wayne K. Waldrop, Director, Existing Business Services, Department of Business Assistance, P.O. Box 446, Richmond, VA 23218-0446, telephone (804) 371-8228, FAX (804) 371-2142, toll-free (866) 248-8814, e-mail wwaldrop@dba.state.va.us.

CEMETERY BOARD

† October 6, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Board Street, 4th Floor, Room 453, Richmond,
Virginia,

A meeting to conduct an informal fact-finding conference.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ★, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

October 7, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 5, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Canceled
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

CHARITABLE GAMING DEPARTMENT

September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, 5 West Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

The first meeting of the new board to include board orientation and swearing in, an overview of the department, a presentation from the Attorney General's office, FOIA and COIA. No public comments will be received during this portion, but will be received during the afternoon session

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

that commences at 1 p.m. in House Room C of the General Assembly Building.

Contact: Frances C. Jones, Administrative Staff Assistant, Charitable Gaming Department, 101 N. 14th St., 17th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3014, FAX (804) 786-1079, e-mail fjones@dcg.state.va.us.

CHESAPEAKE BAY LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD

September 15, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, James
Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Conference Room C,
Main Level, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf
provided upon request)

The board will conduct general business, including review of local Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area programs. Public comment will be taken.

Contact: Carolyn J. Elliott, Administrative Assistant, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 17th Floor Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7505, FAX (804) 225-3447, toll-free (800) 243-7229, (800) 243-7229/TTY ☎, e-mail celliott@cblad.state.va.us.

CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL

† September 11, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Lower Level 1, Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

New member orientation.

Contact: Pat Rengnerth, Liaison, Child Day-Care Council, Division of Legislative Affairs, 730 E. Broad St., Room 930, Richmond, VA 23219-1849, telephone (804) 692-1826, FAX (804) 692-1962, (800) 828-1120/TTY 8, e-mail pvr2@email1.dss.state.va.us.

STATE CHILD FATALITY REVIEW TEAM

September 12, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 14, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, 400 East Jackson
Street, Richmond, Virginia.

The business portion of the State Child Fatality Review Team meeting, from 10 a.m. to 10:30 a.m., is open to the public. At the conclusion of the open meeting, the team will go into closed session for confidential case review.

Contact: Virginia Powell, Coordinator, State Child Fatality Review Team, 400 East Jackson St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6047, FAX (804) 371-8595, toll-free (800) 447-1708, e-mail vpowell@vdh.state.va.us.

STATE BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES

September 10, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, 15th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Budget and Finance Committee. Meetings of the Facilities and the Personnel Committees will be held at 3 p.m.

Contact: D. Susan Hayden, Director of Public Relations, State Board for Community Colleges, VCCS, 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 819-4961, FAX (804) 819-4768, (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

September 11, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting James Monroe Building, Godwin-Hamel Board Room, 101 North 14th Street, 15th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting. Public comment may be received at the beginning of the meeting upon notification at least five working days prior to the meeting.

Contact: D. Susan Hayden, Director of Public Relations, State Board for Community Colleges, VCCS, 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 819-4961, FAX (804) 819-4768, (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

COMPENSATION BOARD

September 17, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting Compensation Board, 202 North 9th Street, 10th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly board meeting.

Contact: Cindy P. Waddell, Administrative Staff Assistant, Compensation Board, P.O. Box 710, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-0786, FAX (804) 371-0235, e-mail cwaddell@scb.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

† September 12, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Prince William County Public Works, Conference Room, Prince William, Virginia.

A meeting of state natural resources agency staff and regional stakeholders to develop an action plan to reduce the flow of nutrients and sediments into the Potomac River, part of Virginia's commitment to the multistate Chesapeake Bay Program.

Contact: Marc Aveni, DCR Potomac Watershed Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 98 Alexandria Pike, Suite 33, Warrenton, VA 20186-2849, telephone (540) 347-6422, e-mail maveni@dcr.state.va.us.

† September 16, 2003 - 6:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting Rugby Rescue Squad Building, 53 Rugby Road, Mouth of Wilson, Virginia.

Proposed developments in the Grayson Highlands State Park master plan will be discussed and public comments will be received.

Contact: Derral Jones, Planning Bureau Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 326, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-9042, FAX (804) 371-7899, e-mail djones@dcr.state.va.us.

Breaks Interstate Park Commission

September 11, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Rhododendron Restaurant, Breaks Interstate Park, Breaks, Virginia.

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Leon E. App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141, e-mail leonapp@dcr.state.va.us.

Virginia Cave Board

September 13, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Radford University, Heth Student Center, Blue Ridge
Conference Room, Radford, Virginia.

Committee meetings will begin at 11 a.m. The board meeting will begin at 1 p.m.

Contact: Larry Smith, Natural Area Protection Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6205, FAX (804) 371-2674, e-mail lsmith@dcr.state.va.us.

Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board

September 18, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Natural Resources Conservation Service, 1606 Santa Rosa Road, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Leon E. App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141, e-mail leonapp@dcr.state.va.us.

September 26, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Natural Resources Conservation Service, 1606 Santa Rosa Road, Richmond, Virginia.

Continued committee discussion of the Subcommittee on the Future of Districts.

Contact: Leon E. App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302 Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141, e-mail leonapp@dcr.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR CONTRACTORS

September 9, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † September 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting September 30, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 14, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 21, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 29, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting November 4, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 2, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Informal fact-finding conferences. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretive services should contact the department at 804-367-0946 at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made for appropriate accommodations. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Sharon Martin, Legal Assistant, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8582, FAX (804) 367-0194, (804) 367-9753/TTY , e-mail martin@dpor.state.va.us.

October 8, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting to address policy and procedural issues, review and render decisions on applications for contractors' licenses, and review and render case decisions on matured complaints against licensees. The meeting is open to the public; however, a portion of the board's business may be conducted in closed session.

Contact: Eric L. Olson, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2785, FAX (804) 367-2474, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail contractors@dpor.state.va.us.

September 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 28, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 29, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Informal fact-finding conferences for the Contractor Recovery Fund. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretive services should contact the department at 804-367-0946 at least 10 days prior to this meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made for appropriate accommodations. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Sharon Martin, Legal Assistant, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8562, FAX (804)

Volume 19, Issue 26

367-0194, (804) 367-9753/TTY **☎**, e-mail martin@dpor.state.va.us.

October 29, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Tradesman/Education Committee to consider items of interest relating to the tradesmen, backflow workers, education and other appropriate matters relating to tradesmen and the Board for Contractors.

Contact: Eric L. Olson, Assistant Director, Board for Contractors, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2785, FAX (804) 367-2474, (804) 367-9753/TTY ★, e-mail contractors@dpor.state.va.us.

BOARD OF CORRECTIONS

September 16, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. █

A meeting of the Liaison Committee to discuss correctional matters that may be presented to the board.

Contact: Barbara Woodhouse, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3124, FAX (804) 674-3509, e-mail woodhousebl@vadoc.state.va.us.

September 16, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Correctional Services/Policy and Regulations Committee to discuss correctional matters to be presented to the board.

Contact: Barbara Woodhouse, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3124, FAX (804) 674-3509, e-mail woodhousebl@vadoc.state.va.us.

September 17, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Room 3065, Richmond, Virginia.

■ 3003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Room 3065, Richmond, Virginia. ■

A meeting of the Administration Committee to discuss correctional matters to be presented to the board.

Contact: Barbara Woodhouse, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3124, FAX (804) 674-3509, e-mail woodhousebl@vadoc.state.va.us.

September 17, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. ☑

A meeting to discuss correctional matters presented to the board.

Contact: Barbara Woodhouse, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3124, FAX (804) 674-3509, e-mail woodhousebl@vadoc.state.va.us.

BOARD OF COUNSELING

November 21, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A business meeting to include reports from standing committees and any other disciplinary or regulatory matters as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Counseling, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9912, FAX (804) 662-9943, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail evelyn.brown@dhp.state.va.us.

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD

September 18, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

Contact: Melissa Feeley, Assistant to the Director, Criminal Justice Services Board, Eighth St. Office Bldg., 805 E. Broad St., 10th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-8718, FAX (804) 786-0588, e-mail mfeeley@dcjs.state.va.us.

BOARD OF DENTISTRY

September 11, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Training Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A formal hearing. There will be no public comment period.

Contact: JeAnne Marshall, Administrative Assistant, Board of Dentistry, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9906, FAX (804) 662-7246, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail JeAnne.Marshall@dhp.state.va.us.

September 12, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Training Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss regular board business. There will a be a public comment period at the start of the meeting.

Contact: Sandra Reen, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9906, FAX (804) 662-9943, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail sandra reen@dhp.state.va.us.

September 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Rooms 1 and 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A special conference committee will hold informal hearings. There will not be a public comment period.

Contact: JeAnne Marshall, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Fl, Richmond, Virginia 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9906,

FAX (804) 662-7246, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail JeAnne.Marshall@dhp.state.va.us.

DESIGN-BUILD/CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD

September 18, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 16, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 20, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of General Services, 8th Street Office Building, 3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to review requests submitted by localities to use design-build or construction management type contracts. Contact the Division of Engineering and Buildings to confirm the meeting. Board rules and regulations can be obtained online at www.dgs.state.va.us under the DGS Forms, Form # DGS-30-904.

Contact: Freddie M. Adcock, Administrative Assistant, Department of General Services, 805 E. Broad St., Room 101, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3263, FAX (804) 371-7934, (804) 786-6152/TTY , e-mail fadcock@dgs.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

September 18, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Economic Development, 901 East Byrd Street, West Tower, 19th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Directors to focus on issues pertaining to the Virginia Economic Development Partnership.

Contact: Kimberly M. Ellett, Senior Executive Assistant, Virginia Economic Development Partnership, P.O. Box 798, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-8108, FAX (804) 371-8112, e-mail kellett@yesvirginia.org.

BOARD OF EDUCATION

† September 12, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Crowne Plaza Hotel, 555 East Canal Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Advisory Committee on Adult Education and Literacy; work session. Public comment will not be received at this time. Please note that persons requesting the services of an interpreter for the deaf are asked to do so at least 72 hours in advance.

Contact: Dr. Yvonne Thayer, Director, Adult Education Programs, Department of Education, P.O. Box 2120, Richmond, VA 23218-2120; telephone (804) 225-2293 or FAX (804) 225-2524.

† September 15, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † November 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Sheraton Richmond West, 6624 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Advisory Board for Teacher Education and Licensure. The public is urged to confirm arrangements prior to each meeting by viewing the Department of Education's public meeting calendar at http://www.pen.k12.va.us/VDOE/meetings.html. This site will contain the latest information on the meeting arrangements and will note any last-minute changes in time or location. Please note that persons requesting the services of an interpreter for the deaf are asked to do so at least 72 hours in advance so that the appropriate arrangements may be made.

Contact: Dr. Margaret N. Roberts, Office of Policy and Public Affairs, Board of Education, P.O. Box 2120, 101 N. 14th St., 25th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2540, FAX (804) 225-2524, e-mail mroberts@mail.vak12ed.edu.

September 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 22, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Main Lobby,
Rooms D and E, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular business meeting of the board. Persons who wish to speak or who require the services of an interpreter for the deaf should contact the agency 72 hours in advance. Public comment will be received.

Contact: Dr. Margaret N. Roberts, Office of Policy and Public Affairs, Department of Education, P.O. Box 2120, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 25th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2540, FAX (804) 225-2524, e-mail mroberts@mail.vak12ed.edu.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

September 11, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
September 29, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 15, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional
Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

A meeting of the Water Policy Technical Advisory Committee (WP-TAC) working on a preliminary water resources plan and local and regional water supply regulations. Prior work of the WP-TAC resulted in SB 1221 (2003), which was passed by the General Assembly and signed by the Governor on March 24, 2003. This legislation will provide part of the structure for the work of the WP-TAC through the rest of the year. In addition, the work of the WP-TAC will be informed by work that was conducted during the fall of 2002.

Contact: Scott W. Kudlas, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4456, FAX (804) 698-4346, e-mail swkudlas@deq.state.va.us.

† September 11, 2003 - 6 p.m. -- Open Meeting New River Valley Competitiveness Center, 6580 Valley Center

New River Valley Competitiveness Center, 6580 Valley Center Drive, Radford, Virginia.

Fifth public meeting of the New River PCB Source Study Citizens' Committee to discuss efforts to locate current or historical sources of PCBs and the status of PCBs in the New River.

Contact: Jay Roberts, Department of Environmental Quality, 3019 Peters Creek Rd., Roanoke, VA 24019, telephone (540) 562-6785, FAX (540) 562-6860, e-mail jaroberts@deq.state.va.us.

September 11, 2003 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Avenue United Methodist Church, Fellowship Hall, 1901 Virginia Avenue, Bluefield, Virginia.

The first public meeting on the development of a TMDL to address the benthic and bacteria impairments of Bluestone River in Tazewell County. Notice of the public comment period will be published in the Virginia Register on August 25, 2003. The comment period will close on October 14, 2003.

Contact: Nancy T. Norton, Department of Environmental Quality, 355 Deadmore St., Abingdon, VA 24210, telephone (276) 676-4807, FAX (276) 676-4899, e-mail ntnorton@deq.state.va.us.

September 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Ground Water Protection Steering Committee.

Contact: Mary Ann Massie, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4042, e-mail mamassie@deq.state.va.us.

September 22, 2003 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting Bland County Board of Education Offices, Route 615, Bastian, Virginia

The first public meeting on the development of a water quality TMDL for Hunting Camp Creek in Bland County. Notice of the public comment period will be published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on August 25, 2003. The comment period will close on October 24, 2003.

Contact: Nancy T. Norton, Department of Environmental Quality, 355 Deadmore St., Abingdon, VA 24210, telephone (276) 676-4807, FAX (276) 676-4899, e-mail ntnorton@deq.state.va.us.

September 23, 2003 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting Patrick Henry High School Auditorium, 31437 Hillman Highway, Glade Spring, Virginia.

The final public meeting to review and comment on a draft TMDL report for aquatic life for Hutton, Hall/Byers and Cedar Creeks located in Washington County. The notice of public comment will be published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on August 25, 2003. The comment period will close on October 24, 2003.

Contact: Nancy T. Norton, Department of Environmental Quality, 355 Deadmore St., Abingdon, VA 24210, telephone (276) 676-4807, FAX (276) 676-4899, e-mail ntnorton@deq.state.va.us.

Recycling Markets Development Council

November 13, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Henrico Training Center, 7701 East Parham Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

A regular meeting.

Contact: G. Steven Coe, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4029, FAX (804) 698-4224, e-mail gscoe@deq.state.va.us.

BOARD OF FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS

† September 9, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond Virginia.

A quarterly business meeting to include regulatory and disciplinary matters as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Alcoa Building, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

September 9, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
September 10, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to hear possible violations of the laws and regulations governing the practice of funeral service.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

† September 30, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

The Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers will convene to hear possible violations of the laws and regulations governing the practice of funeral service.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY 7, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

† October 7, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

The Task Force on Inspection Process will meet to review current inspection procedures for funeral homes.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

† November 26, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Profession, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

The Legislative/Regulatory Committee will convene to review and amend current regulations.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR GEOLOGY

November 20, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Board for Geology, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-6128, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail geology@dpor.state.va.us.

GEORGE MASON UNIVERSITY

September 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting George Mason University, Mason Hall, Fairfax, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Visitors. The agenda will be published 10 days prior to the meeting.

Contact: Mary Roper, Secretary, pro tem, George Mason University, MSN 3A1, George Mason University, 4400 University Dr., Fairfax, VA 22030, telephone (703) 993-8707, (703) 993-8707/TTY ★, e-mail mroper@gmu.edu.

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Hampton History Museum, 120 Old Hampton Lane, Hampton, Virginia.

September 23, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Northern Virginia area.

A meeting of the Urban Policy Task Force.

Contact: Kelly Spraker, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1902.

STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

October 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health, Main Street Station, 1500 East Main
St., 3rd Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

Contact: Rene Cabral-Daniels, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3561.

* * * * * * * *

October 31, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Health intends to amend regulations entitled 12 VAC 5-90, Regulations for Disease Reporting and Control. The purpose of the proposed action is to bring the regulations into compliance with recent changes to the Code of Virginia and with recent changes in the field of communicable disease control and emergency preparedness that need to be implemented to protect the health of the citizens of Virginia. The Regulations for Disease Reporting and Control provide information about what diseases must be reported, who must report them, and how reporting is conducted. The proposed amendment includes the addition and clarification of several definitions, updates to the reportable disease list and the list of diseases requiring rapid reporting, the addition of a requirement to report diseases that may be due to a biologic agent used as a weapon, the addition of information about how laboratories shall report their inventories of dangerous microbes and pathogens, the addition of a section about the reporting and control of tuberculosis, an update to the list of conditions reportable by laboratories and the tests used to confirm those conditions, and the addition of a requirement for private laboratories to submit designated specimens to the state laboratory for confirmation and further testing. Due to the need for information in order to act to protect the public, an amendment is proposed to require the reporting of diseases within three days instead of seven days.

Statutory Authority: §§ 32.1-12 and 32.1-35 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Diane Woolard, Ph.D., M.P.H., Director, Surveillance and Investigation, Department of Health, P.O. Box 2448, Room 113, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-6261, FAX (804) 371-4050 or e-mail dwoolard@vdh.state.va.us.

Biosolids Regulations Advisory Committee

September 18, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Natural Resources Building, 900 Natural Resources Drive, Fontaine Research Park, Charlottesville, Virginia.

A meeting of the BURAC to discuss implementation of the Biosolids Use Regulations (12 VAC 5-585) and to consider

Monday, September 8, 2003

recommendations for amendments to these regulations. A meeting of the Biosolids Use Information Committee will follow the morning portion of the meeting.

Contact: C. M. Sawyer, Division Director, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 109, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-1755, FAX (804) 371-2891, e-mail csawyer@vdh.state.va.us.

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board

November 14, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting The Place at Innsbrook, 4036-C Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting of the State EMS Advisory Board.

Contact: Gary R. Brown, Director, Department of Health, 1538 E. Parham Rd., Richmond, VA 23228, telephone (804) 371-3500, FAX (804) 371-3543, toll-free (800) 523-6019, e-mail gbrown@vdh.state.va.us.

Sewage Handling and Disposal Advisory Committee

November 20, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health, 1500 East Main Street, Room 115, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss regulations, new technologies and new products to recommend for approval to the State Health Commissioner for use in Virginia.

Contact: Donald J. Alexander, Division Director, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 115, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-4030, FAX (804) 225-4003, e-mail dalexander@vdh.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

October 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street,
5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A bimonthly meeting of the Intervention Program Committee for the Health Practitioners' Intervention Program.

Contact: Donna P. Whitney, Intervention Program Manager, Department of Health Professions, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9424, FAX (804) 662-7358, e-mail donna.whitney@dhp.state.va.us.

STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR VIRGINIA

September 16, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting James Madison University, Harrisonburg, Virginia.

Informal work session only.

Contact: Lee Ann Rung, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, 101 N. 14th St., Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 225-2602, FAX (804) 371-7911, e-mail LeeAnnRung@schev.edu.

September 17, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting James Madison University, College Center, Harrisonburg, Virginia.

Agenda materials will be available on the website approximately one week prior to the meeting at www.schev.edu. A public comment period will be allocated on the meeting agenda. To be scheduled, those interested in making public comment should contact the person listed below no later than 5 p.m. three business days prior to the meeting date. At the time of the request, the speaker's name, address and topic must be provided. Each speaker will be given up to three minutes to address SCHEV. Speakers are asked to submit a written copy of their remarks at the time of comment.

Contact: Lee Ann Rung, State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, 101 N. 14th St., Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 225-2602, FAX (804) 371-7911, e-mail LeeAnnRung@schev.edu.

DEPARTMENT OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

Board of Historic Resources and State Review Board

September 10, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Valentine History Center, 1015 East Clay Street, Richmond, Virginia.

The boards will consider nominations to the Virginia Landmarks Register and the National Register of Historic Places. They will also consider Historic Preservation Easements and Historic Highway Markers.

Contact: Marc Wagner, National Register Manager, Department of Historic Resources, 2405 Kensington Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 367-2323, FAX (804) 367-2391, (804) 367-2386/TTY ☎, e-mail mwagner@dhr.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

† September 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 South Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Housing Development Authority to review and, if appropriate, approve the minutes from the prior meeting. The board may consider for approval and ratification mortgage loan commitments under its various programs. The board will review the authority's operations for the prior month and will consider for approval proposed amendments to the authority's Rules and Regulations for Single Family Mortgage Loans to Persons and Families of Low and Moderate Income. Additionally, the board will consider such other matters and take such other actions as it may deem appropriate. Various committees of the Board of Commissioners, including the Programs Committee, the Audit/Operations Committee, the Executive Committee, and the Committee of the Whole, may also meet during the day preceding the regular meeting and before and after the

regular meeting and may consider matters within their purview. The planned agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.

Contact: J. Judson McKellar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere St., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 343-5540, FAX (804) 783-6701, toll-free (800) 968-7837, (804) 783-6705/TTY ☎

BOARD OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

† September 22, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Housing and Community Development, The Jackson Center, 501 North 2nd Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting of the board.

Contact: Stephen W. Calhoun, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Housing and Community Development, The Jackson Center, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, VA 23219-1321, telephone (804) 371-7000, FAX (804) 371-7090, (804) 371-7089/TTY ☎, e-mail scalhoun@dhcd.state.va.us.

State Building Code Technical Review Board

† September 19, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Housing and Community Development, The Jackson Center, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, Virginia (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Review Board hears administrative appeals concerning building and fire codes and other regulations of the department. The board also issues interpretations and formalizes recommendations to the Board of Housing and Community Development concerning future changes to the regulations.

Contact: Vernon W. Hodge, Secretary, Department of Housing and Community Development, Office of the Review Board, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7150.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

October 31, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Human Resource Management intends to amend regulations entitled 1 VAC 55-20, Commonwealth of Virginia Health Benefits Program. The purpose of the proposed action is to conform 1 VAC 55-20 to state and federal law. 1 VAC 55-20 regulates the administration of the health benefit plans offered to state employees and employees of local municipalities who provide health benefit coverage through The Local Choice (TLC) program. These proposed regulations reflect changes made to the Code of Virginia as well as federal laws and regulations that are applicable to the state and TLC program.

Statutory Authority: §§ 2.2-1204 and 2.2-2818 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Charles Reed, Associate Director, Department of Human Resource Management, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3214, FAX (804) 371-0231 or e-mail creed@dhrm.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AGENCY

Virginia Geographic Information Network Advisory Board

November 6, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting Richmond Plaza Building, 110 South 7th Street, 3rd Floor Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular board meeting.

Contact: Bill Shinar, VGIN Coordinator, Virginia Information Technologies Agency, 110 S. 7th Street, Suite 135, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-8175, FAX (804) 371-2795, e-mail bshinar@vgin.state.va.us.

Wireless E-911 Services Board

September 10, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 12, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Richmond Plaza Building, 110 South 7th Street, 3rd Floor

Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the CMRS subcommittee in closed session.

Contact: Steven Marzolf, Public Safety Communications Coordinator, Virginia Information Technologies Agency, 110 South 7th Street, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-0015, e-mail smarzolf@dtp.state.va.us.

September 10, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 12, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Richmond Plaza Building, 110 South 7th Street, 3rd Floor
Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular monthly meeting of the full board.

Contact: Steven Marzolf, Public Safety Communications Coordinator, Virginia Information Technologies Agency, 110 South 7th Street, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-0015, e-mail smarzolf@dtp.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA INTERAGENCY COORDINATING COUNCIL

† September 10, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Henrico Area Mental Health, 10299 Woodman Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The VICC meets quarterly to advise and assist the Virginia Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation, and Substance Abuse Services (DMHMRSAS), as the lead agency for Part C of (IDEA), early intervention for infants and toddlers with disabilities and their families. Discussion

Volume 19, Issue 26 Monday, September 8, 2003

focuses on issues related to Virginia's implementation of the Part C program.

Contact: LaKeishia White, Part C Office Specialist, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-3710, FAX (804) 371-7959, toll-free (800) 234-1448.

JAMESTOWN-YORKTOWN FOUNDATION

NOTE: CHANGE IN MEETING TIME

September 10, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting November 5, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting

The College of William and Mary, University Center, Tidewater Room B, 2nd Floor, Williamsburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Jamestown 2007 Steering Committee's Executive Committee. Public comment will not be heard.

Contact: Stacey Ruckman, Jamestown 2007 Executive Assistant, Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation, P.O. Box 1607, Williamsburg, VA 23187, telephone (757) 253-4659, FAX (757) 253-5299, toll-free (888) 593-4682, (757) 253-7236/TTY ☎, e-mail sruckman@jyf.state.va.us.

November 17, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 18, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Williamsburg Hospitality House, 415 Richmond Road, Williamsburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Semiannual board and committee meetings. Specific schedule not yet confirmed. Public comment will not be heard.

Contact: Laura W. Bailey, Executive Assistant to the Boards, Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation, P.O. Box 1607, Williamsburg, VA 23187, telephone (757) 253-4840, FAX (757) 253-5299, toll-free (888) 593-4682, (757) 253-7236/TTY ☎, e-mail lwbailey@jyf.state.va.us.

STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

October 31, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Juvenile Justice intends to adopt regulations entitled 6 VAC 35-170, Minimum Standards for Research Involving Human Subjects or Records of the Department of Juvenile Justice. The purpose of the proposed action is to establish a process for reviewing and approving research proposals involving human subjects to effectuate the provisions of Chapter 5.1 (§ 32.1-162.16 et seq.) of Title 32.1 of the Code of Virginia, regarding human research.

Statutory Authority: § 66-10.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice, P.O. Box 1110, Richmond, VA 23208-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743, FAX (804) 371-0773 or e-mail carigndr@djj.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Virginia Apprenticeship Council

† September 18, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting New Horizons Regional Education Center, 520 Butler Farm Road, Hampton, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting of the council.

Contact: Beverley Donati, Assistant Program Director, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Bldg., 13 S. 13th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2382, FAX (804) 786-8418, (804) 786-2376/TTY ☎, e-mail bgd@doli.state.va.us.

Virginia Migrant and Seasonal Farmworkers Board

October 29, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting State Capitol, House Room 1, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular quarterly meeting.

Contact: Betty B. Jenkins, Board Administrator, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Building, 13 S. 13th Street, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2391, FAX (804) 371-6524, (804) 786-2376/TTY ☎, e-mail bbj@doli.state.va.us.

Safety and Health Codes Board

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Safety and Health Codes Board intends to adopt regulations entitled 16 VAC 25-145, Safety Standards for Fall Protection in Steel Erection, Construction Industry. The purpose of the proposed action is to establish in regulation the current VOSH administrative policy regarding fall protection for steel erection workers from falls at or above 10 feet.

Statutory Authority: § 40.1-22 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Regina P. Cobb, Agency Management Analyst Senior, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Bldg., 13 S. 13th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0610, FAX (804) 786-8418, (804) 786-2376/TTY ☎, e-mail rlc@doli.state.va.us.

STATE LIBRARY BOARD

September 22, 2003 - 8:15 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 17, 2003 - 8:15 a.m. -- Open Meeting The Library of Virginia, 800 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

Meetings of the board to discuss matters pertaining to the Library of Virginia and the board. Committees of the board will meet as follows:

8:15 a.m. - Public Library Development Committee, Floor 2M

Publications and Educational Services Committee, Conference Room B:

Records Management Committee

9:30 a.m. - Archival and Information Services Committee Collection Management Services Committee Legislative and Finance Committee

10:30 a.m. - Library Board

Contact: Jean H. Taylor, Executive Secretary to the Librarian, The Library of Virginia, 800 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219-2000, telephone (804) 692-3535, FAX (804) 692-3594, (804) 692-3976/TTY ☎, e-mail jtaylor@lva.lib.va.us.

LONGWOOD UNIVERSITY

† September 12, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Longwood University, 201 High Street, Stallard Board Room (Lancaster 215), Farmville, Virginia.

Meetings of the following committees to conduct routine committee business:

9 a.m. - Audit

9:30 a.m. - Administration, Finance and Facilities 12:45 p.m. - University Advancement 2 p.m. - Academic and Student Affairs

Contact: Jeanne Hayden, Administrative Staff Assistant, Longwood University, Office of the President, Longwood University, 201 High St., Farmville, VA 23909, telephone (434) 395-2004, e-mail jhayden@longwood.edu.

† September 13, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Longwood University, 201 High Street, Stallard Board Room (Lancaster 215), Farmville, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct routine business of the Board of Visitors.

Contact: Jeanne Hayden, Administrative Staff Assistant, Longwood University, Office of the President, Longwood University, 201 High St., Farmville, VA 23909, telephone (434) 395-2004, e-mail jhayden@longwood.edu.

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

September 23, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 28, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Avenue,
4th Floor, Newport News, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A monthly commission meeting.

Contact: Kathy Leonard, Executive Secretary, Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Ave., 3rd Floor, Newport News, VA 23607, telephone (757) 247-2120, FAX (757) 247-8101, toll-free (800) 541-4646, (757) 247-2292/TTY **☎**, e-mail kleonard@mrc.state.va.us.

BOARD OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting.

Contact: Nancy Malczewski, Board Liaison, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-8096, FAX (804) 371-4981, (800) 343-0634/TTY **2**, e-mail nmalczew@dmas.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

Medicaid Physician Advisory Committee

October 14, 2003 - 4 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

The discussion of physician issues in the Medicaid system.

Contact: Chris Schroeder, Administrative Staff Specialist, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-0552, FAX (804) 371-4981, (800) 343-0634/TTY ☎, e-mail cschroed@dmas.state.va.us.

Medicaid Transportation Advisory Committee

† October 15, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad, Street Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to provide a forum for ongoing input and communication with transportation providers, health care providers, and recipients regarding the Medicaid non-emergency brokerage transportation program.

Contact: Robert Knox, Transportation Supervisor, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8854, FAX (804) 786-1680, (800) 343-0634/TTY ☎, e-mail Rknox@dmas.state.va.us.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

Informal Conference Committee

September 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † October 22, 2003 - 8:45 a.m. -- Open Meeting † November 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Williamsburg Marriott, 50 Kingsmill Road, Williamsburg, Virginia.

† September 18, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Holiday Inn Select, 2801 Plank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

† September 24, 2003 - 8:45 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

† October 29, 2003 - 9:15 a.m. -- Open Meeting † November 12, 2003 - 9:15 a.m. -- Open Meeting Clarion Hotel, 3315 Ordway Drive, Roanoke, Virginia.

A meeting to inquire into allegations that certain practitioners may have violated laws and regulations governing the practice of medicine and other healing arts in Virginia. The committee will meet in open and closed sessions pursuant to the Code of Virginia. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Peggy Sadler or Renee Dixson, Staff, Department of Health Professions, 6603 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-7332, FAX (804) 662-9517, (804) 662-7197/TTY **☎**, e-mail Peggy.Sadler@dhp.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES

September 25, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing Jefferson Building, 1220 Bank Street, 8th Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing to receive comments on the Virginia Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant Application for Fiscal Year 2004. Copies of the application are available for review at the Office of Substance Abuse, Room 818, Jefferson Building, Richmond, Virginia, and at each community services board office. Comments may be made at the hearing or in writing by no later than September 26, 2003, to the Office of the Commissioner, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218. Any person wishing to make a presentation at the hearing should contact Mellie Randall. Copies of oral presentations should be filed at the time of the hearing.

Contact: Mellie Randall, Office of Substance Abuse, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-2135, FAX (804) 786-4320, (804) 371-8977/TTY , e-mail mrandall@dmhmrsas.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF MINES, MINERALS AND ENERGY

September 23, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Buchanan-Smith Building, Room 219, US Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

September 28, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy intends to amend regulations entitled **4 VAC 25-10**, **Public Participation Guidelines.** The purpose of the

proposed action is to accept comments on the amendments to the department's public participation guidelines.

Statutory Authority: §§ 45.1-161.3, 45.1-361.15, 45.1-161.28 and 45.1-161.292:19 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Stephen A. Walz, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, 202 N. 9th St., 8th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219-3402, telephone (804) 692-3211, FAX (804) 692-3237 or e-mail saw@mme.state.va.us.

* * * * * * *

September 23, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Buchanan-Smith Building, Room 219, US Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

October 11, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Coal Mining Examiners intends to amend regulations entitled 4 VAC 25-20, Board of Coal Mining Examiners Certification Requirements. The purpose of the proposed action is to ensure that miners are certified and perform tasks required to mine coal safely and knowledgeably, to provide for the health and safety of persons and property on or near the mines, to provide a pool of qualified mining employees, and to encourage productive coal mines.

Statutory Authority: §§ 45.1-161.28, 45.1-161.29 and 45.1-161.34 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Frank Linkous, Mine Chief, Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, P.O. Drawer 900, U.S. Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, VA 24219, telephone (276) 523-8224, (276) 523-8239, FAX (804) 692-3237 or e-mail fal@mme.state.va.us.

September 25, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Forestry, Fontaine Research Park, 900 Natural Resources Drive, Charlottesville, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

* * * * * * * *

September 28, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Mineral Mining Examiners intends to amend regulations entitled **4 VAC 25-35, Certification Requirements for Mineral Miners.** The purpose of the proposed action is to accept comments on the amendments to the department's Certification Requirements for Mineral Miners, 4 VAC 25-35.

Statutory Authority: § 45.1-161.292:19 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Jeff Stewart, Safety Engineer, Sr., Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Fontaine Research Park, 900 Natural Resources Dr., Charlottesville, VA 22903, telephone (434) 951-6315, FAX (434) 951-6325 or e-mail jds@mme.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

September 23, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Buchanan-Smith Building, Room 219, US Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

October 11, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy intends to adopt regulations entitled 4 VAC 25-125, Regulations Governing Coal Stockpiles and Bulk Storage and Handling Facilities. The purpose of the proposed action is to meet industry and worker needs to improve worker safety on and around coal handling and storage facilities at coal mine sites. The Regulations Governing Coal Stockpiles and Bulk Storage and Handling Facilities provides worker protection through the implementation of safe working procedures and practices where there were previously none.

Statutory Authority: §§ 45.1-161.3, 45.1-161.106 and 45.1-161.254 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Frank Linkous, Mine Chief, Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, P.O. Drawer 900, U.S. Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, VA 24219, telephone (276) 523-8224, (276) 523-8239, FAX (804) 692-3237 or e-mail fal@mme.state.va.us.

MOTOR VEHICLE DEALER BOARD

† September 8, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Street, Room 702, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Committees will meet as follows:

Dealer Practices Committee - 8:30 a.m.

Franchise Law Committee - To be scheduled as needed Licensing Committee - Immediately following Dealer Practices

Advertising Committee - 9:30 a.m. or immediately following Licensing Committee

Transaction Recovery Fund Committee - Immediately following Advertising

The full board will meet at 10:30 a.m. Meetings may begin later, but not earlier than scheduled. Meeting end times are approximate. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the board at least 10 days before the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Alice R. Weedon, Administrative Assistant, Motor Vehicle Dealer Board, 2201 W. Broad St., Suite 104, Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 367-1100, FAX (804) 367-1053, toll-free (877) 270-0203, e-mail dboard@mvb.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES

† September 10, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Street, Richmond Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A business meeting of the Medical Advisory Board.

Contact: J. C. Branche, R. N., Assistant Division Manager, Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 W. Broad St., Richmond VA 23220, telephone (804) 497-7188, FAX (804) 367-1604, toll-free (866) 368-5463, (800) 272-9268/TTY ☎, e-mail dmvj3b@dmv.state.va.us.

September 24, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 23, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Street, 7th
Floor, Executive Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Legal Presence Panel.

Contact: Vivian R. Cheatham, Confidential Assistant, Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 367-6606, FAX (804) 367-2296, e-mail dmvvrc@dmv.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA MUSEUM OF FINE ARTS

NOTE: CHANGE IN MEETING DATE
September 9, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 7, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 4, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Avenue, Main
Lobby, Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly meeting of the Executive Committee. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Suzanne Broyles, Secretary of the Museum, Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 340-1503, FAX (804) 340-1502, (804) 340-1401/TTY ☎, e-mail sbroyles@vmfa.state.va.us.

September 12, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting September 17, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Avenue, CEO Building, 2nd Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

The following committees will meet:

Exhibitions - 9 a.m.

Nominating - 10 a.m.

Planning - 10:30 a.m.

Expansion - 12:30 p.m.

Education and Programs - 2 p.m.

Communications and Marketing - 3:15 p.m.

Legislative - 4:15 p.m.

Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Suzanne Broyles, Secretary of the Museum, Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 340-1503, FAX (804) 340-1502, (804) 340-1401/TTY ☎, e-mail sbroyles@vmfa.state.va.us.

Volume 19, Issue 26

September 18, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Avenue, Richmond, Virginia.

The following committees will meet:

Buildings and Grounds - 8:30 a.m. - CEO Building, 2nd Floor Conference Room

Collections - 9:30 a.m. - Auditorium

Finance - 11 a.m. - Main Lobby Conference Room

Board of Trustees - 12:30 p.m. - Auditorium

Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Suzanne Broyles, Secretary of the Museum, Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 340-1503, FAX (804) 340-1502, (804) 340-1401/TTY **★**, e-mail sbroyles@vmfa.state.va.us.

November 19, 2003 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Avenue, Richmond, Virginia.

The following committees will meet:

Finance - 9 a.m. - Main Lobby Conference Room

Collections - 10 a.m. - Auditorium

Expansion - 11 a.m. - CEO Parlor

Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Suzanne Broyles, Secretary of the Museum, Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 340-1503, FAX (804) 340-1502, (804) 340-1401/TTY **☎**, e-mail sbroyles@vmfa.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

September 15, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 20, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

LeClair Ryan Consulting, 1010 First Union Building, 213 South Jefferson Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia.

November 14, 2003 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Museum of Natural History, 1001 Douglas Avenue, Martinsville, Virginia.

A meeting of the Executive Committee to discuss the management and direction of the museum.

Contact: Cindy Rorrer, Administrative Assistant, Virginia Museum of Natural History, 1001 Douglas Ave., Martinsville, VA 24112, telephone (276) 666-8616, FAX (276) 632-6487, (276) 666-8638/TTY **☎**, e-mail crorrer@vmnh.net.

BOARD OF NURSING

September 22, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

September 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

September 25, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

November 20, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A panel of the board will conduct formal hearings with licensees or certificate holders. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Jay P. Douglas, M.S.M., C.S.A.C., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512, (804) 662-7197/TTY , e-mail nursebd@dhp.state.va.us.

September 23, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 18, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, Board Room 2, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting including committee reports, consideration of regulatory action, and disciplinary case decisions as presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at 11 a.m.

Contact: Jay P. Douglas, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail jay.douglas@dhp.state.va.us.

October 7, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 8, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 14, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 15, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 21, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 23, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

October 28, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† December 3, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 4, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia.

A Special Conference Committee, comprised of two or three members of the Virginia Board of Nursing, will conduct informal conferences with licensees and certificate holders. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Jay P. Douglas, R.N., M.S.M., C.S.A.C., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail nursebd@dhp.state.va.us.

OLD DOMINION UNIVERSITY

September 11, 2003 - 1:15 p.m. -- Open Meeting Webb University Center, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting of the governing board of the institution to discuss business of the board and the institution as determined by the rector and the president.

Contact: Donna Meeks, Executive Secretary to the Board of Visitors, Old Dominion University, 204 Koch Hall, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA 23529, telephone (757) 683-3072, FAX (757) 683-5679, e-mail dmeeks@odu.edu.

BOARD FOR OPTICIANS

† September 12, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A general board meeting to include consideration of public participation guidelines, voluntary service, and fee increase.

Contact: William H. Ferguson, II, Executive Director, Board for Opticians, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-6295, (804) 367-9753/TTY , e-mail opticians@dpor.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA BOARD FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Independence Center, 6320 North Center Drive, Suite 100, Norfolk, Virginia.

A meeting of the VBPD committee chairs.

Contact: Sandra Smalls, Executive Assistant to the Director, Virginia Board for People with Disabilities, 202 N. 9th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 786-9368, FAX (804) 786-1118, toll-free (800) 846-4464, e-mail smallsse@vbpd.state.va.us.

† October 21, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Williamsburg Marriott Hotel, 50 Kingsmill Road, Williamsburg, Virginia (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A two-day planning retreat.

Contact: Sandra Smalls, Executive Assistant to the Director, Virginia Board for People with Disabilities, 202 N. 9th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 786-9368, FAX (804) 786-1118, toll-free (800) 846-4464, e-mail smallsse@vbpd.state.va.us.

PESTICIDE CONTROL BOARD

October 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting City Council Chambers, City Hall, 715 Princess Anne Street, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

November 26, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Pesticide Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled 2 VAC 20-30, Rules and Regulations Governing the Pesticide Fees Charged by the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services Under the Virginia Pesticide Control Act. The purpose of the proposed action is to review the regulation for effectiveness and continued need. The proposed regulations set fees for (i) pesticide products offered for sale in the Commonwealth; (ii) commercial pesticide applicators providers providing pest control services to citizens of the Commonwealth; (iii) registered technician applicators providing pest control services to citizens of the Commonwealth: and (iv) pesticide businesses operating in the Commonwealth. In addition to the fee structure, these regulations establish renewal deadlines and late fees.

Statutory Authority: § 3.1-249.30 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Marvin A. Lawson, Director, Pesticide Control Board, 1100 Bank St., Room 401, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (8904) 786-3534, FAX (804) 786-5112, toll-free 1-800-552-9963, e-mail@vdacs.state.va.us.

BOARD OF PHARMACY

September 8, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street,
Conference Room 2, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting, including consideration of disciplinary matters as presented on the agenda. The public may present comment after the adoption of the agenda and the acceptance of the minutes.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, RPh, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9911, FAX (804) 662-9313, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail scotti.russell@dhp.state.va.us.

BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY

† October 24, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly business meeting to include regulatory and disciplinary matters as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Elizabeth Young, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 West Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9924, FAX (804) 662-9523, (804) 662-7197/TTY , e-mail elizabeth.young@dhp.state.va.us.

POLYGRAPH EXAMINERS ADVISORY BOARD

September 18, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Canceled † December 3, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Eric Olson, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2785, FAX (804) 367-2474, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail olson@dpor.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION

September 22, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room,

Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

October 1, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing

Arlington County Board Chambers, 1 Court House Square, 2100 Clarendon Boulevard, Arlington, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing to study the possible regulation of photogrammetry.

Contact: Judith A. Spiller, Executive Secretary, Board for Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519, FAX (804) 367-9537, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail spiller@dpor.state.va.us.

September 22, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

October 1, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Arlington County Board Chambers, 1 Court House Square, 2100 Clarendon Boulevard, Arlington, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing to study the possible regulation of computer voice stress analyzers.

Contact: Judith A. Spiller, Executive Secretary, Board for Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519, FAX (804) 367-9537, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail spiller@dpor.state.va.us.

September 22, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting of the board.

Contact: Judith A. Spiller, Executive Secretary, Board for Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519, FAX (804) 367-9537, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail spiller@dpor.state.va.us.

November 15, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss proposed wrestling regulations.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

† September 30, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† October 21, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, Board Room 4, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

The Board of Psychology will convene to hear possible violations of the laws and regulations that govern the practice of psychology.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Psychology, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9913, FAX (804) 662-9943, (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎, e-mail evelyn.brown@dhp.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA PUBLIC GUARDIAN AND CONSERVATOR ADVISORY BOARD

September 25, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting 1600 Forest Avenue, Suite 102, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular quarterly meeting.

Contact: Terry Raney, Guardianship Coordinator, Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Ave., Suite 102, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-7049, FAX (804) 662-9354, toll-free (800) 552-3402, (804) 662-9333/TTY ☎, e-mail traney@vdh.stat.va.us.

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

† September 17, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly meeting. The commission will consider an emergency regulation amending its regulations pertaining to the acquisition of interests in licenses. Public comment will be received.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418, e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

† October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

* * * * * * * *

† November 7, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to amend regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-20, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering. The purpose of the proposed action is to update the criteria for unlimited horse racing facilities in Virginia.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

† October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia

† November 7, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to amend regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-20, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering. The purpose of the proposed action is to update requests for racing days in Virginia.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

† October 15, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

† November 7, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Racing Commission intends to amend regulations entitled 11 VAC 10-20, Regulations Pertaining to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering. The purpose of the proposed action is to update the assignment of racing days within Virginia.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-369 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Director of Policy and Planning, Virginia Racing Commission, P.O. Box 208, New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7404, FAX (804) 966-7418 or e-mail Anderson@vrc.state.va.us.

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD

November 18, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Real Estate Appraiser Board, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

REAL ESTATE BOARD

September 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting September 18, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 12, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting November 13, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct informal fact-finding conferences. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Ilona LaPaglia, Legal Assistant, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2394, FAX (804) 367-0194, (804) 367-9753/TTY **2**, e-mail amaker@dpor.state.va.us.

October 22, 2003 - 4 p.m. -- Open Meeting † December 3, 2003 - 4 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Education Committee to review education applications.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

October 23, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 4, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Fair Housing Board to review fair housing cases.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

October 23, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting † December 4, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the board to conduct board business.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Regulatory Programs Coordinator, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8537, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ★ e-mail oneal@dpor.state.va.us.

Volume 19, Issue 26

REFORESTATION OF TIMBERLANDS BOARD

September 23, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Forestry Central Office, 900 Natural Resources Drive Charlottesville, Virginia.

A meeting to review last fiscal year accomplishments and financial records and to discuss plans for the current year.

Contact: Phil T. Grimm, Staff Forester, Department of Forestry, 900 Natural Resources Dr., Suite #800, Charlottesville, VA 22903, telephone (434) 977-6555, FAX (434) 296-2369, e-mail grimmp@dof.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF REHABILITATIVE SERVICES

September 26, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Rehabilitative Services intends to amend regulations entitled **22 VAC 30-30**, **Provisions of Independent Learning.** The purpose of the proposed action is to amend regulations governing provision of independent living to comply with federal regulations.

Statutory Authority: § 51.5-14 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until September 26, 2003, to Elizabeth E. Smith, Policy and Planning Director, Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Drive, P.O. Box K300, Richmond, VA 23288-0300.

Contact: Theresa Preda, Program Manager, Independent Living, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., P.O. Box K300, Richmond, VA 23288-0300, telephone (804) 662-7078, FAX (804) 662-7122, toll-free 1-800-552-5019 or e-mail predaTR@drs.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA SMALL BUSINESS FINANCING AUTHORITY

September 23, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Business Assistance, 707 East Main Street,
3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

■

A meeting to review applications for loans submitted to the authority for approval and general business of the board. Time is subject to change depending upon the agenda of the board.

Contact: Scott E. Parsons, Executive Director, Department of Business Assistance, P.O. Box 446, Richmond, VA 23218-0446, telephone (804) 371-8256, FAX (804) 225-3384, e-mail sparsons@dba.state.va.us.

STATE BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 that the State Board of Social Services intends to repeal regulations entitled 22 VAC 40-190, Regulation for

Criminal Record Checks for Child Welfare Agencies.The purpose of the proposed action is to repeal the current

regulation for criminal record checks in order to promulgate a new regulation to establish sworn statement or affirmation, search of the central registry, and criminal history record check, in compliance with the Code of Virginia.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.2-217, 63.2-1704, 63.2-1720, 63.2-1721, 63.2-1722, 63.2-1724, and 63.2-1727 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Wenda Singer, Program Consultant, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-2201, FAX (804) 692-2370 or e-mail wxs@dss.state.va.us.

September 12, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

* * * * * * * *

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 that the State Board of Social Services intends to repeal regulations entitled 22 VAC 40-191, Background Checks for Child Welfare Agencies. The purpose of the proposed action is to establish background checks for child welfare agencies, in compliance with the Code of Virginia. Background checks are sworn statement or affirmation, search of the central registry, and criminal history record check.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.2-217, 63.2-1704, 63.2-1720, 63.2-1721, 63.2-1722, 63.2-1724, and 63.2-1727 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Wenda Singer, Program Consultant, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-2201, FAX (804) 692-2370 or e-mail wxs@dss.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

September 8, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

In accordance with the Coats Human Services Reauthorization Act of 1998, the Virginia Department of Social Services is holding a public hearing to receive comments on the Community Services Block Grant State Plan. The plan was submitted to the Office of Community Services in the Administration for Children and Families, Department of Health and Human Services in September 2002. The plan covered the two-year period starting October 1, 2002, and ending September 30, 2004. A legislative public hearing was held to review the plan prior to its submission to the Department of Health and Human Services. The department is again seeking comments on the plan as implementation moves into its second year.

Contact: J. Mark Grigsby, Director of the Office of Community Services, Department of Social Services, 730 E.

Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1895, FAX (804) 692-1869.

September 19, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Social Services, 730 East Broad Street, Lower Level 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Family and Children's Trust Fund Board of Trustees.

Contact: Nan McKenney, Executive Director, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., 8th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1823, FAX (804) 692-1869.

October 10, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Charlottesville, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting of the Virginia Commission on National and Community Services.

Contact: Felicia Jones, Administrative Assistant, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., 8th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1998, FAX (804) 692-1999, toll-free (800) 638-3839, e-mail fyj900@email1.dss.state.va.us.

BOARD OF SOCIAL WORK

† September 18, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting † September 19, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street,

Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will convene to hear possible violations of the laws and regulations governing the practice of social work.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Social Work, 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 662-9914, FAX (804) 662-7250, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail evelyn.brown@dhp.state.va.us.

September 19, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6603 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Board Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting to include consideration of regulatory, legislative and disciplinary matters as may be presented on the agenda. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting

Contact: Arnice Covington, Administrative Assistant, Board of Social Work, Alcoa Bldg., 6603 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1712, telephone (804) 662-9914, FAX (804) 662-7250, (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**, e-mail arnice.covington@dhp.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL SOIL SCIENTISTS AND WETLAND PROFESSIONALS

October 10, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3660 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

October 24, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the Board for Professional Soil Scientists and Wetland Professionals intends to adopt regulations entitled 18 VAC 145-30, Wetland Delineators Certification Regulations. The purpose of the proposed action is to promulgate regulations to implement a regulatory program for wetland professionals in accordance with Chapter 784 of the 2002 Acts of Assembly.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-201 and 54.1-2203 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Executive Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or e-mail SoilScientist@dpor.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

September 18, 2003 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Taxation, 2220 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the State Land Evaluation Advisory Council to adopt suggested ranges of values for agricultural, horticultural, forest and open-space land use and the use-value assessment program.

Contact: Keith Mawyer, Property Tax Manager, Department of Taxation, 2220 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 367-8020.

COUNCIL ON TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

September 10, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 8, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 12, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Street, 7th
Floor, Executive Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular monthly meeting of the Change Management Workgroup. Agenda and details available at www.cots.state.va.us.

Contact: Jenny Hunter, COTS Executive Director, Council on Technology Services, 110 S. 7th St., Suite 135, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-9579, FAX (804) 786-9584, e-mail jhunter@gov.state.va.us.

September 18, 2003 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting
October 16, 2003 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting
November 20, 2003 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms
Drive, Lee Building, Rooms 101, 103, and 105, Richmond,
Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular monthly meeting of the Security Workgroup. Agenda and more details can be found at www.cots.state.va.us.

Contact: Jenny Hunter, COTS Executive Director, Council on Technology Services, 110 S. 7th St., Suite 135, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-9579, FAX (804) 786-9584, e-mail jhunter@gov.state.va.us.

Volume 19, Issue 26

October 2, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
November 6, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
† December 4, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Information Technology, 110 South 7th Street,

3rd Floor, Executive Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular monthly meeting of the Executive Committee. Agenda and meeting information available at www.cots.state.va.us.

Contact: Jenny Hunter, COTS Executive Director, Council on Technology Services, Department of Technology Planning, 110 S. 7th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-9579, FAX (804) 786-9584, e-mail jhunter@gov.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA TOBACCO SETTLEMENT FOUNDATION

September 8, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting VCU Siegel Center, 1200 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

Research grantees report goals for FY04.

Contact: Eloise Burke, Senior Executive Assistant, Virginia Tobacco Settlement Foundation, 701 E. Franklin St., Suite 501, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2523, FAX (804) 225-2272, e-mail eburke@tsf.state.va.us.

† September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting VCU Sports Medicine Building, 1300 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A strategic planning session.

Contact: Eloise Burke, Senior Executive Assistant, Virginia Tobacco Settlement Foundation, 701 E. Franklin St., Suite 501, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2523, FAX (804) 225-2272, e-mail eburke@tsf.state.va.us.

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

September 18, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Board Room, Norfolk, Virginia. █

October 15, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Hampton Inn Col Alto, 401 East Nelson Street, Lexington, Virginia.

A work session of the Commonwealth Transportation Board and the Department of Transportation and Department of Rail and Public Transportation staff.

Contact: Frankie Giles, Agency Regulatory Coordinator, Commonwealth Transportation Board, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-4701, FAX (804) 225-4700, e-mail Frankie.Giles@VirginiaDOT.org.

September 18, 2003 - Noon -- Open Meeting Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Board Room, Norfolk, Virginia.

October 15, 2003 - 4 p.m. -- Open Meeting Hampton Inn Col Alto, 401 East Nelson Street, Lexington, Virginia A monthly meeting to vote on proposals presented regarding bids, permits, additions and deletions to the highway system, and any other matters requiring board approval. Public comment will be received at the outset of the meeting on items on the meeting agenda for which the opportunity for public comment has not been afforded the public in another forum. Remarks will be limited to five minutes. Large groups are asked to select one individual to speak for the group. The board reserves the right to amend these conditions. Separate committee meetings may be held on call of the chairman. Contact VDOT Public Affairs at (804) 786-2715 for schedule.

Contact: Frankie Giles, Agency Regulatory Coordinator, Commonwealth Transportation Board, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-4701, FAX (804) 225-4700, e-mail Frankie.Giles@VirginiaDOT.org.

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Virginia Public School Authority

† September 24, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, James Monroe Building, 3rd Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to consider the Series 2003 C Bond sale.

Contact: Richard Davis, Public Finance Manager, Department of the Treasury, 101 N. 14th St., James Monroe Building, 3rd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-4928, FAX (804) 225-3187.

TREASURY BOARD

September 17, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, 3rd Floor, Treasury Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting.

Contact: Melissa Mayes, Treasury Board Secretary, Department of the Treasury, 101 N. 14th St., 3rd Floor, Treasury Board Room, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6011, FAX (804) 225-3187, e-mail melissa.mayes@trs.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA WAR MEMORIAL FOUNDATION

September 19, 2003 - Noon -- Open Meeting Virginia War Memorial, 621 South Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular quarterly meeting of the Board of Trustees to include the election of officers.

Contact: Jon C. Hatfield, Executive Director, Virginia War Memorial Foundation, 621 S. Belvidere St., Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 786-2060, FAX (804) 786-6652, e-mail jhatfield@vawarmemorial.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY OPERATORS

October 2, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business.

Contact: David E. Dick, Executive Director, Board for Waste Management Facility Operators, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail wastemgt@dpor.state.va.us.

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

September 8, 2003 - 4 p.m. -- Public Hearing
Department of Environmental Quality Tidewater Regional
Office, 5636 Southern Boulevard, Virginia Beach, Virginia

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed reissuance of a VPDES Permit to the Town of Onancock. The public comment period closes on September 23, 2003.

Contact: Raleigh M. Smith, Department of Environmental Quality, 5636 Southern Blvd., Virginia Beach, VA 23455, telephone (757) 518-2114, FAX (757) 518-2009, e-mail rmsmith@deq.state.va.us.

September 9, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Forestry Headquarters, 900 Natural Resources Drive, Charlottesville, Virginia.

A meeting of the advisory committee assisting the department in the development of amendments to the General VPA Permits for confined animal feeding operations and confined poultry feeding operations and the new General VPDES permit for confined animal feeding operations.

Contact: T. Scott Haley, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4443, FAX (804) 698-4032, e-mail tshaley@deq.state.va.us.

† September 10, 2003 - 10:30 a.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed reissuance of a VPDES Permit to Phillip Morris USA, Inc. for the Park 500 Plant in Chester, Virginia. The public comment period closes on September 19, 2003.

Contact: Oula Shehab, Department of Environmental Quality, 4949-A Cox Rd., Glen Allen, VA 23060, telephone (804) 527-5069, e-mail okshehab@deq.state.va.us.

* * * * * * * *

September 10, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Environmental Quality, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

October 10, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled 9 VAC 25-580, Underground Storage Tanks: Technical Standards and Corrective Action Requirements. The purpose of the proposed regulation is to incorporate changes in the law and clarify that UST systems that missed the deadline for upgrade must be closed in accordance with the requirements of the regulation.

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.15 and 62.1-44.44.34:9 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Fred Cunningham, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4285, FAX (804) 698-4266 or e-mail fkcunningh@deq.state.va.us.

September 10, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Public Hearing Department of Environmental Quality, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

October 10, 2003 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 2.2-4007 of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control Board intends to adopt regulations entitled 9 VAC 25-770, Financial Responsibility Requirements for Mitigation Associated with Tidal Dredging Projects. The purpose of the proposed regulation is to establish requirements for demonstrating financial responsibility for the completion of compensatory mitigation requirements for dredging projects in tidal waters permitted under Virginia Water Protection Permit Program and the acceptable mechanisms for making the demonstration.

Statutory Authority: § 62.1-44.15 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Ellen Gilinsky, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4375, FAX (804) 698-4032 or e-mail egilinsky@deq.state.va.us.

BOARD FOR WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS

September 8, 2003 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation,
3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

The Qualifying Experience Committee will continue its work to determine whether experience obtained at water and wastewater facilities that are not required to have an operating permit should qualify an applicant for licensure as a waterworks or wastewater works operator.

Contact: David E. Dick, Executive Director, Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595,

Monday, September 8, 2003

FAX (804) 367-2475, (804) 367-9753/TTY **2**, e-mail waterwasteoper@dpor.state.va.us.

September 9, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct board business.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-6128, (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎, e-mail waterwasteoper@dpor.state.va.us.

INDEPENDENT

VIRGINIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

† October 1, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† October 15, 2003 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† October 30, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Retirement System Headquarters Building, 1200 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Optional Retirement Plan Advisory Committee. No public comment will be received at the meeting.

Contact: LaShaunda B. King, Administrative Secretary, Virginia Retirement System, 1200 E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 344-3124, FAX (804) 786-1541, toll-free (888) 827-3847, (804) 344-3190/TTY ☎, e-mail lking@vrs.state.va.us.

October 16, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 20, 2003 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting
VRS Headquarters, 1200 East Main Street, Richmond,
Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees. No public comment will be received.

Contact: Darla K. Glazier, Office Manager, Virginia Retirement System, P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 649-8059, FAX (804) 786-1541, toll-free (888) 827-3847, (804) 344-3190/TTY ☎, e-mail dkestner@vrs.state.va.us.

November 19, 2003 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting VRS Headquarters, 1200 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

Regular meetings of the following committees:

Investment Advisory - 11 a.m. Administration and Personnel - 3 p.m. Benefits and Actuarial - 3 p.m. Audit and Compliance - 4 p.m.

Contact: LaShaunda B. King, Acting Office Manager, Virginia Retirement System, P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 649-8059, FAX (804) 786-1541, toll-free (888) 827-3847, (804) 344-3190/TTY \$\mathbb{\alpha}\$, e-mail lking@vrs.state.va.us.

LEGISLATIVE

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

September 17, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
October 22, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
November 19, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
December 17, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting
General Assembly Bldg., 9th and Broad Streets, 6th Floor,
Speaker's Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss the recodifications of Titles 1, 3.1 and 37.1 and other business that may come before the commission. A brief public comment period will be provided at the end of the meeting.

Contact: Jane Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations, Virginia Code Commission, General Assembly Bldg., 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 692-0625, e-mail jchaffin@leg.state.va.us.

VIRGINIA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

September 15, 2003 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting.

Contact: Lisa Wallmeyer, Assistant Director, Virginia Freedom of Information Advisory Council, 910 Capitol St., General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3056, FAX (804) 371-0169, toll-free (866) 448-4100, e-mail foiacouncil@leg.state.va.us.

JOINT COMMISSION ON TECHNOLOGY AND SCIENCE

September 16, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting October 21, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Senate Room A, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the JCOTS Advisory Committee on Consumer Protection.

Contact: Mitchell Goldstein, Director, Joint Commission on Technology and Science, General Assembly Bldg., 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

September 17, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting
October 22, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House
Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the JCOTS Advisory Committee on the Hard Sciences.

Contact: Eric Link, Staff Attorney, Joint Commission on Technology and Science, General Assembly Bldg., 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 371-0169, e-mail elink@leg.state.va.us.

October 7, 2003 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the JCOTS Cyberlaw Advisory Committee. The meeting will also be teleconferenced at 510 Cumberland Street, Suite 308, Bristol, Virginia.

Contact: Mitchell Goldstein, Director, Joint Commission on Technology and Science, General Assembly Bldg., 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, e-mail jcots@leg.state.va.us.

October 8, 2003 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the JCOTS Advisory Committee on Integrated Government.

Contact: Eric Link, Staff Attorney, Joint Commission on Technology and Science, General Assembly Bldg., 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 371-0169, e-mail elink@leg.state.va.us.

† December 2, 2003 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Joint Commission on Technology and Science. This meeting also will be teleconferenced from 510 Cumberland St., Suite 308, Bristol, Virginia.

Contact: Mitchell Goldstein, Director, Joint Commission on Technology and Science, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 371-0169.

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST

OPEN MEETINGS

September 8

- † Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
 - Virginia Winegrowers Advisory Board Marketing Committee

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

- † Motor Vehicle Dealer Board
 - Advertising Committee
 - Dealer Practices Committee
 - Franchise Law Committee
 - Licensing Committee
 - Transaction Recovery Fund Committee

Pharmacy, Board of

Tobacco Settlement Foundation, Virginia

Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators, Board for

- Qualifying Experience Committee

September 9

† Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of

- Virginia Marine Products Board

Charitable Gaming Department

Contractors, Board for

Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

Governor, Office of the

- Urban Policy Task Force

Medical Assistance Services, Board of

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Executive Committee

People with Disabilities, Virginia Board for

† Tobacco Settlement Foundation, Virginia

- Board of Trustees

Water Control Board, State

Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators, Board for

September 10

Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for

Blind and Vision Impaired, Department of the Community Colleges. State Board for

- Academic and Student Affairs Committee
- Audit Committee
- Budget and Finance Committee
- Facilities Committee
- Personnel Committee

Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

Historic Resources, Department of

- Board of Historic Resources and State Review Board Information Technologies Agency, Virginia
 - Wireless E-911 Services Board
- † Interagency Coordinating Council, Virginia

Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation

- Jamestown 2007 Executive Committee

Motor Vehicles, Department of

- Medical Advisory Board

Technology Services, Council on

- Change Management Workgroup

September 11

Asbestos, Lead, and Home Inspectors, Virginia Board for † Child Day-Care Council

Community Colleges, State Board for

Conservation and Recreation, Department of

- Breaks Interstate Park Commission

Dentistry, Board of

Environmental Quality, Department of

- Water Policy Technical Advisory Committee
- New River PCS Source Study Citizens' Committee Old Dominion University
 - Board of Visitors

September 12

Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Commission Child Fatality Review Team, State

† Conservation and Recreation, Department of

Dentistry, Board of

† Education, Board of

- Advisory Committee on Adult Education and Literacy
- † Longwood University
 - Academic and Student Affairs Committee
 - Administration, Finance and Facilities Committee
 - Advancement Committee
 - Audit Committee

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Expansion Committee

† Opticians, Board for

September 13

Blind and Vision Impaired, Department for the

- Statewide Rehabilitation Council for the Blind

Conservation and Recreation, Department of

- Virginia Cave Board

† Longwood University

- Board of Visitors

September 15

Barbers and Cosmetology, Board for

Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board

† Education. Board of

- Advisory Board for Teacher Education and Licensure

Freedom of Information Advisory Council, Virginia

Museum of Natural History, Virginia

- Executive Committee

September 16

† Conservation and Recreation, Department of

Contractors. Board for

Corrections. Board of

- Correctional Services/Policy and Regulations Committee

- Liaison Committee

Environmental Quality, Department of

- Ground Water Protection Steering Committee

Higher Education for Virginia, State Council of

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on Consumer Protection

September 17

† Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of

- Virginia Cattle Industry Board

Code Commission, Virginia

Compensation Board

Corrections, Board of

- Administration Committee

Education, Board of

Higher Education for Virginia, State Council of

Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Communications and Marketing Committee

- Education and Programs Committee

- Exhibitions Committee

- Expansion Committee

- Legislative Committee

- Nominating Committee

- Planning Committee

† Racing Commission, Virginia

† Real Estate Board

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on the Hard Sciences

Treasury Board

September 18

Conservation and Recreation, Department of

- Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board

Criminal Justice Services Board

Design-Build/Construction Management Review Board

Economic Development Partnership, Virginia

- Board of Directors

Health, Department of

- Biosolids Regulations Advisory Committee

† Labor and Industry, Department of

- Virginia Apprenticeship Council

† Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Buildings and Grounds Committee

- Collections Committee

- Finance Committee

- Board of Trustees

Real Estate Board

† Social Work, Board of

Taxation, Department of

- State Land Evaluation Advisory Council

Technology Services, Council on

- Security Workgroup

Transportation Board, Commonwealth

September 19

† Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Roard for

- Land Surveyor Section

Dentistry, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

† Housing and Community Development, Department of

- State Building Code Technical Review Board

Social Services, Department of

- Family and Children's Trust Fund Board of Trustees

† Social Work, Board of

War Memorial Foundation, Virginia

September 22

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

† Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for

- Certified Interior Designers

- Land Surveyor Section

Environmental Quality, Department of

† Housing and Community Development, Board of

The Library of Virginia

- Archival and Information Services Committee

- Collection and Management Services Committee

- Legislative and Finance Committee

- Publications and Educational Services Committee

- Public Library Development Committee

- Records Management Committee

Nursing, Board of

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for

September 23

Environmental Quality, Department of

Governor, Office of the

- Urban Policy Task Force

Marine Resources Commission

Nursing, Board of

Reforestation of Timberlands Board

† Small Business Financing Authority, Virginia

September 24

† Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of

- Virginia Egg Board

At-Risk Youth and Families, Comprehensive Services for

- State Executive Council

George Mason University

† Housing Development Authority, Virginia

- Board of Commissioners

† Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

Motor Vehicles, Department of

Nursing, Board of

† Treasury, Department of the

- Virginia Public School Authority

September 25

Accountancy, Board of

Nursing, Board of

Public Guardian and Conservator Advisory Board, Virginia

September 26

Agriculture and Consumer Services, Board of Conservation and Recreation, Department of

September 29

Business Assistance, Department of

- Small Business Advisory Board

Environmental Quality, Department of

- Water Policy Technical Advisory Committee

September 30

Contractors, Board for

† Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

† Psychology, Board of

October 1

† Retirement System, Virginia

- Optional Retirement Plan Advisory Committee

October 2

Technology Services, Council on

- Executive Committee

Waste Management Facility Operators, Board for

October 3

Art and Architectural Review Board

October 6

† Cemetery Board

October 7

Cemetery Board

† Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Executive Committee

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on Cyberlaw

October 8

Contractors, Board for

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

Technology Services, Council on

- Change Management Workgroup

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on Integrated Government

October 10

Social Services, Department of

Virginia Commission on National and Community Service

October 14

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Blind and Vision Impaired, Board for the

Contractors, Board for

Medical Assistance Services, Department of

- Medicaid Physician Advisory Committee

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

October 15

Environmental Quality, Department of

- Water Policy Technical Advisory Committee
- † Medical Assistance Services, Department of
 - Medicaid Transportation Advisory Committee

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee
- † Retirement System, Virginia
- Optional Retirement Plan Advisory Committee

Transportation Board, Commonwealth

October 16

Design-Build/Construction Management Review Board

Pesticide Control Board

Retirement System, Virginia

- Board of Trustees

Technology Services, Council on

- Security Workgroup

October 17

Health Professions, Department of

October 20

Museum of Natural History, Virginia

- Executive Committee

October 21

Contractors, Board for

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee
- † People with Disabilities, Virginia Board for
- † Psychology, Board of

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on Consumer Protection

October 22

Code Commission, Virginia

Education, Board of

- † Medicine, Board of
 - Informal Conference Committee

Real Estate Board

- Education Committee

Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

- Advisory Committee on The Hard Sciences

October 23

Motor Vehicles, Department of

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

Real Estate Board

October 24

Health, State Board of

† Physical Therapy, Board of

October 27

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

October 28

Contractors, Board for

Marine Resources Commission

Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

October 29

At-Risk Youth and Families, Comprehensive Services for

- State Executive Council

Contractors, Board for

- Tradesman and Education Committee

Labor and Industry, Department of

- Virginia Migrant and Seasonal Farmworkers Board

† Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

October 30

† Retirement System, Virginia

- Optional Retirement Plan Advisory Committee

November 4

Contractors, Board for

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Executive Committee

November 5

Cemetery Board

Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation

- Jamestown 2007 Executive Committee

November 6

† Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology, Board of Information Technologies Agency, Virginia

- Virginia Geographic Information Network Advisory Board

Technology Services, Council on

- Executive Committee

November 7

Art and Architectural Review Board

November 10

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

November 12

Information Technology Authority, Virginia

- Wireless E-911 Services Board CMRS Subcommittee

† Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

Real Estate Board

Technology Services, Council on

- Change Management Workgroup

November 13

Environmental Quality, Department of

- Recycling Markets Development Council

Real Estate Board

November 14

Child Fatality Review Team, State

Health, Department of

- Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board

Museum of Natural History, Virginia

- Executive Committee

November 15

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Department of

- Professional Boxing and Wrestling Advisory Task Force

November 17

† Education, Board of

- Advisory Board for Teacher Education and Licensure

Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation

- Board of Trustees

The Library of Virginia

- Archival and Information Services Committee
- Collection and Management Services Committee
- Legislative and Finance Committee
- Publications and Educational Services Committee
- Public Library Development Committee
- Records Management Committee

Nursing, Board of

November 18

Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation

- Board of Trustees

Nursing, Board of

Real Estate Appraiser Board

November 19

Code Commission, Virginia

Contractors, Board for

Education, Board of

George Mason University

Board of Visitors

† Medicine, Board of

- Informal Conference Committee

Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia

- Collections Committee
- Expansion Committee
- Finance Committee

Nursing, Board of

Retirement System, Virginia

- Administration and Personnel Committee

November 20

Design-Build/Construction Management Review Board

Geology, Board for

Health, Department of

- Sewage Handling and Disposal Advisory Committee

Nursing, Board of

Retirement System, Virginia

Technology Services, Council on

- Security Workgroup

November 21

Counseling, Board of

November 24

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

November 26

† At-Risk Youth and Families, Comprehensive Services for

- State Executive Council

† Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of

- Regulatory/Legislative Committee

December 2

† Contractors, Board for

† Technology and Science, Joint Commission on

December 3

† Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Commission

† Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

† Polygraph Examiners Advisory Board

† Real Estate Board

- Education Committee

December 4

† Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

† Real Estate Board

† Technology Services, Council on

- Executive Committee

December 5

† Art and Architectural Review Board

December 8

† Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

December 17

Code Commission, Virginia

PUBLIC HEARINGS

September 8

Social Services, Department of Water Control Board, State

September 10

† Water Control Board, State

September 15

Barbers and Cosmetology, Board for

September 22

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for

September 23

Mines, Minerals and Energy, Department of

September 25

Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, Department of

Services, Department of

Mines, Minerals and Energy, Department of

October 1

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for

October 10

Soil Scientists and Wetland Professionals, Board for Professional

October 15

† Racing Commission, Virginia

October 16

Pesticide Control Board

